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Balmer-Lawrie &Co.Ltd.
(A Government of India Enterprise)

SINCE 1867

Ref: BLISE/BM/2019

Date: 28th May, 2019

The Secretary,

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Exchange Plaza

Bandra-Kurla Complex

Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051

The Secretary,

BSE Ltd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street

Mumbai- 400001

Company Code: BALM LAWRIE

Dear Sir,

Subject: Disclosure under Regulation 30 and Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Approval of Financial Results

and Financial Statement for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2019

Company Code: 523319

Further, to our intimation dated 3rd May, 2019 and 17th May, 2019 and pursuant to Regulation 30

and Regulation 33 read with Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please note that the Board at its Meeting dated 28th May, 2019

has, inter-alia, approved the following which are attached herewith for your records:

1. The Audited standalone and consolidated financial results of the Company for e Fi a cial

Year ended 31st March, 2019 and the fourth quarter of FY 2018 -19;

2. The Audited standalone and consolidated financial statement of the Company for the Fi a cial

Year ended 31st March, 2019;

3. Declaration on unmodified opinion on standalone and consolidated financial resu s 0 e

Company for FY 2018 -19;

4. The statement of Assets and Liabilities for the half-year ended 31st March, 2019.

In addition, please find attached the following:

1. The Auditor's report alongwith the financial statements, of the Company 'or e year e ~

31st March, 2019 and

2. CEO/CFO certification for the quarter and the year ended 31st March 2019.

The Audited Financial Results shall be published in the newspapers as per Reg

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a d

available on the website of the Company (www.balmerlawrie.com).

The meeting commenced at 12:00 Noon (1ST) and was concluded at aG·.'1S P. (IS .

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

For Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Ka~t!-sen

Compliance Officer

Enclosed: As above
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28th May, 2019

To

The Board of Directors

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Kolkata

CEOand CFO Compliance Certificate

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, we, Prabal Basu, Chairman & Managing Director, and Shyam Sundar

Khuntia Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify that with respect to the Financial Year

ended 31st March, 2019:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and

that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's

affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable

laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by

the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the

Company's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for

financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control

systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to

the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or

propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
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D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a

significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial

reporting.

am Sundar Khuntia

(Chief Financial Officer)

Prabal Basu

(Chairman & Managing Director)
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BALMER LAWRIE & CO. LTD.

[A Government of India Enterprise]

To

Board of Directors

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

CEO and CFO Certification

We, Prabal Basu, Chairman & Managing Director, and S. S. Khuntia, Director (Finance),

hereby certify that we have reviewed the Audited Financial Results of the Company for

the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2019 and to the best of our knowledge and belief

the said results:

(i) Do not contain any false or misleading statements or figures, and

(ii) Do not omit any material fact, which may make the statements or figures

contained therein misleading.

~.
Director (Finance) & CFO

( Prabal Basu )

Chairman & Managing Director

28th May, 2019



BALMER LAWRIE & CO. LTD.

[A Government of India Enterprise]

Regd. Office: 21, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700001

Tel. No•• (033)22225313. Fax No.·(033)22225292, email-bhavsar.k@balmerlawrie.com. website-www.balmerlawrie.com

CIN: L15492WB1924GOI004835

Statement of of Audited Financial Results for the Quarter and Year Ended 31/03/2019

~. in Lakhs

Standalone Consolidated

Year to date Year to date Year to date Year to date

figures for figures for figures for figures for

Preceding Corresponding Current the Previous Current the Previous

3 Months 3 Months 3 Months Period Year Period Year

Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended

31 March, 31 Dec. 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March,

SI. 2019 2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

No. Particulars (Un·audited) (Un·audited) (Un·audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

I Revenue from operations 47449.04 39471.68 47690.80 177520.27 175810.87 177520.81 175653.80

II Other Income 4434.55 766.89 3929.65 8152.08 7093.46 5779.29 5063.76

III Total Income [1+11] 51883.59 40238.57 51620.45 185672.35 182904.33 183300.10 180717.56

IV Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed & Services Rendered 27207.57 25020.95 28546.82 110529.72 105749.72 110530.18 105749.72

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 329.45 191.72 329.45 712.43 329.45 712.43

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods. 333.30 (15.42) (656.94) 343.82 1199.19 343.82 1199.19

Work-in-Progress and Stock -in-Trade

Excise Duty on Sales - - 3303.94 - 3303.94

Employee Benefits Expenses 5190.66 5070.43 4585.05 21247.08 19799.42 21270.38 19820.49

Finance costs 100.23 212.88 84.73 555.74 422.66 712.37 422.73

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 677.70 673.49 755.72 2671.90 2655.70 3031.25 2689.55

Other Expenses 5547.73 4838.86 6491.66 21984.16 22949.76 22425.44 22989.54

Total expenses [IV] 39386.64 35801.19 39998.76 157661.87 156792.82 158642.89 156887.59

V Profitt(Loss) before exceptional

items and tax (III - IV) 12496.95 4437.38 11621.69 28010.48 26111.51 24657.21 23829.97

VI Exceptional Items - - - -

VII Profit !(Loss) before tax [V-VI] 12496.95 4437.38 11621.69 28010.48 26111.51 24657.21 23829.97

VIII Tax Expense

(1) Current Tax 3224.51 1711.00 1619.00 8736.17 6092.00 8122.58 5810.59

(2) Deferred Tax - 444.26 36.00 1.208.00 424.13 1.538.00 424.13 1538.00

IX Profitt(Loss) for the period from continuing

operations ( VII- VIII ) 8828.18 2690.38 8794.69 18850.18 18481.51 16110.50 16481.38

X Profitt(Loss) from discontinued operations - - - - -

XI Tax Expense of discontinued oprerations - - - -

XII Profitt(Loss) from discontinued - - - - - - -

operations (after Tax) [X - XI]

XIII Profit! ( Loss) for the period [IX + Xm 8828.18 2690.38 8794.69 18850.18 18481.51 16110.50 16481.38

XIV Other Comprehensive Income

(A)(i) Items that will not be Reclassified to (925.66) - (925.66) 238.88 (925.66) 238.88

Profit or Loss

(A)(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will 323.46 - 323.46 (82.67) 323.46 (82.67)

not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

(B)(i) Items that will be Reclassified to - - - -
Profit or Loss

(B)(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will - - - - - -
be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period [XIII+XIV] 8225.98 2690.38 8794.69 18247.98 18637.72 15508.30 16637.59

[Comprising Profitt(Loss) & Other Comprehensive Income

for the period]

XVI Earnings per Equity Share (for continuing operation)

(of Rs.1 0 each) (not annualised)

(a) Basic 7.74 2.36 7.71 16.53 16.21 14.13 14.46

(b) Diluted 7.74 2.36 7.71 16.53 16.21 14.13 14.46

XVII Earnings per Equity Share (for discontinued operation)

(of Rs.10 each) (not annualised)

(a) Basic

(b) Diluted -

XVIII Earnings per Equity Share (for discontinued and

continuing operations) (of Rs.10 each) (not annualised)

(a) Basic 7.74 2.36 7.71 16.53 16.21 14.13 14.46

(b) Diluted 7.74 2.36 7.71 16.53 16.21 14.13 14.46

mailto:email-bhavsar.k@balmerlawrie.com.
http://website-www.balmerlawrie.com


Notes :

(i) The Standalone audited financial results for the quarter & year ended March 31, 2019 and Consolidated financial results for the year ended March

31, 2019 are as per the notified Indian Accounting Standards under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The above results

including Report on Operating Segment have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors at its

meeting held on 28th May, 2019.

(ii) Post implementation of Goods and Services Tax ("GST") with effect from 1 July 2017, total income from operations is disclosed net of GST. Total

income from operations for the earlier periods included excise duty which is now subsumed in the GST. Total income from operations for the year

ended 31 March 2018 includes excise duty upto 30 June 2017. Accordingly, total income from operations for the quarter and year ended 31 March

2018 are not comparable with those of the subsequent periods presented.

(iii) Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2018, replaces existing

revenue recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no significant adjustments required to the retained

earnings as at 1st April, 2018. Also, the application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact on recognition and measurement of revenue

and related items in the financial results.

(iv) Figures of the last quarter are the balancing figure between the audited figures for the full financial year and the published year to date figures upto

the third quarter of the financial year.

(v) Previous period I year's figures have been re-grouped I re-arranged I re-classified wherever necessary.

(vi) The audited accounts are subject to review by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend @ Rs. 11 per equity share as on 31.3.2019 for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019

(viii) The statement of Assets and Liabilities as required under Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation

2015 is as under:

~. in Lakhs

Standalone Consolidated

Figures as at Figures as at Figures as at Figures as at

the end of the end of the end of the end of

current previous current previous

reporting reporting reporting reporting

period period period period

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Particulars (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

ASSETS

1 Non·Current Assets

( a ) Property, Plant and Equipment 39667.82 39480.03 56319.08 40375.07

( b ) Capital Work-in-Progress 11694.48 1324.53 11717.60 13806.59

( c ) Investment Property 111.39 113.54 111.39 113.54

( d ) Intangible assets 391.08 527.27 391.08 527.27

( e ) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 14006.80 13840.66 32506.53 29260.38

(iii) Loans 420.89 428.29 420.89 428.29

(iii) Others 775.27 554.61 775.27 554.61

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

( g ) Non Financial Assets- Others 3759.03 3480.00 8309.39 8188.47

Sub - Total- Non- Current Assets 70826.76 59748.93 110551.23 93254.22

2 Current Assets

(a) Inventories 14293.31 13663.32 14293.31 13663.32

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 27619.22 27127.33 27629.10 26978.33

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4614.05 5059.07 5336.73 7591.53

(iii) Other Bank Balances 39071.11 43007.56 39071.11 43007.56

(iv) Loans 1304.66 2467.37 474.14 262.66

(v) Others 24775.38 27170.78 24775.38 27202.28

(c) Non Financial Assets- Others 5727.23 6940.62 5922.11 713161

Sub - Total - Current assets 117404.96 125436.05 117501.88 125837.29

TOTAL· ASSETS 188231.72 185184.98 228053.11 219091.51

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity

Attributable to Owners

( a ) Equity Share Capital 11400.25 11400.25 11400.25 11400.25

( b ) Other Equity 118620.19 114185.89 140552.84 134293.86

Shareholder's Fund 130020.44 125586.14 151953.09 145694.11

Minority Interest

( a ) Equity Share Capital 5402.60 5,402.60

( b ) Other Equity 1344.02 1121.38

Attributable to Non-controlling Interest 5058.58 5281.22

Liabilities

2. Non - Current Liabilities

( a ) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 1060.94 1115.99 7608.24 1115.99

(ii) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and

small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise

and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 5.42 49.82 7.70 49.82

( b ) Provisions 4014.48 3777.48 4162.43 3777.48

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 919.24 818.57 7364.03 6314.76

( d ) Non Financial Liabilities· Others 4.89 7.06 260.51 7.06

Sub· Total· Non- Current Liabilities 6004.97 5768.92 19402.91 11265.11

3. Current Liabilities

( a ) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 306.32 374.35 306.39 374.35

(ii) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and 324.16 199.31 324.16 199.31

small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 28981.50 32079.79 28974.92 31638.25

and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 12951.11 11945.81 12988.74 15601.86

( b ) Non Financial Liabilities - Others 5213.87 5948.14 5235.18 6046.78

( c ) Provisions 1638.56 504.33 1638.56 504.33

( d ) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 2790.79 2778.19 2170.58 2486.19

Sub ~Total - Current Liabilities 52206.31 53829.92 51638.53 56851.07

TOTAL· EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 188231.72 185184.98 228053.11 219091.51



SEGMENT WISE REVENUE, RESULTS AND CAPITAL EMPLOYED

~, in Lakhs

Standalone Consolidated

Corresponding Year to date Year to date Year to date Year to date

3 months figure for figure for figure for figure for

Preceding ended in current the previous current the previous

3 months 3 months the previous period Year period Year

ended ended year ended ended ended ended

31/03/2019 31/12/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Particulars (Un-audited) (Un-audited) (Un-audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

1. Segment Revenue [Net Sales/lncome]

a. Industrial Packaging 13905.51 13876.83 12749.17 63675.80 57963.94 63675.80 57963.94

b. Logistics Services 11586.99 6689.95 12103.46 33245.70 33077.08 33245.70 33077.08

c. Logistics Infrastructure 4953.33 4505.92 4619.73 18761.00 19057.03 18761.00 19057.03

d. Travel & Vacations 3788.58 2845.48 5131.88 15976.70 15730.67 15976.70 15730.67

e. Greases & Lubricants 8956.94 9184.60 8594.61 37599.82 40234.50 37599,82 40124.50

f. Others 2455.94 2324.87 2295.33 8808,66 8732.04 8808.66 8732,04

Total 45647.29 39427.65 45494.18 178067.68 174795.26 178067.68 174685.26

Less: Inter Segment Revenue (1049.71) 54.01 109.29 1593.00 2157,71 1593.00 2157.71

Add: Other un-allocable Revenue 752.04 98.04 2305.91 1045.59 3173.32 1046.13 3126.25

Net Salesllncome from Operations 47449.04 39471.68 47690.80 177520.27 175810.87 177520.81 175653.80

2. Segment Results [Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Interest]

a. Industrial Packaging 1375.17 708.81 1234.56 5415,53 5842.43 3116,00 5842.00

b. Log istics Services 3870.07 1142.88 3982.23 7971.21 8482.55 7971.00 8483.00

c. Logistics Infrastructure 1603.63 889.19 1521.49 4372.60 4474.20 4373.00 4474.00

d. Travel & Vacations 2344.95 1530.90 2962.01 6024.93 5294.05 6025.00 5294.00

e. Greases & Lubricants 1366.29 766.67 882.19 3853.75 3096.49 3754.00 3096.00

f. Others 759.51 491.09 668.19 1736.54 1569.45 (581.'00) (3360.00)

Total 11319.62 5529.54 11250.67 29374.56 28759.17 24658.00 23829.00

Less: (i) Interest 100.23 212.88 84.73 555.74 422.66 712.37 422.73

(ii) Other un-allocable expenditure (Net off) (1277.56) 879.28 (455.75) 808.34 2225.00 (711.58) (423.70)

TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAX 12496.95 4437.38 11621.69 28010.48 26111.51 24657.21 23829.97

3. Segment Assets

a. Industrial Packaging 32181.78 32563.52 31765.29 32181.78 31765.29 54865.00 31765.00

b. Logistics Services 12202.08 12386.66 13283.77 12202.08 13283.77 12202.00 7756.00

c. Logistics Infrastructure 22111.33 21857.79 21653,48 22111.33 21653.48 22111.00 21653.00

d. Travel & Vacations 34239.28 44864.19 32538.07 34239.28 32538.07 34239.00 32538.00

e. Greases & Lubricants 19308.77 20618.71 19348.98 19308.77 19348.98 20610.00 19349.00

f. Others 68188.48 62057.36 66595.39 68188.48 66595.39 84026.11 106030.51

Total 188231.72 194348.23 185184.98 188231.72 185184.98 228053.11 219091.51

4. Impairment Assets

a. Industrial Packaging 19.36 381.60 19.36 381.60 19.36 381.60

b. Logistics Services

c. LogistiCS Infrastructure

d. Travel & Vacations 689.31 689.31 689,31

e. Greases & Lubricants

f. Others -
Total 19.36 1070.91 19.36 1070.91 19.36 1070.91

Segment Liabilities

a. Industrial Packaging 8783.66 9013.23 9358.24 8783.66 9358.24 16535.00 9079,00

b. Logistics Services 10889.27 11169.13 12239.06 10889.27 12239.06 10889.00 10961.00

c. Logistics Infrastructure 7624.01 7642.77 6919.21 7624.01 6919.21 7624.00 5148.00

d. Travel & Vacations 11784.15 17764.98 19459.77 11784.15 19459.77 11784.00 17062.00

e. Greases & Lubricants 6169.10 7778.85 7112.63 6169.10 7112.63 7130.00 6468.00

f. Others 12961.09 19185.30 4509.93 12961.09 4509.93 17079.44 19398.18

Total 58211.28 72554.26 59598.84 58211.28 59598.84 71041.44 68116.18
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Balmer- Lawrie Xl Co.Ltd.
(A Government of India Enterprise)

SINCE 1867

Date: 28th May, 2019

The Secretary,

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Exchange Plaza

Sandra-Kurla Complex

Sandra (E),

Mumbai - 400051

Company Code: BALMLAWRIE

The Secretary,

SSE Ltd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Dalal Street

Mumbai- 400001

Company Code : 523319

Dear Sir(s),

Sub: Declaration pursuant to Reg. 33(3)(d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended)

Pursuant to SESI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

in compliance with Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 dated 27th May, 2016, it is hereby

declared and confirmed that Statutory Auditor's Report on Annual Financial Results and

Annual Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019

is with unmodified opinion.

Kindly take the above information on record.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

For Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Director (Finance) & CFO

~~: 21, ~ ~ m, ~-700 001 ('IWO) Registered Office: 21, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700 001 (INDIA) Website: www.balmerlawrie.com

Industrial Packaging. Greases & Lubricants. Leather Chemicals. Travel & Vacations. Logistics. Refinery & Oil Field Services

http://www.balmerlawrie.com


DUITA 

SARKAR & COMPANY 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

7 A, Kiron Sankar Roy Road 

2nd Floor 
Kolkata - 700 001 

We have audited the standalone fmancial statements of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited 

("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of 

Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in equity and 

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information [in 

which are included the Returns for the year ended on that date audited by the branch auditors of 

the Company's branches located at Northern, Southern and Western Region of the countty] 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended, ("IND AS") and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Telephone: +91 332248 1760 / 2213 1333 
E-mail: info@duttasarkar.com/dusac.2009@rediffmail.com 

Website: www.duttasarkar.com 



DUTIA Continuation Sheet 

SARKAR & COMPANY 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone fmancial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 

have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 

our report; 

SI.No 

I. 

2. 

Key Audit Matter 

Implementation of IND AS 115 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosures of revenues 

and other related balances in view of 

adoption of IND AS 115 "Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers" (new revenue 

accounting standard) 

The application of the new revenue 

Auditor's Response 

We assessed the Company's process to 

identify the impact of adoption of the new 

revenue accounting standard. 

Our audit approach consisted of studying 

the internal audit report regarding the 

implementation and also testing of the 

design and operating effectiveness of the 

accounting standard involves certain key internal controls and substantive testing. 

judgements relating to identification of 

distinct performance obligations, 

determination of transaction price of the 

identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to 

measure revenue recognised over a 

period. Additionally, new revenue 

accounting standard contains disclosures 

which involves collation of information 

in respect of disaggregated revenue and 

periods over which the remammg 

performance obligations will be satisfied 

subsequent to the balance sheet date 

We evaluated the design of internal controls 

relating to implementation of the new 

revenue accounting standard. 

We selected a sample of continuing and new 

contracts, and tested the operating 

effectiveness of the internal control, relating 

to identification of the distinct performance 

obligations and determination of transaction 

pnce. We carried out a combination of 

procedures involving enqulry and 

observation. Samples in respect ofrecording 

and recognition of revenue were tested by 

checking the mVOlces and performance. 

Conclusion Our procedures did not identify 

any material exceptions 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions We obtained the details of assessment 

The Company has tax matters under orders to the extent available regarding 
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SI.No 

3. 

Key Audit Matter 

dispute which involves judgment to 

determine the possible outcome of these 

disputes 

[Refer Note:40.2 (a) read with annexure 

"A" 

Auditor's Response 

those assessments for which disputes are 

continuing and being disclosed as 

contingent liability from management. We 

involved our internal experts to estimate the 

possible outcome of the disputes. Our 

internal experts considered the assessment 

orders and other rulings m evaluating 

management's position on these uncertain 

tax positions to evaluate whether any 

change was required to management" s 

position on these uncertainties . 

Conclusion 

We agree with management 's evaluation 

Debtors Due for More than Three We have checked the debtor's agemg 

years and Credit Balance in Sundry schedule of the SBU's. The authority is 

Debtors Accounts (unallocated regularly following up on the realisation of 

receipts) the same. As is evident from the ageing 

The company has credit balance in some schedule dues do exist for more than three 

customer accounts across all Strategic years against which prOVISIOn has been 

Business Unit (SBU's). The credit provided for in the accounts. 

balance in these customer accounts are 

due to either of the following reasons: 

• Amount lying m the nature of 

advance in the customer account; 

• Amount credited to customer account 
but the same could not be 

tracked/linked with any sales invoice. 

• Non-reconciliation of these balances 

m the absence of customer's 

confirmation resulting in the credit 

balances lying for long periods 

We, during the course of our examination 

have also checked the unadjusted advances 

from customers for more than three years 

and also the credit balances lying m 

customers' accounts on account of 

unmatched invoices (unallocated receipts). 

Some of the advances lying unadjusted for 

more than three years have been written 

back during the course of audit. In some 

cases the management is in the process of 

reconciliation with the respective parties and 

hence the process of write back has been 

kept in abeyance. 

The debtors balance of Logistic services 

(LS) Kolkata, includes of receivables from 

Hindustan Paper Corporation Limited 
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SI.No Key Audit Matter 

Continuation Sheet 

Auditor's Response 

(Rs.59,91,087/-) and Stone India Limited 

(Rs.18,1 5,692/-) Both the companies have 

gone to NCLT and claim has been filed by 

the company under the insolvency and 

bankruptcy code and the same was verified 

by us and also provided in the accounts by 

the management. 

As according to the books of accounts the 

total credit balances ·lying in customers' 

accounts is RS .2588.46 lakhs/- and credit 

balance lying over three years is Rs.470.73 

Lakhs spread over various SBU's. 

Conclusion: 

The management is following up on the 

process of reconciliation with regard to 

unallocated receipts. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone fmancial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the fmancial position, fmancial performance, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act. Th.is responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the fmancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone fmancial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone fmancial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone fmancial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• Obtain an understanding of internal fmancial controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 

has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management' s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

standalone fmancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
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opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern; 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone fmancial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone fmancial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor" s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

a) We did not audit the financial statements/ information of branches situated in Northern, 

Western and Southern regions included in the stand alone fmancial statements of the 

Company whose fmancial statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 

110,405.36 Lakhs as at 31st March 2019 and the total revenue of Rs. 157,220.16 Lakhs 

for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial 

statements/information of these branches have been audited by the branch auditors whose 

reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts 

and disclosures included in respect of branches, is based solely on the report of such 

branch auditors. 
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b) The sundry creditor for expenses includes a sum of Rs.326.75 Lakhs (E&P Division, 

Kolkata), which are lying since 2011 -12. As the matter is under litigation, the sum is 

lying unpaid. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (,·the Order"), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified 

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor - General of India, 

in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, we give the compliance in "Annexure e" 
3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper 

returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the 

branches not visited by us . 

c. The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under 

Section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been 

properly dealt with by us in preparing this report; 

d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 

Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 

account and with the returns received from the branches not visited by us; 

e. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 

March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal flllancial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified 
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opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal 

fmancial controls over financial reporting. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule II of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 

financial position in its standalone fmancial statements [refer Note 40.2 (a) 

read with annexure "A"]. 

11 . There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

4. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by 

the Central Goverrunent in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" 

a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 28 May 2019 For Dutta Sarkar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm' s Registration No. 303114E) 

M 'C4)..~ ~· 
Mainak Chakrabarti 

Partner 

M.No.063052 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ' 

section of our report to the Members of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited of even date) 

In respect of the Company's fIxed assets: 

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing fulJ particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fIxed assets; 

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verifIcation of its fIxed assets in 

a phased manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the company and nature of its assets. As according to the policy of the company, 

plant & machinery, furniture and fIttings, IT equipments, computers and vehicles 

are verifIed every year and other fIxed assets are verifIed in a phased manner over 

a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 

of the company and the nature of its assets. 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined 

by us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds I registered sale deed 

provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable 

properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the 

Company as at the balance sheet date, except as mentioned below. In respect of 

immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and 

disclosed as fIxed assets in the standalone fInanc ial statements, the lease 

agreements are in the name of the Company, except as mentioned below. 

Due to non - availability of the original title deeds in certain cases of immovable 

properties mentioned herein below, we are unable to comment whether the 

respective title deeds are held in the name of the company; 

Address of Immovable Property Status of Document Received 

Gopalpur holiday home viII - Gopalpur, Certified Conveyance Deed and Photocopy 
Udayapur Mouza Gopalpur, Orissa Agreement 

Balmer Lawrie & Co Ltd Village-Piyala 
Photocopy of Agreement 

Ballabgarh, vill-Asaoti,Dist-Faridabad 

Batra Centre 27,Ulsoor Road 
Certified Copy of Sale Deed 

Bangalore-560042 

Flat no.601 ,Sea Gull Cooperative Photocopy: Registration Receipt. 
Housina Societv Ltd ffi&C) Sherlv 
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Address of Immovable Property Status of Document Received 

Rajan Road, Rizvi Complex, Off Carter 

Road Bandra (West) Mumbai -400 061 

Sea Crest Cooperative Housing Society 

Ltd Plot No-63,64, Seven Bungalows, 
Photocopy of Agreement 

Jay Prakash Road, Versova Andheri 

(west) Mumbai - 400 061 

Flat No(s) 202, Mount Unique Co-op. 

Hsg Soc. Ltd. 25, Mount Mary Road, Photocopy of Agreement 

Bandra (West) Mumbai-400 050 

Flat No. 23A, Meherina Cooperative 

Housing Society Ltd. Photocopy of Agreement and Share 

Plot No. C-5 l , Nepean Sea Road Certificate 

Mumbai-400 026 

Flat at BL Housing Complex Plot No. 

I-I & 1-2, Sector 2, Phase II, Nerul, Photo Copy of MOU with CIDCO 

Navi Mumbai-400 706 

House No(s) H2 & H3, Bokadveera, 
Photocopy of Registered Agreement 

Uran, Mumbai 

Balmer Lawrie 

Grease and Lubricants Division, 149, 

Jackeria Bunder Road, Sewree (W) 

Mumbai-400 01 5 

Survey Report and Photocopy of Agreement 

Balmer Lawrie 

Industrial Packaging Division, 149, 

Jackeria Bunder Road, Sewree (W) 

Mumbai-400 01 5 

Balmer Lawrie 

Survey No 2011l,Sayli Village, Photocopy of Agreement 

Silvassa-396 230 

Balmer Lawrie 

Survey No 23/ IIl ,Kbadoli Village, Photocopy of Agreement 

Silvassa-396230 

Balmer Lawrie Photocopy of Lease Agreement 

-=-
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Address of Immovable Property Status of Document Received 

5,1. N. Heredia Marg, Ballard Estate, 
Mumbai-400 001 

Ground Floor, Sadashiv Sadan, Andheri 
Photocopy of Agreement 

(E), Mumbai-400 099 

Plot No. F-9/5, Additional Paralganga 
Industrial Area, Chawane, Taluka- Photocopy of Agreement 

Panvel, Raigad District, Maharashtra 

Grease Division P-43, Hide Road 
Certified Copy of Indenture 

Extention, Kolkata-700 088 

Scope Complex & Noida Housing 
Complex Buildings, nO! registered in Not registered in the name of the company 

the name of the company 

ll . According to the information and explanation given to us the inventory of the Company 

except goods in transit has been physically verified during the year by the management. 

In our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of inventory the frequency of 

verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification; 

111. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or 

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 

2013. Accordingly clauses 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii) (c) of the Order are not applicable; 

IV. According to the information and explanations given to liS, the Company has not given 

any loans, guarantees, securities or made Investments which is required to be complied 

with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 2013; 

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed 

deposits as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company; 

VI. We have broadly reviewed the cost record maintained by the Company in respect of the 

products of Grease and Lubricants, Industrial Packaging & Leather Chemicals where, 

pursuant to the Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with companies 

(Cost records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government 

under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, 

the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 

examination of the cost record with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 

complete. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and 



DUTIA Continuation Sheet 

SARKAR & COMPANY 
CHARTERED ACCO UNTA NTS 

explanations given to us, the central government has not prescribed the maintenance of 

cost records for any other product of the Company; 

VJl. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 

Company examined by us, in respect of statutory dues: 

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 

including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and 

Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 

with the appropriate authorities; 

b. The disputed statutory dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax and Central Excise 

aggregating to Rs.I0,244.37 lakhs (P. Y Rs.1O,918.67 Lakhs) have not been 

deposited as mentioned in Note No.40.2(a) to the accounts read with annexure 

"A" showing the amounts involved and the forum where the dispute is pending; 

Vlll. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institutions or 

Banks as at the Balance Sheet date and there is no debenture holder; 

IX. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) . The company has availed term loan in connection with 

TCW Patalganga unit and recorded in the books of the concerned SBU. 

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or 

employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

Xl. The provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act does not apply 

to a Government company vide notification no. GSR 463 E dated 05 June 2015. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable. 

Xli. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

XUI. According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the 

company examined by us, the Company has been able to comply with the requirements 

of Section 177 in respect of composition of Audit Committee. All transactions of the 

Company with related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Companies Act, 

2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statement in 

Note No. 40.19 (i) and (ii) as required by the applicable accounting standard 

XIV. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting 

under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 

year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or 

persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
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XVI. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 28 May 2019 For Dutta Sarkar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 303114£) 

M - ~.1~ · 
Mainak Chakrabarti 

Partner 

M.No.063052 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph leg) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 

section of our report to the Members of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited of even date) 

Report on t he Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Balmer Lawrie & 

Company Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the 

standalone fmancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over fmancial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal fmancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company' s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

fmancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opnuon on the internal fmancial controls over fmancial 

reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 

prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal fmancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal fmancial controls system over fmancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
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audit of internal fmancial controls over fmancial reporting included obtaining an understanding 

of internal fmancial controls over fmancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fInancial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffIcient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the internal fmancial controls system over fmancial reporting of 

the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal fmancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of 

fmancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

fInancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the fmancial statement 

Limitations ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal fmancial controls over fmancial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal fInancial controls over fmancial reporting to future periods are subject 

to the risk that the internal fInancial control over fInancial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 



DUTIA Continuation Sheet 

SARKAR & COMPANY 

CHARTERED ACCOU NTAN TS 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fmancial controls system over 

financial reporting. Though certain areas require further strengthening, it does not have any 

material effect on the internal fmancial controls. The internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2019, based on the internal control over 

fmancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reponing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 28 May 2019 For Dutta Sarkar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 303114E) 

M '~~~ ' 
Mainak Chakrabani 

Partner 

M.No.0630S2 
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ANNEXURE 'C' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 on "Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" to the 

Independent Auditor's Report of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited for the year ended 31 

March 2019 

SI.No 

I. 

2. 

3. 

CAG's Directions Our Observation 

Whether the company has system The accounting 

10 place to process all the transactions are 

accounting transactions through IT processed and 

system? If yes, the implications of documented through 

process1Og of accounting SAP. There are 

transactions outside IT system on standalone 

integrity of the accounts along intermediary 

with the financial implications, if software"s to capture 

any, may be stated the transactions 

related to certain 

functions certain 

SBU's (for example 

Mid Office software 

for Tours and Travel). 

The transactions from 

these standalone 

software's are posted 

in SAP for accounting 

purpose. 

Whether there is any restructuring No such case 

of an existing loan or cases of 

waiver/write off of 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a 

lender to the company due to the 

company's inability to repay the 

loan? If yes, the fmancial impact 

may be stated 

Impact on Financial 

statements 

Nil 

Nil 

Whether the 

received/receivable for 

funds The 

specific been 

company has The accounting for 

sanctioned a the same has been 
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SI.No CAG's Directions Our Observation 
Impact on Financial 

statements 

schemes from Central/State Grant - in -Aid of done with regard to 

agencies were properly accounted Rs.7.83 crores from IND AS 20 

for utilised/utilised as per terms the Ministry of Food "Accounting for 

and conditions? List the cases for Processing Industries Government Grants 

deviation (MoFPI) for setting and Disclosure of 

up integrated cold Government 

chain facilities at Rai, Assistance". 

Haryana and Accordingly, the same 

Patalganga m has been treated as 

Maharashtra. Against deferred income to be 

the same the company apportioned over the 

has been disbursed useful life of the 

Rs .1.81 crores for assets . During the 

specified assets 

purchased [for 

Pa/a/ganga, 

Maharashtra} as 

according to the 

scheme document 

the fund is disbursed 

current fmancial year 

a sum of Rs .12.16 

Lakhs has been 

credited to the income 

m the statement of 

profit and loss 

account based on the 

upon utilisation for accounting standard. 

specific purpose. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 28 May 2019 For Dutta Sarkar & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 303114E) 

M - ~JL .,, ~ ' 
Mainak Chakrabarti 

Partner 

M,No.063052 
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ASSETS 
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la) Property, Plant.nd Equipment 

tb) (apital work· ln·protrtU 

tel Inveltment Propert ies 
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le i Flnanci.1a1 Au eu 

'" 
In¥ellments 

(ii) Loans 
liiilOtho!n 

(r) ~f t1' r ed lax aswts INet) 

III Non Financial Aswts • Others 

(11 Current Ass.h 

(a) Inventor ies 

(b) FJnancllll Assets 

(0 Tr~dt R ~e lyablt$ 

(II) (ath Ii e ~sh equivalent' 

(Iiil Othl!r ilank Bal~nc:es 

(lvl Loans 

(VI Others 

(e l Non Financ:1aI Asset s · Others 

EQUITY A.HD LlAIllLlTIES 

Eqllltv 
(.1 EQUity ShIIre Capital 

(bl Otlter EQUIW 
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lIABltlTIES 

(1) Moo·Current LI.blllttes 

(I) F~1aI L~Mltles 

'" 
BorrowkltS 

(iii Trade Payables 
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(b) Provisions 
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(d) Non Financial liabilities · Others 
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(II Borrowlnts 
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(B) Total QUUI.ndl,. dues of aed ilors other than 
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(Ill) Other Financi.1a\ liabilit ies 

(b l Non Financial liabil it ies - Others 

(el Provlslom 

(d l Current T.x liabilities (Net ) 

"" 
Note No. " .... -;;:; ""'" "~i. 

2 l',1>67.82 )9.~80 , OJ 

1\.6.~,~a 1,)2~.5) , IIU9 113.5-4 

• )91.08 527.21 

5 H,006.80 13,8<10,66 

• ~20 . 89 ~28 . 29 

7 175. 21 55-4.6' 

• -, ),75'.0) , 

" 1~,2') . ]1 1),66). )2 

" 17,6 19.21 17.117.ll 

" 
~,61 ~.05 5,059.07 

" 
19,O71.ll 43,1107.$6 

" l,lO4.1>6 1,~67 . 17 

" 14,715.11 17,110.18 .. S,n1.B 6,9010.62 

" 11.~OO.25 1I,~( X I.25 .. 1,18,620. 19 1,1~, 185.89 

" 1,060.9~ 

" -

" -
" 5.~2 .... 81 

20 ~,OI • . 48 J.771,~8 

• 919. 2~ 818.57 

" ".89 7.06 

" 306.11 )14.)5 

J2.~.16 199.31 

" 28,931.50 12,07""'1 
22 
21 12,951. 10 lI,9~5,81 

" 5,20.87 5,9~8.1~ 

25 1,638.$6 5003 
26 1,790.79 2,178.19 

• 

~'2~/ Summary of ~ltnIfklnt aceountl,. poIldes • 
The KCOI"I'IPIIIlVk"o notes .re tnte-aral PIfI of the flrllncW 

This" the s"lfol\Ce Sheet referred to In our report of eYt1'1 elite , crt/ \.QY" 
As PI!r our report IIU«hed 

, 
For OtJu. Sarklr a Co 

Chartered Ac(ounUnts 

M~Ci:::Ia~: ' 
CA. Mlllllk Ch.krabartl 

P.ruler 

Membcnhlp No. 06105Z 

1(01 .... 1 •• 28th Maw, 2019 

M.1nag1ns Director 

DlrectOl"(Flnanc.) 

a Chief Finlnetal 
alike, 

Secret<1/y 
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Significanl Accounling Po licies aud ol her exp lanatory information 10 the Standa lone financial 

st;ltcmclIlS for the year ended 31 March 2019 

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INO AS 

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (the ';Company") is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in 

diversi tied business wi th presence in both manufacturing and serv ice bus inesses. The Company is 

engaged in the business of lndustrial Packaging, Greases & Lubricants, Leather Chemicals, 

Logistic Services and Infrastructure, Refinery & Oil Field and Travel & Vacation Services in India. 

The company is a Government company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the 

provisions of Com pal lies Act appUcabic in Ind ia, its shares are li sted on recognized stock exchange 

of India. 

Basis of PI'cpllnltion 

The standalone financial statements have been preparcd in accordance with the Companies 

( Indian Accoun ting Standards) Rules 201 5 as amended issued by Mi nistry of Corporate Affairs 

and other re levant provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13. The Company has llllifonnly applied 

the Hccoullting policies during the period presented. The Company's financial statements are 

prepared in accordance with and comply i.n all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards 

(IJld AS). Unless otherwise stated , all amounts arc stated in lacs o f Rupees. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as curren t or non-current as per the Company's 

normal operat ing cycle and other criteria set out in the sched ule III to the Companies Act, 20 13. 

Based on the nature of products and the time between Ihe acquis ition of assets for processing and 

their rea lisation in cash and cash eq ui va lents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 

12 months for the purpose of current I non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

The preparation of financial statements requ ires the use of accounting estimates which, by 

de finiti on, mayor may not equal the actual resu lts. Management also needs to exercise judgemen t 

in app ly ing the Company 's accounting policies. 

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 st March nrc aut horised and approved 

fo r issue by the Board of Directors. 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNfFfCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Standalone financia l statements have been pre pared using the accounting po l.ieies and 

measurement basis summarized below. 

1.1 Histol"ical cost cOllvention 

The financial statements have been prepared o n a historical cost basis, except for the following 

assets and liabili ties which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount: 

• Celtain financial assets and li abi lities, measured at fair va lue (refer account ing policy 

regard ing financ ia l instruments), 

• Defined benefit plans, plan assets measured at fai r value 



Sign ificnnl Accouuling Policies and olher explanatory information to the Standa lone financial 

slale ments for the year ended 31 March 2019 

1.2 Property, plant and cquipmcnt 

Items of Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost of acquis ition inclusive of any other 

cost attri butable to bringing the same to the ir working condition. PropcI1y, plant and equipment 

manufactured Iconstructed in house are valued at actual cost of raw materials, conversion cost 

and other related costs. 

Cost of Icasehold land hav ing lease tenure over th irty (30) years is alll0l1ised over the period of 

lease. Leases having tenure of thirty (30) yea rs or less arc treated as operating lease and disclosed 

under prepaid expense. 

Expend iture incurred during const ruction of capita l projects includ ing re lated pre-productiol1 

expenses is treated as Capita l Work-in- Progress and in case of trans fer of the project to another 

body, the accounti ng is done on the basis of IeI' illS of transfer. 

Machine Spares whose use is ilTegular is class ified as Capital Spares. Such capital spares arc 

capitalised as per Plant , Property & equipment 

Ga ins or losses arising on the disposal of propelty, plant and equipment are determined as the 

difference between the di sposal proceeds and the carrying amount orthe assets and are recognized 

in profit or loss wi thin 'other income' or 'other expenses' respecti vely. 

Depreciation on Properly, Plant & Equipment other than continuolls process plant is provided Oll 

pro-rata basis following straight line method considering estimated usefu l life at 25 years, based 

on technica l review by a Chartered Engineer. Depreciation on cont inuous process plant is as per 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 201 3. 

Deprec iation on celtain Prope rty, Plant & Equipment, which have been refurbished/ upgraded 

and put to 1'l1l1hel' use are being depreciated on a pro rata basis considering their reassessed 

res idlla l llserlll life which is not more than the life spec ified in Schedule II oflhe Companies Act, 

20 13. 

Depreciation on tangible assets other than Plant and Machinery, is provided on pro-rata basis 

following straight line method over the estimated useflil lives of the asset or over the li ves of the 

assets prescribed under Schedule 11 oflhe Companies Act, 2013, whichever is lower. Based on 

internal rev iew, the lower est imated useful li ves of the following assets are found j ustifiable 

compared to the lives mentioned in Schedule U oftlle Companies Act 20 13: 

Asse t category 

!\lobilc Phones and Portable Personal Computers 
Assels given 10 emplo}'ees tinder fumirure e<ltlipmenl scheme 

Electrical ilems like air conditioners, fans, refriger-Hors etc. 
So f~ , Photocopier, Fax machines, Motor Cars & !\lachine Spares 

The residual va lues of all assets are taken as N IL. 

Estim ated useful life (itl yeats) 

2 years 

5 years 
6.67 years 

5 years 



dign ificant Accounting Policies and other explanatory inrormation to the Standalone financial 

statemcnts for the year ended 31 March 2019 

1.3 Investment pr·operty 

Property that is held for long-tem1 rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not 
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment propelty. Investment property is measured 

initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable, borrowing costs. 

Subsequent expendihu·c is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only whm it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. AU other repairs and maintenance costs arc expensed when 

incurred. 

When part of an investment property is rep laced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognised. Addit ionally, when a property given on J"ent is vacated and the managements 

intention is to use the vacated p0l1iol1 for the purpose of its own business needs, Lllvestment 

Propelties are reclassified as Buildings. 

Lnvestment properties are depreciated using the stra ight-line method over their estimated useful 

lives which is consistent with the useful lives followed for depreciating Property, Plant and 

Equipment. 

1.4 Financiallnstr·umcnts 

Recognition, initio! measurement and DE recognition 

Financial assets and financial liabil ities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the ftnancial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted 
by transaction costs, except for those carr ied at fair value tlll"ough profit or loss (FYTP L) which 

are measured initiall y at fair value. Subsequent measurement of finan cial assets and financial 

liabili ties is described below. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the tinancial 

asset expire, or when the flllancial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A 

financial liabi lity is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Classlficatiol1 and subsequent measurement offinandal assets 

for the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are c lassified into the following 

categories upon init ial recognition: 

• Amortised cost 

• fmancial assets at fVTPL 

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to rev iew for impairment. 

Amo1'1ised cost 

A financial assel shall be measured at amortised cost using effective i . st rates if both of the 

following conditions arc met: iJ',R & Co 
'<- . 

0" 



Sign ifi cant Accountin g Policies and other explanatory infouuatioll to the Standa lone financial 

statemen ts for the year ended 31 March 2019 

a) The fmalleial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 
in order to co llect contractual cash flows; and 

b) The cont ractlml terms of tile financial asset give ri se on speci fied dates to cash flows that are 

sole ly payments of principal and interest on the pri nc ipal amount outstanding. 

The Company's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category 

of fInancia l instruments. 

A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised all fmallcial assets carried at amol1ised 
cost. Expected loss on individually significant rece ivables arc cons idered for impaitment when 

they are past due and based on Company's hi storical counterpm1y default rates and forecast of 

ma cro~eco J1oll1i c fac tors. Receivables that arc not considered to be individually significant are 

segmented by reference to the industry and region of the counterparty und other shared cred it 
risk characteristics to evaluate the expected credit loss. The expected credit loss estimate is then 

based on recent hi storical counterparty default rates foJ' each identified segmcnt. The Company 

has a di versified portfo lio of trade receivables from its different segments. Every business 
segment of the Company has calculated provision using a single loss rate for its receivables using 

its own historical trends and the nature of its rece ivables. There are no universa l expected loss 

percentages for the Company as a whole. The Company genera ll y considers it s receivables as 

impaired when they are 3 years past due. Considering the hi storica l trends and market 

information, the Company estimates that the provision computed on its trade receivables is 110t 
materially different from the amount computed using expected credit loss method prescribed 

under Tnd AS 109. Since the amount of provision is not material for the Company as a whole, no 
disclosures have been given in respect of expected credit losses. 

Derivative financia l instruments are ca11'ied at FVTPL. 

l,S Invcntol'ics 

a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net real isable value. For this purpose, the basis 

of ascertainment of cost of the diiIerent types of inventories is as under-

b) Raw materials & trading goods, stores & spare parts and materials for hlt'nkey projects 

on the basis of weighted average cost. 
c) Work-in~prog r ess on the basis of weighted average cost ofraw materials and conversion 

cost upto the relative stage of completion where it can be reliably estimated. 

d) Finished goods on the basis of weighted average cost of raw materials. conversion cost 

and other related costs. 

e) Loose Tools are written-off over the economic life except ilems costing upto ~ 10000 
which are charged off in the year of issue. 

1,6 Governmcnt g.'ants 

a) Grants from the goverrunent are recognised at their fair va lue whcre there is a reasonable 

assurance that the grant will be received and the Company wi ll comply with all attached 

conditions. 



Significant Accounting Policies a nd other explanatory information to the Standalone financial 

statements for the year end ed 31 March 2019 

1.101ntnngible llssets 

a) Expenditure incurred for acquiring intangible assets like software costing ~ 500,000 and 

above and license to use software per item of ~ 25,000 and above, from which economic 

benefits will flow over a period of time, is amorti sed over the estimated useful life of the 
ilsset or five years, whichever is earl ie r, from the time the in tangible asset stm1s providing 

the economic bcnefit. 
b) Brand value arising on acquisition arc recognised as an asset and are am0l1ised on a 

straight line basis over 10 years. 
c) Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested for impairment annually. 

d) In other cases, the expenditure is charged to revenue in the year in which the expenditure 

is incllrred. 

1.11 Accounting for Research & Development 

a) Revenue Expenditure is shown under Primary Head of Accounts with the total of 
stich expend iture being disclosed in the Notes. 

b) Capital expenditure relati ng to research & dcvelopment is treated in the same way as 

other fixed assets. 

1.12 Treatment of Grant / Subsidy 

a) Revenue grant/subs idy in respect of research & devetopment expenditure is set 

off against respective expend iture. 

b) Capital grant/subsidy aga inst speci lic fixed assets is set off against the cost of those 

fixed assets. 

c) When grant! subsidy is rece ived as compensa tion for ex tra cost associated wi th 
the establishment o r manufacturing uni ts or cannot be related otherwise to 

any pal1icular lixed assets the grant/subsidy so received is credited to capita l 

reserve. On expiry of the sti pu lated period set out in the scheme or grant/subsidy 

the same is transferred from capita l reserve to general reserve. 

d) Revenue grant in respect of organisation of ce11ain events is shown under Sundry 

Income and the related expenses there against under normal heads of expend iture. 

1.13 lmlJairment of assets 

An assessment is made at each Balance Sheet dat.e to determine whether there is an indication of 

impairment of the carrying amount of the fixed assets. If any indication exists, an asset's 

recoverable amount is estimated. An impai rment loss is recognised whenever the catrying amount 

of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. 



Significan t Accounting Policies and other explanatory inrOmllltiofl to the Standliione financial 

statements ror the year end ed 31 March 2019 

Value in lise is the present value of the future cash [lows expected to be derived from an asset or 

cash-generating unit using an appropriate discount factor. 

1.14 Income taxes 

Tax expense recognized in profi t or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and curren t tax not 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax is payablc on taxable profit , which difTers from profit or loss in the financial 

sta tement s. Calculation of cll rrent tax is based on tax rates and lax laws Ihat have been enacted o r 

substantivcly enacted by the end ofthe reporting period. 

Deferred income ta xes are calculated lI sing tbe liability method on temporary differences between 

the c8 ITying amounts of assets and liabilities and thei r tax bascs. Howcver, de ferred tax is not 

provided 0 11 the initial recognition of an asset or liabili ty unless the re lated transaction is a 

business combination or affects tax o r accounting profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

ca lculated , withollt discounting, at tax rates that are expccted to apply to their respective period 

of rea lizat ion, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 

pe riod . 

Deferred ta x asset (,DTA ') is recognized fo r a ll deductible temporary differences, carry forward 

of unused tax credit and unused lax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxab le profit will 

be avai lable against wh ich deductible temporary difference, and the carry forward of unused lax 

credits and unused tax losses can be utilized or to the extent of taxable temporary differences 

except: 

Where the DTA rel at ing to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liabi lity in a transaction that is not a business combination; and at 

the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

in respect of deductib le temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, 

branches and assoc iates, and interests in joint arrangements, to the ex tent that , and on ly to the 

extent that, it is probable that the temporary differcnce will reverse in the foreseeable future; 

and taxable profit will be ava ilable against which the temporary difference can be utilized. 

This is assessed based 011 the Company's forecast of ruture operating resu lts, adjusted for 

significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss 

or credit. 

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or 

expense in profit or loss, except where they re late to items that are recognized in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also 

recognized in other comprehensive income or equi ty. respecti ve ly. 



Sign ificant Acco un ti ng Po licics and othcr explanalory inrormation to the Standa lo ne fimmcia l 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

1.15 Leases 

Finance leases 

Management app lies j udgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whelher it 
transfers substan tia ll y a ll the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset. Key 

factors considered include the length of the lease term in relat ion to the economic li fe of the asset, 
the present value of the minimum lease payments in relation to the asset's fair va lue, and whether 

the Company obtains ownership of the asset a t the end of the lease tcrlll. Where the Company is 

a lessee in th is type or arrangement, the related asset is recognized at the incept ion of the lease at 

the fair va lue of the leased asset or, if lower, the prescnt va lue of the lease payments plus 
incidental payments, ir any. A corresponding amount is recognized as a finance lease liability. 

The assets held under finance leases are del>reciated over their estimated lIsefu l lives or lease 
term, whichever is lower. The corresponding 1i1l<1I1ee lease liabi li ty is reduced by lease payments 

net o f finance charges. The interest element of lease payments represents a constant propo rtion 

of the olltstanding capi tal ba lance and is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period 

of the lease. 

Operaling leases 

Al l other leases are treated as operating leases. Lease rentals fo r operat ing leases is recognised in 
Profit and loss on a straight- line basis over the lease tenn unless the ren tals are structured to 

increase in line wi th expected general inflation to compensate for the expected in.llationary cost 

Increases. 

1.16Revcnuc recognition 

Revenue is measured as the fair value of cons ideration received or receivable, excluding Goods 

and Services tax. 

Sale qi goods 

When the control over goods is transferred to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists 

regarding the amount of consideration that is derived from the sa le o f goods. 

Services rendered: 

a) When control over the serv ice rendered in full or pmi is recognized by the buyer and no 

significant uncertainly exists regarding the amount of consideration that is derived from 
rendering the services. 

b) In case of project activities: As per the percentage of completion method after progress of 

work to a reasonable ex tent for which control can be transferred to the buyer. 

of another party, it 



Sig nificant Accou nting Policies and other explanatory information to HIe Standa lone financial 

smtements for the year ended 31 Marcil 2019 

Othcr income: 

a) lnterest on a time proportion basis using the effective Interest rate method 

b) Dividend from investments in shares on establishment of the Company' s right to receive. 

c) Royal ties are recognised on accrua l basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant 

agrcement 

d) Export incentives are recogn ised as income only al the lime when there is no significant 
uncertainty as to its measurabi lity and ultimate realisation. 

For determin ing the transact ion price, the Company measures the revenue in respect of each 
perfonnance obligation of a contract at its relativc standalone sel ling price. 

The company accounts for vo lume discou nts and pricing incentives to a buyer as a reduct ion 

of revenue based on the ratable allocation of the discounts/incenti ves to each of the underly ing 

perfo rmance obligation that corrcsponds to the progress by the buyer towards earning the 
discount! incent ive. 

Term of returns, rcfunds etc. are agreed with the buyers on a Case to case basis upon mutuall y 
accepted terms and condit ions. The impact of returns and refunds is negligible on the turnover 

of the company. 

Asa pract ica l expedient, as given in I.nd AS 11 5, the Company has not disclosed the remaining 

perfonnance obligation related disclosures fo r contracts where the revenue recognized from 

the sati sfaction of the performance obligation cOl1'esponds directly with the value to the 

customer of the entity's perfOlmance completed to date especially in relation to those 
contracts where invo icing is on time and material basis. 

Significant payment te/'ms: 

Payment is genera ll y received either in cash or based on credit terms. Credit tenns are 

agreed to wi th the buyers and is generally in line wi th the respective ind ustry standards. 

1.1 7 Borl'owing Costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly aurib utable to the acquisition, constructi on 

or production of a qualifying asset are capita li sed during the period of ti me that is required to 

complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale . Qualifying assets are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready [or their intended use 01' sale. Other 

Borrowing Costs are recognised as expense in the period i.n which they are incurred. 

1.18 Cash Flow Statement 



Sig nifi cant Accounting Policies and other explanato ry informnlio n to the Standalo ne financ ial 

statements for the yeltr ended 31 March 2019 

associated with investing or financing cash n ows. The cash nows from operating, investing and 

financing activities of the company are segregated. 

1.19 Employee Benefits 

(i) Short term obligations 

Liab ilities for wages and salaries inctuding non-monetary benefi ts that are expected to be settled 

wholly wi thin 12 months aner the end of the period in which the employees render the related 

serv ice are recognised at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities arc settl ed. The 

liabili ties are presented as current employee benefit obligation in balance sheet 

(ii) Post-employment obligations 

Defi ned Contribution plans 

Provident Fund : the company transfers providen t fund contributions to the t1'llst registered for 

maintenance of tile fu nd and has no fUliher obligations on this account. These are recogn ised 

as and when they are due. 

SuperalUlUation Fund : the company contributes a sum equi valent to 8% of eligible 

employees ' sa lary to the fund admin istered by the trustees and managed by Life Insurance 

Corporat ion of lndia (LIC) and has no further obligati ons on this account. These are 

recognised as and when Ihey are due. 

Defined l3enefit plans 

Gratuity and Post Ret irement Benefit plans - The defined benefit obligation is calculated 

annuall y by actuary using Ihe projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains and losses 

arising from experience adjustments and changes in actllRl'ial assumpt ions are recognised in 

the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included In 

reta ined earnings in the statement of changes in equity. Changes in present value of the 

defined benefit obligation result ing from plan amendments or cu rt ailments are recognised 

immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

(iii) Other long tenll employee benefi t obligations 

The li abilities fo r leave encashment and long service awards are not expected to be settled 

wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the re lated 

service. They are measured annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re­

measurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognised in the period in which they occur in pro fit or loss. 

1.20 .PI'iOI' pel'iod Items 

Materia l prior period items which arise in the current period as a result of error or omission in 

""', ."' R ~&"" "· e preparation o f prior period's financial statement are corrected retrospecti ve ly in the first set of 

~-<-'(o. C'q,; cial statements approved for issue after their di scovery by: 

o ~ j 
o • .§', 

• Chill ,elf!> 



";ignificant Accountiug Policies and other ex plam'llory iuformation to rhe Standalone financial 

s tatements fot the year ended 31 Matc h 2019 

a) restating tbe comparative amounts for the pnor period(s) presented In which the error 

occurred; or 

b) If the error OCCUlTed before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances 

of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented. 

C) Any items exceedi ng rupees twenty five lacs (~25 Lacs) shall be considered as material prior 

period item. 

d) Retrospective restatement sball be done except to the ex ten t that it is impract icable to 

determine cither the period specific effects or the cumulat ive effect of the error. When it is 

impracticable to determ ine the period specific effects of an error 011 comparative information 

[or one or more prior periods presented, the company shall restate the opening balances of 

assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior ror whicb retrospecti ve restatement is 

practicable (wllich may be the current period). 

1.21 Earnings per shal'e 

Basic earnings per share are ca lculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other 

comprehensive income) for the year attri butable to equity shareholders by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The we ighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events sllch as bonus issue, share sp lits or 

consolidation that have changed the number of equity shares outstand ing without a change in 

corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the 

net profit or loss (excluding other comprehensive income) for the year attri butable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year arc 

acljusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares. 

~~~v. 

CA. Mainak Chakrabarti 
Partner 
Membership No. 063052 
Kolkata, 28th May, 2019 Chairman a Man 

Director 

I( -,Qa-
IQ./YIY"Y 

~~ ~ · lQ 
k~ 

Directors Secretary 



Bal m ~r Lawrie &. Co. Ltd. 

Now to th~ Financial Statements for the y~~ r ~nded 31 March 2019 

Note No 2. PrODertv. PlAnt and EQulDm~n t (II: In t..cs) 
Property, PLint.od Equipment 

P.rticul.r5 Land· l~nd . 8uildirll &. Plant &. Spar~ for II Eleanal Furniture T~IH' , Tu"-ll, Tanks Ub Rall~y Vehicles T ... , 

FrHhold Leasehold Sidlnp Milchlnery Plant &. Insullation &. (: fittinp Accounti,. .". Equipment Sidinp 
Milchinery Equipment MIIchlne and Ml$ceUaMOUS 

Office Equ lp~ 

Equipment 

Gross 810ck 

Balance u at 1 April 2018 2,419.41 3,203.81 15,219.4) 17,157.99 29.06 2,870.27 ""." 1,841.31 1,804.58 621.68 238.33 376.47 46, 590.40 

Additions · 5n.n 854.06 4.71 298.74 25.64 232.67 266.96 90.59 37&.11 26.51 2,748.77 

Inter Asset .6.dJustment · . . . . . . 
Disposal of assets 0.17 SO.57 12.55 60.62 34.96 15.85 1. 55 0.16 40.11 216.54 

GrO$! 810ck alit MIIr 31 2019 2,419.41 3,203.81 15,792.03 17,961.48 21.22 3,108.39 798.73 2,058.13 2,069.99 712.12 614.44 362.87 49,1 22.64 

A.ccumulate-d d~reciation 

Balance as at 1 AprH 2018 · 189.47 1,200.11 2,509.96 20.04 9-:7.54 229.16 942.76 463.87 222.64 62.82 321.00 7,110.37 

Depreciation chtIrae for the year · 63.53 415.28 846.69 2.82 375.82 101.13 364.39 203.02 84.01 29.74 28.16 2,514.59 

Impairment 5.82 13.54 . . . · 19.3 6 

Inter Asset Adjustment · · . . 0.34 (0.34) · . 

Disposal of assets · · 0.13 40.87 12.55 57.17 28.05 14.n 1.16 0.16 · 14 .... 189.50 

Accumul.te-d Deprecbtion as.t Milr 31 2019 - 253.00 1,621.08 3,329.32 10.31 1,266.53 302.24 1,292.04 665.73 306.49 92.56 315.52 9,454.82 

Net 810ck .s It MIIr 31 2019 2,419.41 2,950.81 14,170.95 14,632.16 10.91 1,841.86 496.49 766.09 1,404.26 405.63 521.88 47.35 39,667.82 

Net Block lIS It Mar 31 2018 2,419.41 3,014.304 14,019.32 14,648.04 9.02 1,922.73 578.89 898.55 1,340.71 399.04 175. 51 54.47 39,480.03 



8almer Lawrie Ii Co. Ltd. 

Notes to the F!nancia! Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Hote No.3. 

!Ilvnlm..,t P'op!fU., 

GrO~~ Clrryintl Amount lo..m.d COlt) 

As at 1 AprIl 2017 

Add!tlom 

Ohposah/adJu)<lmeol;, 

Net I ~t Proper ty · Reclassified 

B&!arn:a".t 11 Mar<:h 10 18 

Additions 

~lsladJuUllM!<lU 

Net !n'll!SUllt'lll Propeoty ' Re<: til S~$I1ed 

Ollance II at 31 March 2019 

Aceor"u latud OQprOKlation 

As"t 1 Apo!! 10 17 

Depreclatfol! char!lll for I"" yfS'I< 

Dlsposalll.dJustmeots for I~ year 

lrt¥eStmmt Propefty · ReclMsllled 

Ilalarn:e as at 31 March 2018 

Depredation clIafie for the year 

DIsposaIs/adJust",eo" for the year 

InwslmI!nt PropeI ty - Reclassified 

1I.I.oc ••• at 31 March 2019 

Net book val ...... t 31 March 1019 

H ~ book vill .. e is ili lt Molr eh 2018 

(l!: !n Lacs ) 

66.14 

52.27 

118.~1 

118.~ 1 

4.26 

1.45 

10.84) 

4.87 

2.16 

7.01 

11 1.39 

11l.5~ 

InYt'Slmef1t propefty is re<:ognlsed and valUl'd using cost model.Depreclatloo Is calCUlated using straight line method on the basis 

of usclullile of assets 

(I) Contractual obligations 

There Is no contractual commitmen t for the acquisition 01 Illvestmellt Property. 

(II) Capitalised borrowing cost 

No borrowing costs were capitalised during the year ended) 1 March 2019 or previous ended 31 MIIrch 2018. 

(HI) Restric tions 

There are no restrictions on remittance of locome receipts or receipt of proceeds from disposals. 

(Iv) AmoLlnt recognised in profit Hnd ioss for Investment properties 

Ren tal incOl'J'lC 

Less: Direc t operatlll!l expenses that genera ted rental iocome 

Len: Direc t operating expenses that dkl not generated rentallocome 

Profltl (Loss) from leasina of investment properties 

('I) Leasing arranBcments 

31 March 101 9 

144040 

201.01 

103.78 

(60.3&) 

(Ii! in Lacs) 

l1 March 2018 

176.13 

47.-« 

96.79 

11.90 

Certain Investment propefties are leased to tenants under loog-term operating Ie'a~ with rentals payable monthly. These are all 

caoce Uabh ~ leases. 

('Ii) Fair valu. 

PartlcLllars 

Fair value 

J1 ...... rch 2019 

" , 168.59 

(I!! In Lacs) 

11 ...... rth 2018 

4,168.59 

iI) current prices in an acllve market for properties of di ffere nl nalure 0( recent prices of similar properties III less active 

markets, adjusted to reflect those differences. 

b) discounted cHsh flow proJectlons based on reliable estimates of future cash flows. 

c) restrictions on remittance of Income receipts or receipt of proceeds from disposals. 

d) capitalised Income proJectiolls based UPOIl 11 property's estimated ne t market Income, and 1\ capitalisation rate derived from 

un aMlysis of market evidencc. 

e) The fair values of Investment prOperties have been delermlned by external valuer. The main Inpllts lIsed are rental growth 

rates, expected v(l(aocy rates, terminal yield and discount rates based 00 Industry data. 



Balmer L,lwrle & Co. ltd. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.4 (if in Lacs) 

Intangibles Assets 

Goodwill Softwares Brand Value Total 

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 1 April Z017 689.32 646.24 332.63 1,668.20 

Additions 98.94 - 98.94 

Disposals / ad juslmenls 0.01 - 0.01 

Balance as at 31 March 2018 689 .32 745.19 332.63 1,767.15 

AddiUons 18.96 - 18.96 

Disposalsl adjustments - - - -
8a lance as at 31 March 2019 689.32 764. 15 332.63 1,786.11 

Accumu lated Amortization 

Balance as at 1 April 2017 - 273.28 76.00 349.28 

Amortization charge for the year 163.28 38.00 201.28 

Disposals/adjustments for the year - - -
Impairmenl 689.32 - 689.32 

Balance as at 31 March 2018 689.32 436.56 114.00 1,239.88 

Amortization charge for the year - 117.15 38.00 155.15 

Disposals/adjustments for the year - - - -
Impairment - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 689.32 553.71 152.00 1,395.03 

Net book value as at 31 March 2019 I - I 210.44 180.63 391.08 

Net book value as at 31 March 2018 - 308.63 218.63 I 527.27 



Balmer Lawrie 8: Co, Ltd, 

Notes to the Financial Statements (or the year e nded 31 March 2019 

Note No.5 
FIOlindal Asse ts·lnvestments (Non-Current) As at 31 March 2019 
(Unquoted, unless oth_lse stated) 

Name of the 80dy Corporate 

CAl Trade Investments 

Investment In Equity Instrumeots 
(Fully paid stated at Cost) 

m In Joint Vlmture Companies 

Salmef Lawrie ·Yan l eer ltd. 

(Ordinary Equity Shares of 1t10 eachl 

Transafe Services Ltd. 

(Ordloary Equity Shares of t iD each) 
(Carried In books at a nominal value of '{I only ) 

Less: Provision for diminution In value 

Balmer Lawrie (UAE) llC 
(Ordinary Equity Shares of AEO 1,000 each) 

PT BALMER LAWRIE INDONESIA' 

(Eqolly Shares of par value of Indonesian Rupiah (IDR) 

IO,OOONCh) 

(II) In Subsidiary Companies 

Balmer-Lawrie (UK) Ltd.' 

(Ordinary Equity Shares of GBP I each) 

Ylshakapatnam Port logIstics Park Ltd. 

(Ordinary Equity ShiiteS of t iD each) 

(III) In Associate Com~ 
AYI·Olllndia {P) Ltd. 
jOrdlnary Equity Shares of tlO each) 

Investments In Prefe[f!f]Ce Sharn 

\Fu lly paid stated at Cost) 

Transafe ServIces Ltd. 
(Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of ~10 each) 

l ess: Provision for dimlnuUoo In valUl' 

Sub Total 

(8) Other Investments 
Srldge fr. Roof Co. (IndIa) Ltd ... 

(Equity shares of ~10 each) 

Blecco Lawrie Ltd •• 

(Equity Shares of ~10 each) 

(Carried In books at a nominal value of ~1 Oflty, net off 

Provision for diminutiOn In value) 

RC Hobbytech Solutions Pvt. Ltd. 

(EQultv shares of ~1350 each) 

Kanpur ftowercyd ing Pvt. Ltd. 

(EQUity shares of ~10 each) 

Woodlands MulUspecidlity Hospitals l td. 

JEQUity Shares of ~5 each) 

Sub Total 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments a t Cost 
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments at cost 

Tota l 

No. of Shares 

86,01 ,277 

1,13.61,999 

9,800 

20,00,000 

100 

6,10,36,976 

45,00,000 

1,13,00,000 

3 ,51,591 

t ,95,900 

5,555 

626 

8,850 

• Refer details Biven i" Note No. 40.29 of the notes to accounts for the year. 

Amount 

3,385.03 

1,165.12 

(1, 165.12) 

890,99 

1,021.32 

0.06 

6,103.90 

450.00 

l.ll0.00 

(1,330.00) 

13,851.30 

1-4.01 

1-4.99 

60.05 

0.'15 

1-49.50 

14,006.80 

(It in Lilcs except mare data) 

As a t 3 1 March 20 18 

No. of Shilres AmOtJnt 

86,01,277 

1,1],61,999 

9,800 

11,91,032 

6, 10,38,918 

45,00,000 

1,13,00,000 

3,51,591 

1,95,900 

6,650 

3,385.03 

1,165. 12 

(1 ,1 65.12) 

890.99 

996.28 

8,103.90 

450.00 

1,330.00 

(1,330.00) 

13,826.20 

1<1.01 

0 .45 

14.46 

13,840.66 

1],840.66 

1],840.66 

" These Investments a re carried as fair value throU!lh Profit and loss and their carrying value approximates their fair value. 



Ba lmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.6 
Financial Assets· Loans (Non - Cur rent ) 

Loans 

Secured considered good 

Security Deposits 

Loans to Related Parties 

Key Managerial Persons (KMP) 

Other Loans 

Unsecured considered good 

Security Deposits 

Loans to Related Parties 

Transafe Services ltd 

Other Loans 

Doublful 

Security Deposits 

Loans to Related Parties 

Balmer Lawrie Van Leer ltd 

Others to Related Parties 

Others 

Provision for doubtful Loans 

Security Deposits 

Loans to Related Parties 

Others to Related Parties 

Other doubtful 

Total 

Note No,7 

Financial Assets- Others (Non- Current) 

Accrued Income 

Security Deposits 

Other Receivables 

Dues from Related Parties ·Doubtful 

Transafe Services Ltd 

Less: Provision 
Total 

As at 31 March 

2019 

240.89 

180.00 

8.25 

(S.25) 

420.89 

As at 31 March 

201 9 

690.46 

84.S1 

80.S7 

(80.87) 

775.27 

I f' in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 2018 

248.29 

1S0.00 

8.25 

(8.25) 

42S.29 

If in lacs) 
As at 31 March 2018 

496.06 

58 .55 

80.87 

(80.87) 

554.61 



Bairner Lawrie & Co. Ltd. 

Notc!! 10 dlc rin:lllcial Sialenu:nlll fot 1100: yo:at ended 31 March 20'19 

NOle No.8 

Deferred tax 

Deferred lax liability a ti!!ing on accoUJIl of : 

P roperly, Plant and Equipmelll 

Deferred tax asset aris ing on accouni of: 

Ad justment for \I ]{S e:xl>endthlI'C 

PlOvj~ion for lo~ns, debts, dcpo$its & advancc~ 

Oefillo:<l bendit pillns 

Provision for invcncoty 

Provisio n for dimunilio ll in invcstn'H!nt 

Impa;tmcnl of as~ct~ 

Od""rs 

Movemenl ill deferred tax liahilit ies/assets 

Particulars 

Property, Plant and Et]uipmcnt 

J\djuslmcnl for VRS ClIpcmliturc 

ProvL'!.ion for loans, debts, depollirs & ad\'1lnces 

Defined bellefil plans 

Provision for Inventory 

Provision fO[ dimuniuc)f) in investment 

Irl1pai rll1cnt of Us.tti 

Others 

Total 

As al 31 March 

2018 

(5,089.96) 

299.05 

2, 135.48 

7 18.82 

122.81 

863.17 

132.06 

(818.57) 

Total 

Recognised in 

Profit and Loss 

(1,067.74) 

(180.56) 

749.74 

179. 10 

17.07 

8.72 

(125.29) 

(5.17) 

(424.13) 

As at 31 March 

2019 

(6, 157.70) 

118.49 

2,885.22 

1,221.)8 

139.88 

871.89 

6.77 

(5. 17) 

(919.24) 

Itecognised in Other 

Com prehe.ns ive. 

Incom e: 

323.46 

323.46 

(l in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

(5,089.96) 

299.05 

2,135.48 

718.82 

122.81 

863. 17 

132.0(, 

(818.57) 

As at 31 March 

2019 

(6, 157.70) 

11 8.49 

2,885.22 

1,221.38 

139.88 

871.89 

6.77 

(5. 17) 

(919.24) 



Dalmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. 

Not.::s to the Financial Statements rOt th.:: yeat .:: nded 31 Match 2019 

Note No.9 

Non financial Assets· Others (Non - Current) 

Capital Advances 

Balance with Government Authorities 

Prepaid Expenses 

Advance to Conlractors ft Suppliers 

Recoverable from Government 

Others 

Note 1'10.10 

Inventories 

Total 

Raw Materials and Components 

Goods·in·transit 

Slow moving a. Non moving 

Less; Adjustment for Slow moving & Non movirrs 

Total· Raw Materials and Components 

Work in Progress 

Goods-in-transit 

Slow moving Ii Non mavin!! 

Less: Adjustment for Slow moving Ii Non moving 

Total - Work in Progress 

finished Goods 

Goods-in-transit 

Slow moving Ii Non movIng 

Less: Adlustment for Slow movinll Ii Non movinll 
Total - finished Goods 

Trading Goods 

Goods· in-transit 

Slow movin!! Ii Non moving 

Less: Adjustment for Slow moving Ii Non moving 

Total- Trading Goods 

Stores and Spares 

Goods-in-translt 

Slow moving Ii Non moving 

Less: Adjustment for Slow moving Ii Non moving 

Total- Stores and Spares 

Loose Tools 

Goods-In-transIt 

Slow moving Ii Non moving 

less: Adjustment for Slow moving Ii Non mOving 

Total - Loose Tools 

others-IW.I.P. Turn key Project) 

Goods·in·transit 

Slow moving Ii Non moving 

Less: Adjustment for Slow moving & Non moving 

Tota! - Others- IW.I.P. Turn key Project) 

Total 

As at ] 1 March 

2019 

160.84 

235.63 

3,279.27 

83.29 

],759.0] 

As at 31 March 

2019 

9,]52.96 

168.45 

(121.06) 
9,400.]5 

966.40 

966.40 

2,882.55 

120.74 

199.05 
(1 18.09) 

3,084.25 

710.82 

2]2.64 

(161.15) 

842.31 

14,293.31 

(~ in Lacs) 

As at ] 1 March 

2018 

88.11 

263.13 

3,026.88 

101.88 

3,480.00 

(~ ill Lacs) 

As at ] 1 March 

2018 

8,556.08 

1.00 
175.09 

(131 .12) 

8,601.05 

1,286.44 

1.38 

(0.75) 

1,287.07 

2,933.91 

114.22 

150.58 
(91.31) 

3,107.40 

625.03 

174.44 

(131.67) 

667.80 

13,663.32 

[Refe r to Point No. l.S of "Significant Accounting Policies" for method of valuation of inventories] 



nalmer Lawrie & Co. LId. 

NolC8 to Ihe Financial Stalcmc.ulll for Ihe yea r ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.l 1 

Trade Rece ivables 

Considered good· Secured 

Considered good· Unsecured 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in 

credit risk 

Trade Receivables· credit impaired 

less: Provision for Impairment 

Grand Total 

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less t han 

six months 

Considered good· Secured 

Considered good · Unsecured 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in 

credit risk 
Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

less: ProvisIon for Impairment 

Trade receIvables outstanding for a period 

exceeding six months 

Considered good· Secured 

Considered good· Unsecured 

Sub Total 

Trade Receivables which have significant Increase in 

credit risk 

Trade Receivabtes· credit impaired 

less: Provision for Impairment 

Total 

Note No.1 2 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash in hand 
Cheques In hand 

Sub Tota l 

Balances with Banks · Current Account 

Balance with Banks· In deposits with original 

maturity upto 3 months 

Total 

As at 31 March 

2019 

27,619.22 

1,279.07 

(1,279.07) 

27,619.22 

ZtI,928.S2 

81.90 

(81.90) 

24,928.52 

2,690.70 

1,197.17 

(1,197.17) 
2,690.70 

27,619.22 

As at 31 March 

2019 

3.75 

4,610.30 

4,614.05 

(f in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

27,127.33 

809.62 

(809.62) 

27,127.33 

25,094.08 

4.64 

(4.64) 

25,094.08 

2,033.25 

804.98 

(804.98) 

2,033.25 

27. 127.33 

(! in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

3.74 

5,055.33 

5,059.07 

There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and bank balances available with the Company. 

Note No.1 3 

Other Bank Balances 

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 
Bank Term Deposits 

Margin Money deposit with Banks 

Total 

As at 31 March 

2019 

363.19 
38,630.13 

77.79 

39,071.11 

(! in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

234.67 
42,703.13 

69.76 

43,007.56 



8;olmer L..:.wric &: Cu. Lid. 

NotCl to the Finnnci,,1 5Inl<:mcnl. fot Ihe yc:arended 31 M"rch 2019 

Hote HO. 14 

financial Assets· Loans (Cummtl 

L(NII'IS Receivables 

Loans Receivables Comk!ered good. Secured 

Security Depo!.its 

Loans to Related Parties 
Other Loans (to employees) 

Loans Receivabtes Coosldered good. Unsecured 

Security Deposits 
Advances to Related Parties • 

Balmer lawrie Investments ltd. 

Pt. Balmer Lawrie Indonesia 

Balmer Lawrie Va!l Leer ltd. 
Transafe Sel'Vlces Ltd. 

Visakhapatnam POll Logistics Park ltd 

Balmer Lawrie UA£ ltd. 

Other Loans and advances (to emptoyees) 

Other Loans and advances 

Loans Recetvabl.es which have significant increase in credit risk 

Loans Receivables- credit impaired 

Doubtful 
Security Deposits 

loans to Related Parties 

Others to Rel.ated Parties 
ProviskJfl ror doubtful Loans 

Security Deposits 

Loans to Related Parties 
Others to Retated Parties 

Total 

0.00 
27.95 

55.41 

353.48 
)41.91 

51.77 

• Advances to Related Parties are In the course of regular business transactions. 

Hote No. 15 

Other Financial Auels {Current! 

Unsecured 

Accrued locDme 
Security Deposits 

Other Receivabtes ·comidered good 

Olher Receivables' considered doubtful 
less: Provision for doubt ful other receivables 

Tota l 

Note Ho. 16 

Non Financial Au.ls· Others (Current) 

Capital Advance 

Balance with GoYernment Authol1tles 

Prepaid Expenses 
Advance to Contractoo a Slwllers ·Considered Good 

Advaoce to Contractors a Suppliers -Considered Doubtful 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Advaoces to Cootrators £t Suppliers 

Recoverabte from Government 
Other Advances to reillted parties 

Others 

Tota l 

As at 31 March 

2019 

53.'15 

830.52 
30.70 

389.99 

1,)04.66 

As at 3 1 March 

2019 

2,226.70 

908.38 

21,640.30 
2,758.79 

(2,758.79) 

24.775.38 

As at 31 March 

20 19 

915.52 

685.65 
2.01 1.60 

716.06 

(716.06) 

317.)1 

1,797. 15 

5,727. 23 

)1.33 

86.76 

2035.29 

51.33 

(f in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

85.01 

2,204.71 

19.61 

158.0<1 

2,467.37 

As at 3 I March 

20 18 

2,240.70 

810.36 

24,1 19.72 

2,219.14 

(2,219.34) 

27
1
170.78 

(~ in Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

201 8 

1,188,48 

783.53 
1,706.64 

823.85 

(823.85) 

311 .95 
2,950.02 



Balmer LlIwrle & Co. Ltd. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.17 (i( in Lacs except share data) 

Equitv Share Capital As at 31 March As at 31 March 
2019 2018 

Authorised Capital 

300,000,000 (Previous Year 120,000,000) equity shares of '(' 10 each 30,000.00 12,000.00 

30,000.00 12,000.00 

Issued and Subscribed Capital 

114,002,564 (previous Year' 14,002,564) equity shares of ~ 10 each 11,400.25 11,400.25 

11,400.25 11,400.25 

Pald·up Capital 

114,002,564 (Previous Year 11 4,002,564) equity shares of ~ 10 each 11,400.25 11,400.25 

11,400.25 11,400.25 

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 

Equity shares at the beginnirHj of the year 

Bonus shares issued during tile year 

Equity shares at the end of the year 

b) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares 

No of shares 

11,40,02,564 

11,40,02,564 

Amount 

11,400.25 

11,400.25 

No of shares Amount 

11,40,02,564 11,400.25 

11,40,02,564 11,400.25 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10 per share. Elich Shareholder Is eligible for one vote per share 

held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approv31 of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding . 

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company (equity shares of 1:'10 each, fulty paid up) 

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 

Particulars of the Shareholder No of shares % holding No of shares % holding 

Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited 7,04,52,900 61.80% 7,04,52,900 61 .80% 

I) There are no other shareholders holding 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company. 



Oahner Lawrie a Co. Ltd. 

,Iote~ to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.18 

Other Equity 

Securities Premium 

General Reserve 

Retained Earnings 

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve 

Securities Premium 

Opening batance 

Add: Shares issued during the year 

Sub total (A) 

General Reserve 

Opening balance 

less: Bonus Shares issued during the year 

Amount transferred from Retained Earnings 

Sub total (8) 

Retained Earnings 

Opening balance 

Add: Net Profit! (loss) for the year 

Less: Appropriations 

Transfer to Generat Reserve 

Equity Dividend 

Tax on Equity Dividend 

Re·measurement Gain/(Loss) 

Other adjustments 

Net surplus i n Retained Earnings (C) 

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve 

Opening balance 

Movement during the year 

Sub total (D) 

Total (Other Equity) 

Total of Other Equity (A+B+C+D) 

Nature and Purposes of Reserves within Other Equity 

Securities Premium 

(II! In Lacs) 

As lit 31 March As at 31 March 

2019 2018 

3,626.77 3,626.77 

35,603.82 35,603.82 

79,749.73 74,713.24 

(360. 14) 242.06 

1,18,620.19 1,14,185.89 

As at 31 March As at 31 M~rch 

2019 2018 

3,626.77 3,626.77 

3,626.77 3,626.77 

35,603.82 35,603.82 

35,603.82 35,603.82 

74,713.24 65,882.08 

18,247.98 18,637.72 

(11 ,400.26) (7,980.18) 

(2,413.43) (1,669.77) 

602.20 (156.21) 

(0.41 ) 

79,749.73 74,713.24 

242.06 85.85 

(602.20) 156.21 

(360.14) 242.06 

1,18,620.19 1,14,1 85.89 

Securities Premium represents premium received on Issue of shares. This shalt be utilised In accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

General Reserve 

General Reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. 

Retained Earnings 

Retained Earnings are the portion of company's net income that is left out after distributing dividends to sharehotders. These are kept 

aside by the company for reinvesting it In the main business. 

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve 

(i) The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securiUes in other comprehensive 

income. These changes are accumulated within the Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYOCI) equity investments 

reserve within eqUity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are 

derecognlsed. 



Balmer Lawrie 8: Co. Ltd. 

Notes to the Financia l Stateme nts for the year ended 31 March 2019 

Note No.19 

Non Current Liabilities 

Financia l Liabilities (Non - Current) 

Borrowings' 

Trade Payables 

Payable to micro and small enterprises 

Other Tracie Payables 

Other Financial liabilities 

Deposits 

Other Liabilities 

Total 

As at 31 March 

2019 

1,060.94 

5. 42 

5.4l 

1,066 .36 

(i{ In Lacs) 

As at 31 March 

2018 

1,1 15.99 

49.82 

49.82 

1,165.81 

"80rrowin8S· The Comp<lny has avaned Term loan of 'US Crores for ·Its Irltegrated cold chain facillties at Ral and Patalganga from Standard 

Chartered Bank to obtain Grant - In- aid from Mlnbtry of food Processing Industries IMofPI). The Term loan has an Interest rate as 6 months MCLR 

applicable at the time of dlsbur~ment of Term Loan. The loan Is ~C\Jred against Ihl! liKed and movable assets of Temperature Controlled 

Warehouses at Roll and Palalganga respectively. The Loan Is repayable In 12 equal Instalments starting from 18 monttls from the date of 1st draw .. 1. 

Note No.lO ('I: In Lacs) 

Provisions (Non - Current) As at 31 March As at 31 March 

2019 2018 

Actuarial ProviSions 2,101.81 1,942.85 

long Term Provisions 1,912.67 1,834.63 

Total 4,014.48 3,777.48 

Note No. 21 ('I: In lacs) 

Non Financial Liabilit ies - Others (Non - Current) As at 31 March As at 31 March 

2019 2018 

long term Payable 

Capital Advances 

Income Received in Mvance 

Advance from Custome~ 3.S5 3.55 

Recoverable from Government 

Others 1.34 ].51 

Total 4.89 7.06 
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Note No.22 
Current Ltabilltles 

Flnllnclill Ltabilltles (Current) 

Borrowings' 

Trade Payables 
Payable to micro and $Illall entcrpr;ses 
Other Trade Payables 

, .. 
, 80rrowings- Refer details given In Note No.19 

Note No.ll 
Olhel" Financial Ltabilltles (Current) 

Unclaimed Dividend • 

Security Oeposits 
Payable to Rdated Party 

Balmer Lawrie (UK) ltd. 

Other liabilities 

TOI~ I 

As lit ]1 Mlln;h 2019 

306.32 

324. 16 
28981 .50 

29305.66 

296 11.98 

As at 31 March 2019 

363.19 
2462.59 

1027.32 

9098.00 

12951.10 

(e In L.>t.) 

As lit 31 March 2018 

374.35 

199.31 

32079.79 
32279.10 

32653.45 

(lin lau) 

As at 31 March 2018 

234.67 
2407.92 

0.00 

9303.22 

11945.81 

• There Is 00 amount due and outstandln!l as at Balance Sheet date to be credIted to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

Note No.24 
Non Financial liabilities • Others (Current) 

Income Received In Advance 
Advance from Customers 

Statutory Dues 
SOC Credit Balance 
Deferred Galnllncome 
Other Liabilities 

Note No.25 
Current Provisions 

Tout 

Actuarial Provisions 
Short Term Provisions 

TOlal 

Note No.26 
Current Tax liabilities 

DlvIdefld Dlstribullon Tax 
Provision for TaxaUon (Net of Advance Tax) 

Totol 

Ie In lIocl) 

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 

0.00 0.00 
1141.58 1247.06 
487.22 561.34 

0.00 0.00 
168.43 181.66 

3416.64 3958.08 

5213.87 5948.14 

te .. uu) 

Asat)1 March 2019 As at ) 1 March 2018 

432 .19 341.39 
1206.37 162.94 

1638.56 504.]) 

(C 100 ha) 

As at)1 March 2019 As at )1 March 2018 

0.00 0.00 
17'}{).79 2778.19 

2790.79 2778.19 
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Note No.27 
Reyenue From Operations 

Sale of Products 
Less: Excise Duty 
Sales of Goods (Net of Excise Duty) 

sale of Services 
Sale of Trading Goods 

Sale of Tumkey Projects 

Other Operallng lncome 

Note No.28 
OtblM' Income 

Interest Income 

Bank Deposits 

Others 

Dividend Income 

Total 

Net galn/los5 on sale of Investments 

Other Non·operaUnglncome 

Profit on Olsposal of Fixed assets 

Profit 00 Disposal of Investments 

Sub Tot~d 

Sub Total 

Unclaimed balances a. excess prov~1on written back 
Gain on Foreign Currency Transactlon~ (netl 

Mark to Market of Oerlvative aiSet 
MlsceUaneous Income 

Sob Totlll 

Total 

Note Ho.29 
Cost of Materials Consumed a.: Services Rendered 

Cost of Materials Coosumed 
Cost of Services Rendered 

Note No.3D 
Purcha5e of TradlnR Goods 

Trading Goods 

Total 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

1,05,997.18 

1,05,997.18 

64,966.03 

329.45 

6,227.61 

1,77,520.27 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

2,752.32 

232.75 
2,985.07 

2,4 10.21 

2,410.21 

22.28 

634.49 

1,068.77 

366.57 

664.69 

2,756.80 

8,152.08 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

1<4,752.68 

35,777.04 

1,1°1529.72 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

329.045 

329.45 

Illn LK.) 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

1,03,.043.04.78 

PI 303 .94l 
1,00,130.84 

66,130.07 

7104.68 

5,531.3<1 

1
1
75,810.87 

(1 In lKI) 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

2,1<47.18 

138.95 
2,886.13 

2,059.21 

2,059.21 

14.04 

1,389.06 

265.80 

0479.22 

2,148.12 

7,093.46 

Illn LA"') 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

68,601.55 
37,148.17 

1,05,7049.72 

It III lKI) 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

712.43 

712.43 



Balmer liIwrle 9. Co. Ltd. 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 11IMrch 2019 

Note No.]1 

Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, 

Stock-In-trade and Work-In-progress 

Change In TrMling (i()o(h 

Change In Work in ProgrC5~ 

Change in Finished Goods 

Change In WIP turn key proJKt 

Total 

Note No.lZ 

Emplovee Benefit Expen~ 

Salaries and IncentiVi!'l 

Contrlbulion to Provident & Other Funds 
Social security and other benefIt plllfl'i for OVflf"SeaS 
employees 
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) and 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) 

Staff Welfare Explmses 

Total 

NOle No.)) 
Financl;' Costs 

Interest 
Bilnk Charges' 

Appllcabte net gain/loss on foreign currency 

transactions and trafl'ilaUons 

Total 

Opening 

Closing 

(I""" 

Opening 
Closing 

Change 

Opening 
Closing 

Change 

OpPnillB 
Closing 

Change 

For The Yea r Ended 

31 March 2019 

1,287.07 
966.40 

320.67 

],107.40 

3,084.15 

23.15 

343.82 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

17,-444.13 

2,187. 10 

1,615.85 

21,247.08 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 

401.64 

154.10 

555.74 

It In 1.00<.) 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

1,104.66 
1,287.07 

(182.4 \) 

4,489.00 
3,107.40 

1,381.60 

1,1 99.19 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 201B 

16,053.86 
2,266.96 

1,478.60 

19,799.12 

It In L."'i 

For The Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

288.61 

134.05 

422.66 

• Bank Charges include charges for opening 01 UC, bank guarantee charges and other cIlarges related to bani< transactions. 
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Hote Ho.H 

DeprecIatIon a AmorUzatloo Expense 

OeprecllltiOn on: 
Property, Plant 11 Equfpment 

Investment Propefties 

AmortizatiOn of Intangible Assets 

Note HO,l5 

Other Expenses 

101111 

Manufacturing Expenses 

ConsumptIon of StOfes lind Spares 

Repllirs & M1Ilntenance ' 8ulldings 
RepaIrs 11 Maintenance - Plant 11 Machlnety 

Repairs & Maintenance · Others 

Power ft fuel 
Electricity 11 Gas 
R~t 

Insurance 

Packing, Despatching, Freight 11 ShlpplJl9 Charg~ 

Rates 11 Taxes 

Audltoo Remuneration 11 Expenses 
Impairment of auets 

Write Off of Debts, Deposits, loans 11 Advances 

Provision for Doubtful DeIlts 11 Advances 

fixed Assets Written Off 
loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 
Semll!! Commission 

Cash Discount 

Travellina Expenses 

Printing ft Stationary 

Motor Cnr Expenses 

Communication Char!l~ 

CSR Expenditure 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

lim: Provision for Debts, Deposits, l oans 11 Advances 

ft Inventories considered doubtful earUer, now written 

back 

Totll l 

Payment to Auditors as: 

Statutory IBranch Auditor 

Tax Audit 

Other Certiriclltion 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
Total Payment to Auditors 

(~"'hct) 

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

2,514.59 2,452.97 

2.16 1.45 
155.15 201.28 

2,671.90 2
1
655.70 

I~r .. h .. ) 

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

1,677.42 1,493.78 

889.24 896.69 

275.54 611.36 

414.73 ]67.6<1 

559.92 571.95 
2,561.96 2,342.02 

407.'17 406.82 
1,]69.77 1,043.6<1 

270.21 249.90 

4,256.78 4,484.51 

160.59 111.23 

24.02 2].58 

19.36 1,070.91 

481.97 3,098.92 
1,561.07 1,132.8<1 

12.40 16.05 

3.86 9.37 

409.89 680.03 

340.22 309.27 
975.50 963.02 

296.23 23 1. 66 

153.71 153.61 

286.48 328.08 
516.24 438.3<1 

4
1
835,44 4,887.65 

22,760.02 25,922.87 

(775.86) (2,973.11) 

2 1,984.16 22,949.76 

18.88 18.90 

0.85 0.85 

2.00 2.10 
2.29 1.73 

24.02 23.58 



Ihhnu 1-'1"""" & Co. Lid. 

j""I"" 10 Ihr Fi""n..,i,,1 Smlc,,":n lJi for Ihe ),,,,,r ~ mle d 31 Mareh 2019 

NOle No. 36 

Cu«enl I ..... 

O.:(,.,.,<:d !a . ~ 

Prior period 

T Olal 

For T hr Year Ended 

J I hh reh 2019 

9.479.39 

424.13 

Q43."2) 

9,160.30 

~ in Lacs) 

for The Year Endeu 

31 March 2018 

7)71.00 

1,538.00 

(1,279.00) 

7,630.00 

" b c mainr components of incom" la., eX I",n>e "lUI th ~ recondli"iOIl .. f expense b~ied on Ih ~ d()nl,·. tic efrecti,'" tU role of al 3*.9·'''·. and the 

r<: l'orl ~ d tax ,,~ p e n 'l: i" profit or Ius. arc as ("lin"",, 

A..,..,o unting ,,,ofit before income la~ 

AI rU""l ry" .mt"I,,<y income In ,."te 0( 3·1.944· .. (31 l.larch 20 18.: 

34.008". ) 

T a~ K,,><'nsc 

, \djll" tmmt ~ ill "'*"" ur eu«cm i"conl ~ I.W 

E~ClIl I " DiI'idelld l11 curn" 

rureih'" J)i"id ~ l1d Income, t,,-'cd at a d,ff"ren t f'l tc 

Nun·deductible "., ,,~,, sct (or tas P"'llU~ 1 

1'IO,·i.ion. (n<:1) 

C~ R K' p"nses 

Gr:t.ruit), r . i ~ bil it) , o f pocvious year p3id in cllrren! yn.r 

VRS E~pcn= 

D"preci:uion Dirf"re" ce 

Share "r rc ~ "ll j o ( ~ jW<.: bl' ''' ~nd joint ,'enlllrcs 

Imprum"-"'Ill of a ,~! 

Addition:,1 Deductiun fur R&D e.~ pcn ...,s in 1 'J"~ ,~ 

AdjH$ll11cnt s in r~."p~..:t or Pre,·;o". ) ... al. incomc tnX 

Deferred ta~ imp ~c l on revised profil 

Note No. 37 

O'her Comprehe nsive Income 

(A) II..,OlS Iha l \\; 11 nOI be recla"s ilied 10 profit Or lo ~~ 

(ij I{crll<."asuremml gain.! (lnsSCII) on defined b<.~,, : fil pl.n. 

Oil [ncome'"", rdaling 10 il~"'" that wil! nOl be r ccb ~s ificd 10 profil 

fir I",, ~ 

(ll ) Items ,hat ,, ~11 be reclassified to prnfit or Ion 

(i) Item. that will be red,.s ;lict! tu profit o r l o~ s 

Oil 1"cu<l>" m., rdat ing tu items that will he r ~..: 1a .~ified to pro fit or 

1 ~" 

Note No. 38 

Nct p rofi t att ribu table tu e'I',i ty sharcholder& 

Profit aner lall: 

Profit a tt ributable 10 C(I" ity ho lders o f Ihe parent .. di" ~ t c d for 

Ihe dfecl Qf di ll1 t inn 

N .. min~1 \'nlll" of eol"it)' share (t) 

\Vciglued-a" erage numl>cr uf «juity ~ ha' C"5 for EI'S 

Bas ie/Oiluted eanl ings pc r 8hare (t) 

280 10.'18 

3'1.9440
0 

9,787.98 

(U5. H) 

(288.54) 

55M3 

180.39 

(183.>16) 

6.48 

6.77 

(32 1.52) 

(7·13.22) 

8,736. 17 

For The Year E nded 

31 March 20J9 

(925.(6) 

323."6 

(602.20) 

For The Year E lided 

31 March 2019 

18,850. 18 

18,850.18 

10 

11 ,40,02,564 

16.53 

16 111.51 

J.I,008'' • 

9,036.67 

(128.65) 

(292.00) 

( ~ 81.l 5 ) 

151.70 

(652.99) 

(188.70) 

(52.28) 

132.06 

(153.66) 

(1,279.00) 

6,092.00 

(t in Lacs) 

ForTh" Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

238.86 

(82.67) 

156.21 

ForThe Year Ended 

31 March 2018 

18,481.51 

18,481.51 

10 

I 1,40,02,564 

16.21 



Ballll er Lawrie & Co. Ltd . 

N otes to Ihe fin :lncl:. l sl:llemellls ror Ihe year coded 31 March 20"19 

Nole No. 39 

Accouoting ror Employee Beoefils 

Oy,md C,nlrilmli,n PIIINS 

111c disclosures arc made consC<luent ro adoption of IND AS 19 on Employee Benefits, Ilotified by the t\linistry of Corporate 

Affairs, by the Company. Dd ined Bene.fit(s) Plans / Long Term Employee benefits in respect of Gratui ty, Leave Encashment, 

Post-retirenlClu medical bcnefit s and Long Service Awards IIrc recognized in the Sta tement of Profit & Loss on thc basis of 

Acttmrial VlIluauon done at the year end. Actuarial gain/loss on post-emplo).n'ICnt benefit plans thai is graTUity and post-retirement 

nlCdical benefi t plans arc r«ogn.izcd in Other Comprehensive InconlC. 

'111<: Company m~kcs contribu tions, determined as a sp«i fied percellt:lge of employee s:IIHics, in re~pect of qllllli f}'i ng employces 

taMII·tlS Pro\'idcnl Fllnd 110d Employee SIMc Insul":lIlce Scheme which arc defined contribution plalls. T he COmpall)' has 110 

obJig:luulls other Ih:ln to make the specified contributions. 111t! contributions arc chHged to the statement of profit and loss liS 

Ihey ~cenle. ' l1,e amount recognised as an expense towards con trihution to Provident Fund for the l'ear aggregated to t 1142.24 

IlIcs ~ 1,141 .58 bcs); Supeftlnnuatjon fund t 629.07 lacs (t' 602.96 lac ~ ) ~nd cOlll ributioll 10 Employee Slate Insul":lm:e Scheme: 

for lhe rellr IIggregated 10~ · 1 6.391~c5 ~ 22.26Iac5). 

DcfilJed B el/cfit PJ:ItlS 

Post EmpJoymctlt Bel/elit Plrms 

A. Grnfllity 

Thc grnruity plan entities all employee, who has rendered atieast five years of continuous service. 10 [«dve fifteen days sabry for 

each yell! o f completed service at the time of sliperannuation/exil. Any short fall in obligations is mel by the company hy \VlIy of 

transfer of re(lliisite alllounr fO the fund. 

n,e I"Cconcilia tjon of the Company's defined benefi t obligations (DBO) and plan lIucts in respect of gr:uuity plans to the amounts 

presented in the statement o f financial position is prescnlcd below: 

(f ill Lacs) 

Parlk ulars A"" As al 

31·03·20L9 31·03·2018 

Defined benefit obligation 5,93 1. 59 5,53 1.35 

Pair value of plan assets 5,248.30 5,508.91 

Net defined benefit oblig ation 683.28 22.44 

(i) The movement of the Company's defined benefi t obliglltions in fCSpect of gntuity plans from beginning to end of reporting 

period is u follows: 

(f in Lacs) 

I'articulars A" , As III 

31-03-201.9 31-03·2018 

Opening value o r defi ned benefit obligation 5,53t.35 5,835.57 

Add: Curtent service cost 350.24 326.5 1 

Add: Current interest cost 386.22 437.68 

Plan amendment : VeSled portion at end of ~riod (past suviee) - -

Add: ;\ctuHial (gain)/Ioss due to -

• changes in demographic assumptions . -

- ch~ n ges in experience adjustmenf 443.68 (1 47.36) 

• changes in fin andal assumptions 119. 13 (2 19.42) 

Less: Benefits paid (899.02) (701.64) 

Closing v\\lue of d efined beuefit oblig \\lion thereof- 5,931.59 5,531.35 

Unfunded 683.28 22.44 

Funded 5,248.30 5,508.91 



(ii) The defined benefit obligation in respect of gratuity pl:ulS W:I.S determined using the following :lcnlariaJ llssumptions: 

(t in Lacs 

Assumptions As at "'" 31·03·2019 31·03·2018 

Discount rate (per annum) 7.60% 7.98% 

Rare of increase in compensation Jevcls/S~lary growth rale 6.00% 6.00% 

Expected ~vtr.lge remaining working lives of employees (years) II 12 

(i i ~ TIle rcconciJi~l;on of dle plan assets held for the Company's defined hellefit pbn from beginning to elld of reporting period is 

presented below: 

(t ill Lacs) 

Parl'iculars "'" As al 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Dreiling balaoce offair value orr!an assels 5,508.91 4,023.43 

Add: Contribution by emplorer 460.64 1,887.22 

Return all Plan Assets excluding lntere~r Income (240.90) (21.17) 

t\dd: Interest income 418.68 321.07 

Less: Benefits paid (899.02) (701.64) 

Closing ba1auce of fair value or plan assets 5,248.30 5,508.91 

(Iv) Expense related \0 the Compan}"s defined benefit plans in respect of gr.uuity pbn is as follows: 

(f in Lacs) 

AmOliot recognised in Otber Comprebensive Ineollle For the year For the year 

ended ended 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 011 obligations-changes in demogr~phk - -

assumptions 

Actuarial Win)/loss on obligations-changes in financial assumptions 119,13 (219.42) 

Actuarial (gain)lloss on obligations-Experience Adjustment 443,68 (147.36) 

Return on Plan Assels excluding Interest Income (240.90) (21.17) 

TOlal expense! (income) recognized io the 81atement or Other 803.70 (345.61) 

Comprehensive Income 

(f ill Lacs) 

Amount recognised in the Statement or Profit & Loss For the year For the year 

ended ended 

31-03-2019 31-03·2018 

Current service cost 350.24 326.51 

Past service cost (ves(ed) - -

Net Interest cost (Interest Cost-Expected return) (32.46) 116.61 

Total expense recognized inlhe SI:ltemellt or Profit & Loss 317.78 443.13 

(l in Lacs) 

Amoullllecognised iu Balauce Sbeet As al Asal 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Defined henefit obligation 5,931.59 5,531.35 

Classified as: 

Non-Current 4,890.65 4,77'1.63 

Current 1,040.94 759.72 



(f in Lncs 

A", As at 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Expected returns on plan :Issets are based on ~ weighted ~ver~ge 0 177.78 299.90 

expected returns of the various IIssetS in the plan, and indude an 

analysis ofhistorieal returns and predictions about future returns. The 

return on plan a~sCf.s was 

(v) Pilin assets do not comprise any of the Group's own financial instruments or any assets used hy Group companies. Phm ~sse ts 

can be broken down into the following major categories of investments: 

(f in Lacs) 

Parrieul:us As at "'" 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Government of India securitiesl State Governmcnt securities 46.61% 46.30% 

Corporate boods 47.24% 47.59% 

Others 6.15% 6.1"1% 

T otal plan nssels 100.00% 100.00% 
< < .< Interest costs have been Included under Go,mce costs and servIce cost has been recolded undel employee benefits expense' in 

st:ltemenl of comprch"llsivc income. 

(vi) Sens itivi ty Analysis 

The sigoific:lllt actu:lrl,ll :lssumption for the determination of d~fined l>enefil obligation in respect of gratuity plans is the discount 

rate. '111e calculation of the net defined benefir obligation is sensitive to tlus assumprion. TIle following mble somm."lriscs the 

effects of changes in this ach.l:lrial assumption on the defined benefit obligation: 

n nes ( ~i L ) 

Pnrtieula rs 31 March 2019 

Increase Decrease 

Changes in discount rate in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit obligation after clmnge 5,776 6,096 

Original defined benefit obligation 5,932 5,932 

lncrcase/(decrease) in defim:d benefit obligation (156) 164 

Cbanges in salary growth rate in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit obligation after ch~nge 6,034 5,832 

Original defined benefit obligation 5,932 5,932 

lnerense/ (deerease) ill defined h elle fit obligation 102 (100) 

Changes in Attrition rate in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit obligatJon after change 5,936 5,928 

Orib,jn~1 defined benefit obligation 5,932 5,932 

[ncrease/(decrellse) in defined benefit obligation 4 (4) 

Chang es in Mortality rate in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit obligation after change 5,962 5,901 

Original defined benefit obligation 5,932 5,932 

Incrcasc/(dccreasc) in defined benefit obligation 30 (31) 



(f in Lacs) 

Pa rticulars 31 Marcb 2018 

Increase Decrease 

Cha nges in discount rale ill % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit oblig~tion after t hange 5,382 5,689 

Original defined benefit obligation 5,531 5,531 

Increasc/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation (149) 157 

Changes in sahuy g rowth ra te in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefi t oblig~ti on lIfteL' change 5,625 5,44 1 

Original defined benefit obligalion 5,53 '1 5,53! 

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 93 (90) 

Cbanges in Allri tioll mte in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit oblig:uionlLfter ch~nge 5,535 5,528 

Originnl defined benefit obligation 5,53 1 5,531 

lncrease/(d ecrease) in dcfi ned bencJiI oblig ntion 4 (4) 

Changes ill Morta lity rate in % 10.00 10.00 

Defined benefit ohligation ~ ft er changc 5,56 1 5,501 

Originll.l defined benefi t ohligation 5,53 1 5,531 

lncrease/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 30 (30) 

B. Post RerirellleIIf "'Iedical Bcm:/its Schemc (Non.ful/dcd) 

The post retirement medical benefit is on contributory hasis and voluntary. It is appJitable for all employecs who 

superannuate/resign after s~tisfactory long service and includes dependent spouse, parents and children as per applicable rules. 

(f in Lacs 

Particulars As at As at 

31· 03·2019 31 · 03 ~2 01 8 

Opening value: of de fin cd benefit ob liga tion 376.60 348.71 

Add: Current service: cost 

Add: Current interest cost 24.19 23.73 

Add: AClmrial (gain)/loss due to -

. changes in demographic assumptions ~ 

- changes in c.xpc.rience: adjus tment 109.91 127.47 

. changcs in financial assumptions 12.05 (20.74) 

Less: Benefits paid (116.62) (102.57) 

Clos i.llg va lue of defined benefit obligation 406.13 376.60 

Thereof-

Unfunde d '106.13 376.60 

Funded ~ ~ 

(t in Lacs) 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehens ive Incom e For the year For the year 

ended ended 

31· 03·2019 31·03·2018 

Actuari~1 (gain)/loss on obligations-change in demogrnphic ~ 
~ 

assumpllons 

Actuacial (gain)/loss on obligations-change: in financial aSSUml)tions 12.05 (20.74) 

Actunrial (gain)/Ioss on obliS:ltions-Experience Adjustment ](}<).91 127.47 

Total expcnse / (income) rccognized in thc s tatcment ofOtber 

ComprehcJ\6ive Income 121.96 106.73 



(f in Lies) , 
Amount recognised in the Statem ent of Pro fit & Loss For the year For the year 

elided e uded 

31·03·2019 31·03-2018 

Current 3crvicc cost 

Ne t In terest cost([nlercst Cost-Expected return) 24 2·, 

Total expense rccoglli7.ed in the statement of Profit & Loss 24 24 

(f ill 1_1e5 

Assumptions As at As al 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Discount rate (per llnnum) 7.60% 7.98% 

Superannuation age 60 60 

Early retirement & disablement 1.00% 1.00% 

(f in Lacs 

Am o unt recognised in Balance Sh eet As a t As at 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Defined benefi t obligiluon 406.13 376.60 

C lassified as: 

N on-Curre nt 341.36 316.78 

Currenl 64.77 59.82 

Sensitivity Analysis . (f ill La s) < ' 

Particulars 31 Ma rch 2019 

Increase Decrease 

Cbanges in Discount rate III % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefi t obligation after change 394 418 

Original defined benefit obligation 406 406 

lncrease/(decrease) in defined benefi t obligation (12) 12 

Changes iu Mortality rate it! % 0.50 0.50 

Defined ucnefit obligation after chauge 397 41 3 

Original defined uenefit obligation 4D6 406 

Increasc/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (9) 7 

Particulars 31 March 2018 

Increase D ecrease 

Changes ill D iscount rate in % 0.50 0.50 

Defined benefit obligation after d13nge 365 387 

Original defined benefit obligation 377 377 

Increase/(deerease) in defined benefi t obligation (11) 11 

Changes in Mortality ("ate in % 10.00 10.00 

Defined benefit obligation after change 368 383 

Original defined benefi t obligation 377 377 

Incrcasc/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation (8) 6 



C. OtJu:r Long Tem, Bcncfit P):ms 

LeaYr EtlOlSIUJJ~f1I (NOII ~ fllflded), LOllg Scrn~ A 1V1Ird (Noll-flillded) and Half Pay Leswe (Noll~f/lfl(lcd) 

TIle Comp~ n y provides for the encuhmcnl of lIccumulaled leave subJccI 10 a maximum of 300 days. -nlC ~~bilily is provillcd 

based on [he number of days of unUliliscd lelm:': at each balance sheet dale: on the basis of an independent acturial valuation. An 

amounl of ~ 832. 10 lacs (~603.5 1 lacs) has heen recognised in the ~11I 1 c:. m e n t of Profit and Lou. 

(f ill Lacs 

Leave Encashmel\t (Non-runded) "'" "'" 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Amount recognized in Ih lance Sheet: 

Curren! 201.36 190.78 

Non Curren! 70 1.36 760.36 

Long Scrvice Award is given to the employces to recognise long lind meritorious service rendered 10 the company. The minimum 

eligibili ty for the same starts on completion o f 10 years of service and ,Iu; reafter evc.LY S}'clln of completed service. An lImounl of 

f (-) 20.'19 lacs [ f (-) 37.60 lacsl has been recognised in the Statement of Profit lind Loss. 

(l ill Lacs 

Lollg Service Award (NOli-funded) "'" "'" 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Amounl recognized in Bal:mce Sheet: 

Current 60.73 41.26 

Non Current 346.S7 351.83 

The leave on hrufpay is 20 dnys for each completed l'Clll' of service on medical eertific~ l e or Oil personal grQunds. An amount off 

358.90 lacs (f 50.96 1acs) has been re(!ogniscd in Ihe Statement ofPlufit ~nd Loss. 

(t in Lacs) 

Hair Pay Leave (Non-runded) "'" A llI l 

31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Amount rccogn.ized in Balance ShC:C:l: 

Cu[n:nt IOS.33 49.52 

Non Current 712.S2 513.88 



Ntlfc 40 - Addiliollnl DiscloSIII'CS 

40. 1 (11) Conveya nce deeds of certain Leasehold land cost ing ~ 2,484.37 lakhs (~ 2,541.35 lakhs) and 

bu ildi ngs, wi th written down va llie of ~ 3,2 11 .46 lakhs (~ 3,040.20 lakhs) are pend ing registration / 

mutat ion. 

(b) Celtain buildings & sidings with written down va lue of ~ 6,603.58 lakhs (~ 6,662.84 IlIkhs) are 

situated on leasehold/rentcd Ja nd. Some of the leases with Kolka \"a PorI trust have ex pired and are 

under rcnewal. Action has been taken for fin alizing th e ngrec ments with Kolkata PorI Trust for 

renewa l of sllch pending cases. 

40.2 Contingent Liabili ties as at 3 1" March, 20 19 not prov idcd for in the account s are: 

(<I) Disputed demand for Excise Duly, Income Tax, Sa les Tax, Provident Fund and Serv ice Tax 

amounti ng 10 t 10,244.37 lakhs ( ~ 10,918.67 la khs) aga inst which the Company has lodged 

appeal/petition beFore appropriate !luthorit ies. Deta ils of such di sputed demancls as on 3 lSI March, 

20 19 are given ill Annexure - A. 

(b) C laims aga inst the company not acknowledged as debts amounts 10 t 1,006.19 lakhs (t 893. 17 

lakhs) in respect of which the Company has lodged appeals/petitions before appropriate authorities. 

In respect of employees/ex-em ployees related disputes, financia l e ffect is ascerta inable on 

settlement . 

40.3 COlHlter guarantees given to Standard Chartered Bank, Bank of Baroda, Canara Bank, Vij aya Bank, 

Yes Bank, Axis Bank and lndusind Bank in respect of guarantees given by them amounts to 

~ 6 ,61 3.64 lakhs (0,365.88 lakhs). 

40.4 Estimated amount of contract remai ning to be executed on Capita l Accounts and not prov ided for 

[nel of advances paid - ~ 160.84 lllkhs (~ 88. 11 lakhs)] amounted to ;f;' 992.9 I lakhs ( ;f;' 1928.55 

Jakhs). 

40.5 Detail s of dues to Micro, Small and Medi um Enterprises are as given below: 

(a) The principal amou nt remainin g unpaid to (lilY supplier at the end of account ing year 20 18-19 

~ 324.16 lakhs (~ 199.3 I lakhs). 

(b) The interest due thereon rema ining unpaid to any supplier allhe end of accounting yea r 20 18-19 

~ 0.06 lakhs ( ~ 0.02 lak hs). 

(c) The am0l111t of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the Mi cro, Small find 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 during the account ing year 2018- 19 f 0.02 IlIkhs 

(n<il). 
(d) The amou nt of payment made to the sll pplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting 

year 20 18- 19 ~ 2.77 lakhs (~ 1.50 lakhs). 

(e) The amount of interest due lind payab le for the period of de lay in making payment (which has 

been pllid bu t beyond the appoinled day during the year) but without adding the interest speci fied 

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 during the accounting 

year2018-19 ~N il (~Ni l ) . 

(D T he amount of inte rest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 20 18-19 to.OG 

lakhs ( ~ 0. 0 2 lakhs) . 

(g) The amount of fl11ther interest remaining due lind payable even in the succeeding years, until such 

date when the in terest dues above are actua lly pa id 10 the sma ll enterprise, for the purpose of 

disallowance of a deductible expendi ture under section 23 of lhe Micro, Sma ll dium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 20 l8- 19 ~ 0.061akhs (f 0.02 1akh s). ~ '<-I\R & °0 

oi ~ .• ~ 
~ < 
... . 
\-"" *,,0 S 

?O. _A"#. 
Chaltele~ 



40.6 The net lHll ount of exchange di fference creditc(lto Statement Or r l'OEit & Loss is =!; 69.55 Jakhs [Debited 

~ 12.84 lakhsJ. 

40.7 Trade receivables, loans and advllllccS and depos its for which confirmations are not received 

rrom the parties arc sllbject to reconc iliation a nd consequen tial adjustments on determination I 
receipl of such confirmation. 

40.8 Rem uneration of Chairman & Mmw ging Director, Whole lime Directors and Company Secretary: 

Salaries 
Contribution to Provident and Gratuity fund 

Perqui sites 

40.9 Auditors ' remuneration and expenses: 

StatutOlY Auditors 

- Audit Fees 

- Tax Audit Fees 

- Other Capacity for Limited Review lHld 

Other cCltification jobs 

Branch Auditors 

- Audit Fees 

- Olher Capac ity 

- Expenses relating to audit of Accounts 

VLakhs 

2018-19 20 17- 18 

261.63 

32.89 

33 .60 

5.75 

0.85 

2.00 

13.13 

(328 .07) 

(34.31) 

( 18.83) 

(381.21) 

(5.78) 

(0.85) 

(2 .10) 

(13 .13) 

(1.73) 

(23.58) 

40.1 0 (a) Stock & Sale of Goods Mallufactul'cd (with own materials) : VLakhs 

O pcning Closing 

Class of Goods Value Value 

Greases & Lubricating 2,548.44 

Oils (3 ,696.74) 

Barrels and Drums 456.59 

(616 .06) 

Leather Auxiliaries 102.37 

( 176.20) 

Others including 

Manufacturing Scrap ( -) 

3,107.40 

(4,489.00) 

2,335.86 

(2,548.44) 

421.86 

(456.59) 

326.53 

(102.37) 

(-) 

3,084.25 

(3,107.40) 

37,4 13.25 

(40,029.66) 

60, 163.85 
(54,788.05) 

6,3 18.42 

(6,480.73) 

2,101.66 

(2,136.34) 



4U.I O (b) Stocl( & Sale of Goods Manufactured (with customers' materials) : 

Class of Goods 

Greases & 

Lubricating Oils 

40. IO(c) Work in Progl'css 

Opcning 

Va,luc 

Greases and LubricHlillg Oil s 

BHrrels IHld Drums 

Leather Auxiliaries 

(-) 

(-) 

Closing 

Value 

(-) 

(-) 

Vallie 

'tILakhs 

175.52 
(225.25) 

643.69 
(946.98) 

147.19 
(1 14.84) 

966.40 
(1,287.07) 

40. I I Analysis of Raw Materials Consumed (cxcluding materials sup)llicd by Customcl's.) 

Value 

~Lak hs 

Slcel 43,068.89 

Lubricat ing Base Oils 

Add itives and other Chemica ls 

Vegetable and Other Fats 

Drum Closures 

Paints 

Paraffin Wax 

Others 

(36,420.39) 

14,549.57 
( 13,655.99) 

6,587.84 
(7,340.35) 

2,09 1.1 9 
(2, 177.14) 

2,140.24 

( 1,967.35) 

1,184.36 

(1,130.99) 

942.44 
(803.96) 

4, 188.15 
(5, I 05.38) 

74,752.68 
(68,60 1.55) 

f/Laldls 

(-) 

(-) 



4u.12 Value or Raw Materials, Components and Spare Parts consumed: 

2018-19 

Raw Materials !(fLakhs 

Imported 3,366.62 

Indi genous 71 ,386.06 

74 ,752.68 

Spal'cs & Components VLaldls 

Imported 41.60 

Indigenoll s 847.64 

~ 

40. [3 PUl'chase and Sale orTnuling Goods: 

Class ur Goods 

Bunk Houses 

40.14 (a) Value orlmports 011 C.LF basis: 

Raw Materials 

Components and Spare Pa!1s 

Capital Goods 

Trading Goods 

40.14 (b) Expcnditure in FOl'eign Cu rrency: 

Serv ices 

Others 

(%) 

4.50 

95.50 

.LI!2..Ql! 

('Vol 

4.68 

95.32 

10_0 .. 0j) 

2017- 18 

VL.1khs 

(2,784.00) 

(65,817.55) 

CJiM.Ql.521 

t.lLakhs 

( 173.59) 

(723.10) 

(89..G..6.2l 

PUl'chase 

Value 

'tILakhs 

329.45 
(71 2.43) 

329.45 
(712.43) 

2018-19 

3,0 I 1.60 

101.98 

61.08 

3, 174.67 

13,807.18 

87.95 

13,895.13 

(%) 

(4.06) 

(95.94) 

CI 00.001 

(%) 

( 19.36) 

(80.64) 

(10_Q,00) 

~lLak hs 

20 17-18 

(1 ,651.43) 

(136.41) 

(123.96) 

(75.08) 

( 1,986.88) 

VLakhs 

(17,127.59) 

(100.98) 

(17,228.57) 

Salc 

Value 

f/Lakhs 

329.45 

(714 .68) 

329.45 

(114 ,68) 



40.14 (e) Earnings ill Foreign CUITCIlCY: VLnldls 

Expolt o f Goods and Components 

calculated on F.O.B bas is as 1,83 1.04 ( 1,927.33) 

invoiced 

Interest and Div idend 1,687.48 (1 ,470.73) 

Services 3,994.1 3 (6,68 1.1 2) 

Freight, Insurance, Exc hange Gain 

and Misce llaneolls Items 

( 3.70) 

7,5 12.65 (10,082.88) 

Earn ings from services exclude deemed cxp0l1s Nil (NIL). 

40. 15 Expenditu re on Research and Deve lopment cap il'a lized and charged to Statement of Profit- & Loss 

during the years is as be low: 

Capital Expend iture 

ReVCllue Expenditure 

201 8-19 

322.38 

780.93 

201 7- 18 

106.79 

628.87 

2016- 17 

30.41 

529.29 

201 5-16 

5 1.35 

543.32 

(~ in lakhs) 

201 4-15 

256.88 

604.53 

40.1 6 Excess lncome Tax prov ision in respect of earlier years amounting to ~ 743.22 Lakhs « 1279.00 

Lakhs) has been reversed in the current year. . 

40. 17 The amount of Exc ise dUly included in the amount of "Sa le of Products" in Note 27 is relatable to 

Sa les made duri ng the period l SI April, 2017 and 30 11
' June, 201 7. Consequent to the same, nlrnover 

fi gures are not com parab le. 

40.18 Loans and Advances in the nature of loans to Subsid iary / Joi nl Ventures I Associates 

The company does not have any Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans provided to its 

Subsidiary I Joinl Vcnture Companies I Associates as al the ycar end except as is disclosed in Nole 

40.1 9 below. 



40.19 Rela ted Pat"ty Disclosur·e 

i) Name of Related Par·tv 

Bahner Lawrie In vestments Ltd. (BLLL) 

Balmer Lawrie (U.K.) Ltd. 

Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Ltd 

Tra nsa re Services L td 

Bahner Lawrie - Va n Leer Ltd. 

Ba lmer Lawrie (UAE) Llc. 

Avi - O il Indi a (P) Ltd . 

PT Balmer Lawrie indonesia 

Shri Pmbal Basll, Chai rman and Managing Direc tor 

Ms Manjusha Bhatnagar Director ( I-IR & CA) 

NatUI·e of Relationshiu 

Holding Company 

Wholly owned subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Joint' Venture 

Jo int Venture 

Joi nt Ventu re 

Assoc iate 

Joinl Venture 

Key Management Personne l 

Key Ma nagement Personnel (Superan nuated on 

01.02.2018) 

Shd D. Sothi Sc lvam. Director (Ma nufacturing Business) Key Management Personne l 

Shri K Swmnin al han, Director (Serv ice Business) 

Shfi S S KJmntia, Director (Finance) 

Ms lndrani Kaushal (Govi. Nominee director) 

Ms Atreyee Borooah Thekedath (Independent Director) 

Shri Vij ay Sharma (Govt Nominee Director) 

Shfi Sunil Sachdeva (Independent Director) 

Ms Kavita Bhavsar, Com pany Secretary 

Shri A. Ratna Shekhar, Director ( I-IR & CA) 

Shri Vikash Preetam (Independent Director) 

Shri Arun Ta ndon (Independent Director) 

Key Management" Personnel 

Key Management Personne l 

Key Management Personnel (w.e.f 27 .1 2.20 16 till 

27 .1 2.201 7) 

Key Management Personne l (w.e.f 13. 12.201 7) 

Key Management Personnel (w.c. f 15.0 1.20 18) 

Key Management Personnel (w.e.f 18.09.201 7 till 

01.02.2018, again wef04 .04 .20 18) 

Key Management Person ne l 

Key Management Personnel (wef02.05.20 [8) 

Key Management Personne l (wef 28.07.2018) 

Key Management Personnel (wcr [2.09 .2018) 



ii) '')Ics 011 Accounls - { Conld,} 

VLakhs 

Tl'llUsactiolls with Rclatcd Partics 

Key 

Typc ofTrallsaction YCal' Holding Joint Management 

Ending Comllnnl:: Subsitlial'Y Vcnhll'cs PCl'SOlillci TOTAL 
a) Sale of Goods 31/03119 11.58 11.58 

31103118 11.72 11 .72 

b) Purchase of Goods 31/03119 2,478.63 2,478.63 

31/03 /18 2,2 18.36 2,218.36 

c) Value of Services 31/03/19 41.50 934.07 0.02 975.59 

Rendered 31/03/ 18 36.00 185.34 965.78 1187.12 

d) Value of Services 31/03/ 19 18 .35 18.35 

Received 31/03/ 18 258 .61 258.6 1 

e) Remuneration 10 Key 31/03/ 19 328.13 328.1 3 

Managerial Personnel 31/03/ 18 38 1.2 1 38 1.2 1 

Q Income from leasing or 31/03119 1.08 1.08 

hire 31/03118 1.08 1.08 

purchase agreement 

g) Purchase of Fixed Assets 31/03/19 

31/03118 

h) lnveslment in shares as on 31/03/19 8103.96 5,753.34 13,857.30 

31/03/ 18 9 100. 18 4,726.02 13 ,826.20 

i) Loans given as on 31/03119 230.03 423.49 653.52 

31/03118 2000.00 491.95 2491.95 

j ) Dividend Income 31/03/ 19 2,407.06 2,407.06 

31/03118 2,056.02 2,056.02 

k) Dividend Paid 31/03/ 19 7,045.29 7,045.29 

31/03118 4,931.70 4,93 1.70 

I) intereslincomc 31/03/ 19 112.05 98.41 210.46 

31/03/ 18 35.24 127.79 163.03 

Ill) Amount received on a/c, 31/03119 14.79 87.89 102.68 

of sahuies, etc, of 31/03118 9.83 109.39 119.23 

Employees deputed or 

otherwise 

n) Net outstanding 31/0311 9 51.57 342. 15 2,350.88 2,744.60 

recoverable 31103118 11.08 2,035.29 2,455.9 1 4,502.28 

ason 

0) Net outstanding payable 31/03119 1,027.32 3 10.22 1,337.54 

as on 31103118 498.18 498.18 

p) Provision for advances! 31103/19 2,495. 12 2,495. 12 

investments 31/03118 2,495.12 2,495.12 

q) 2.68 2.68 

13.06 13.06 



40.20 Segment RCI)Orling 

Information about business segment for the year ended) l SI March, 2019 in respect o f repol1ablc 

segments as notified by the Ministry of Corpo rate Affairs in the INO AS- 108 in respect of 

"Operating Segmen ts" is atl<iched in Note 41 . 

40.21 Disclosure of Interests in Joint Vent 111'£ and AssochltC COlli panies 

Nllme of Joint Venture Company Proportion of Country of 

Shareholdill2 1ncol'llOratioll 

Balmer Lawrie (UAE) Lie. 49% United Arab Emirates 

Balmer Lawrie Va n Leer LId 48% India 

Transafe Services Ltd. 50% Ind ia 

PT Bahner Luwric Indonesia 50% Indones ia 

Na me of Associate COUl IHUll: 

Avi Oi l India ( I') Ltd. 25% India 

Avi O il lndia (1') Ltd. is classified as associate on the basis of the shareholding pattern which leads to 

s ignificant innuence over them by the Company. Further, in Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LLC, Bahner Lawrie 

Van Leer Ltd, PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia LLC and Transafe Selv ices Ltd. bot h the partners have equnl 

nominee re presentatives in the Board. Hence, these ent ities arc classified as joint ventures and the 

Company recognizes its sha re in net assets through equity method . 

The Company's propol1ionate share of the estimated amount of conlrncls remaining to be executed on 

Capital Accounts rel ating to the Joint Ventllfe & Associate Companies and nol provided for in their 

respective financ ial statements amounts to ~ 569.96 lakhs (~ 608.87 lakhs). 

With the adoption of !nel AS by the company and its group companies, the consolidation of indi vidual line 

items under prop0l1ionate consolidation method being followed earlier under previolls GAAP has been 

discontinued. Under the equity method as prescribed in Ind AS, the net assets of the group companies are 

shown as an increase in equity with corresponding increase in value of Investments in the parent 

company's books. 1·lence the disclosure for aggregate amounts of each of Ihe assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses related to the interests in the Joint Venture and associate companies are no longer relevant 

40.22 Cost of Serv ices is comprised of: 

Air I Rail trave l costs 

Air I Ocean fre ight 

Transportation I Handling 

Other Service charges 

20 18-19 

1,885.08 

22,933.35 

7,007.40 

3,951.21 

35,777.04 

~/Lak hs 

2017-18 

(1 ,683 .33) 

(22,438.04) 

(7,534. 10) 

(5 ,492.70) 

(37,148.1]) 



40.23 Cll pital Work in Progress as at the Balance Sheet date is com pri sed of 

Asset Classificafion (*) 

Leasehold Land 

Building 

Plant & Muchinery 

Electrica l instal illtion & Equipment 

Furniture & Fittings 

Typewriters, Accounting Machine & Off. 

Equipment 

Misc. Eq uipment 

Pre Production Expenses 

As 011 31.03.2019 

280.81 

9,940.73 

834. 18 

103.88 

3.44 

17.26 

82.49 

431.69 

11,694.48 

(.) Subject to finallli location I adjllst ment at the time of capitali zation 

VLakhs 

As on 3 1.03.2018 

3.79 

843 .09 

4 16. 13 

26.78 

34.74 

(1,324.53) 

40.24 Misce llaneous Expenses shown under "Other Expenses" (Note No. 35) do not include any item of 

expenditure which exceeds 1% of the total revenue. 

40.25 (a) Certain fixed depos its with banks amounting to ~ 5,500.00 lakh s (~5 ,2 99.82 lakhs) are plcdged with 

a bank aga inst short term loans ava iled from the said bank. However, there are 110 loans outstanding 

against these pledges as on 3 1.3.20 19. 

(b) Cel1ain fixed deposits amoun ting to iI:' 77.74 lakhs (lit' 69.76 Inkhs) arc pledged wit h a ba nk against 

guarantees availed from the said bank. 

(c) Fixed Deposit with bank amounting to { 0.90 lakhs (~0.85 lak hs) are lodged wi th certain authorities 

as secu rity. 

40.26 Details of Other Payab les (Note No. 23) 

Creditor for Ex penses 

Creditor for Capital Expenses 

Employee Payables 

Statutory Payab les 

Others 

2018-19 

6,200.48 

246.19 

2,226.88 

311.74 

112.71 

9,098.00 

flLakhs 

2017- 18 

(6,423.57) 

(298.59) 

(2, 122.33) 

(369.41 ) 

(89.32) 

(9,303 .22) 

40.27 Illd AS 36, Impairment, req uires the com pany to test assets for impairment at every financial year end 

wherever there exists conditions which indicate that an impairment loss may have occurred. Kolkata 

plant of the SBU Industrial I>ackaging ha ve been incurring losses fo r the last few years. In view of the 

same, fixed assets of the IP KoLkata unit have been impai red during the current and previolls financ ial 

years. The impairmcn t loss resulting from the same has been disclosed as a scparate line item under 

Other expenses in Notc No. 35 of the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

40.28 The company has been sanctioned a Grant~i n ~a id of!il!: 7.83 crores from the Ministry of Food Processing 

Industries (MoFPI) for setting up integrated cold chain facilities at Rai , Ha ryana and Pata lganga, 

Maharashtra. Aga inst the samc the company had been disbursed lI!; 1.81 crores duri ng the previous 

fi nanc ial year 20 1 7~ 1 8 which is treated as a deferred income and grollped under Non Financial 

Liabilities ~ Others (current) to be apP0l1ioncd over the useful life of the assets procured out of such 

grant. During the cUITent financia l yea r, a slim of ~ 12.16 lakhs ({ 5.50 lakhs) has been cred ited to 

income in the statement of profit and loss. 



40.29 During the year the company has slmi'ed the process o r c losi ng down the wholly owned sllbsidiary 

Balmer Lawric (UK) Limited. As a pari o r such ini tiative, a comprehensive portion o r its paid up shares 

was purchased back by the subsidiary compa ny as per laid down gu idelines of the Uni led Kingdom. 

Thi s has resulted in a profi t on disposal of shares of ~ 634.49 Lll khs du ring the year. T he wholly owned 

subsidiary issued share capital now sta nds at 100 eq uity shares with a race value of US $ [ each, which 

are sti ll held by Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd . 

40.30 (a) The financia l statemen ts have been prepared as per the requircment of Di v i s i o n ~ 1 1 to the Schedule III 

of the Companies Act, 20 13. 

(b) Previolls YCl1 r's figu res have been re-group ed or re-arranged or re-classified wherever so required to 

make them comparabl e with currenl year fi gures. 

(c) 

(d) 

FigUles in blackets relate 10 previous yea r. '1.. /' /' 
All amounts in ~ Lakhs unless otherwise sta&.,.J ~ ! ~ 

,y~ 
As per our report attached 
For Dulla SlIrkllr & Co. 
Chnrleretl Accouutants 
Firm Regist ra t ion No. 30311 

CA. Malnak Chakrabartl 
Partner 
Member$hlp No. 063052 
Kolkata, 28th May, 2019 Chairman B: Mana 

Director 

, 

, G - ~~V 
~~ 

Director (Finance) 
B: Chief Financial 

Officer 

Directors 
leA.!"""""" 
Secretary 



Name ofthe 

Statute 

Sa ltls Tax Act. 

Statement of Disputed Dues as on 31st March, 2019 

(Not provided for in the accounts) 

Nature of 

the Dues 

Sa les Tax 17.67 

1.55 

9.03 

23.58 

16.67 

61 .55 

15.65 

2.71 

133.42 

5.78 

0.90 

0.61 

'.08 

4.85 

0.24 

1.35 

1.88 

5.48 

1.37 

109.56 

'.S< 

7.07 

69.38 

15.62 

2,25 

11.67 

1.55 

9.03 

16.67 

61 .55 

15.65 

2.71 

133.42 

5.78 

0.90 

0.61 

' .08 

4.85 

0.2<4 

" .S< 

1.35 

1.88 

5.<48 

1.37 

109.56 

.... 
7.07 

69.38 

15.62 

2.25 

Period to 

which 
the amount 

relates 

Asst yr 1994195 

Asst Vr 199<4195 

Asstt Vr 2012113 

Au.tt Vr 2009110 

Asst yr 2007108 

Asst yr 2010111 

Asstt Vr 2011112 

Asst yr 2007108 

Ass! yr 2003104 

Ass! Yr 2000J0l 

Asst yr 2000-01 

Asst Vr 2001102 

Asstt Yr 2000l01 

AssU Yr 2001102 

Asstt Vr 2008109 

Assl yr 2011 

Ass! year 2000-01 

Assl year 200H12 

Ass! year 2008'()9 

Asst year 200 1'()2 

Asst yr 2011-\ 2 

Asst Yr 2012113 

Asstl Yr 2007108 
01AT Act. 03) 

Assl yr 2003 

Assn Vr 1993/94 

AssU Vr 2005106 

ANN EXURE ·A 

Forum Where 

dispute is 

pending 

Tfibunal. Mumbal 

Tribunel. Mumbal 

Jt. Commissioner, Mumbal 

~ . Commissioner. Mumbal 

JI. Commissioner, Mum!>al 

Jt. CommissiOner, Mumbal 

Jt Comm .• Mumba! 

Jt. Commissioner, Mumbal 

Oy. Commissioner. Mum!>al 

Oy. Commissioner. Mumbai 

Oy. Commissioner. Mumbai 

Dy. Commissioner. Mumba] 

Oy. Commiu.iooer. Mumbal 

Oy. Commissioner. Mumbal 

JI Comm .• Mumbal 

Assn Commissioner. MloMTIbai 

Oy. Commissioner, Mumbal 

Oy. Commissioner, Mumbai 

Jt Commissioner. Mumbal 

Oy. Commissioner. MumbaJ 

Jt. Commissioner, Mumbal 

Jt. Commissionef ·5T Appeal 
Mumbal 

Sf. Jt. CommiSSioner, Appeal 
West Bengal 

CTC. Kochi 

CTC. Kochi 

CTC, Koehl 



Name of the 

Statute 

SUB TOTAL 

ANNEXURE - A (Conld .. ) 

Statement of Disputed Dues as on 31st March, 2019 

(Not provided for in the accounts) 

Nature of 

the Dues 

Amount (Rs.lLakhs) 

2018-19 2017-18 

6.63 6.63 

10.85 10.85 

1.62 1.82 

14.95 

1.64 

14.65 14.65 

67.62 67.82 

37.04 

116.64 

90.93 90.93 

2.17 

12.14 12.14 

32.59 32.59 

137.55 

17.68 17.68 

98.11 98.11 

11.61 12.84 

32.93 66.22 

64.54 64.54 

186.15 186.15 

8.32 8.32 

24.04 

274.64 

241.27 

42.81 

52.50 52.50 

798.81 798.81 

2,548.57 2,484.96 ) 

Period to 

which 

the amount 

relates 

Forum Where 

dispute is 

pending 

Asstt Yr 2005106 CTO. Koehl 

AssU Yr 2004 CTO, Koehi 

AssU Yr 2003104 Ass!. Commissioner, Chennai 

Asstl YI 2008/09 Appeal pending with Me 

Asstl Yr 2008109 Appeal pending with Me 

Asstl Yr 1998199 Appeal pending befole STAT 

Ass!. Year 2005106 Appeal pending with Sales Tax 
Appellale & Revision Board 

VAT Ass\. 2006·07 • do -

CST Ass!. 2006·07 • do -

Ass!. Year 2005106 - do • 

Asstl Yr 1998/99 MC, Chennal 

ASSI Yr 1996/97 Appeal pending wilh MC, Chennai 

Asst Yr 2007108 Appellate & Revision Board 

Asst Yr 2008109 • do • 

Val Ass!. 2013·14 Appellate & Revision Board 

CST Ass!. 2013·14 • do -

VAT Acl.'03 Asst. 2014-15 Addl CommiSSioner Appeal, WB 

CST Act.'06 Ass\. 2014-15 - do -

VAT Ac\.'03 Ass1.2015·16 - do-

CST Act.'06 Ass!. 2015·16 - do -

Vat Assl. 2012·13 -do-

CST Ass!. 2011-12 - do -

Assl Yr 2016117 - do • 

Ass! Yr 2016{17 • do • 

Assl Yr 2009fl0 Addt. Commissioner, West Bengal 

Assl Yr 2010{11 JI. Commissioner, Commercial Tax 

Assl Yr 2009110 Appeal against ny, Commissioner 

Order, Orissa 



PART ·1 ANNEXURE· A (Conld .. ) 

Statement of Disl1uted Dues as on 31st March, 2019 
(Not provided for in the accounts) 

Period to 

which Forum Where 

Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs.lLakhs) the amount dispute is 

Statute the Dues 201 8-19 2017·18 relates pending 

Centrill Excise Act Excise Duly 1,308.11 1,308.11 July'97 Appelale Tribunal, Kolkata 

16.31 16.31 Feb:2004 Appelate Tribunal, Kolkala 

47.00 47.00 04/10/2002 • do • 

40.04 38.17 22·11·2011 Add!. Commissioner (CE) 

0.52 0 .37 0510512011 Dy. Commissianer(CE) 

1.94 1,78 11.02.2013 Commissioner (CE) 

17,57 16.65 0810412017 Comm (Appeals), Mumbal 

27.83 4.87 March. 2011 Camm (Appeals), Mumbal 

9 .78 9.19 March'2010 - do -

29.64 2011-12 Commissioner (Appea~ , Mumbai 

218.03 218.03 .18·09·2002 CESTAT 

99.29 99.29 .02·05-2003 - do -

9.07 9 .07 08-05·2006 - do -

1.42 1,42 .06-07-1995 Ass!. Commissioner 

12.18 12 .18 17-07-1995 - do -

9.97 9.97 27-04-1995 - do -

1.62 1.62 0310612011 Comm. (Appeal) 

1.09 1.09 08-09-1995 Assl. Commissioner 

SUB TOTAL 1,821.77 1,824.76 I 

Cess 120.02 115,09 AssU Yr 1999100 Hi9h Court. Mumbal 

100.63 96,49 Asstt Yr 2000101 High Court, Mumbal 

SUBTOTAl. 220.65 211.58 1 



Name of the 

Statute 

Service Tax Act 

Statement of Disputed Dues as on 31st March. 2019 

(Not provided for in the accounts) 

Period to 

which 

Nature of Amount (Rs.lLakhs) the amount 

the Dues 2018-19 2017-18 relates 

ServicII TilX 1.34 1.27 Ocl13 toDec13 

0.45 0.43 Apr-Hto June14 

0.44 0.42 July 14 to Sepl 14 

1.30 1.23 Oct 14 10 Dec \4 

17.38 17.36 Ass\. Year 2012-13 

6.34 8.34 Ass\. Year2012-13 

22.39 21,26 19-03-2010 

3,054,72 3,054.72 OcI.,2002 - March.2007 

1.08 1.03 Jan:l1-0ct."11 

2.62 2.50 April'06-Dec.'IO 

4.07 3.67 Nov 11 to Jun 12 

4.10 3.90 Nov 11 to Jun 12 

1.19 1.12 26, 'October, 2015 

116.20 110.15 Asstt Yr 2005·0612006·07 

11.67 10.97 21, April. 2015 

14.58 14.00 Apr 06 to Feb 10 

3.30 3,15 Marl0toDecl0 

5.31 5.09 Apr 06 to Dec 10 

17.94 Apr.'15 10 June'I7 

46.39 46.39 11512011 

27.99 27.99 23-07-2012 

. -

ANNEXURE - A (eontd •. ) 

Forum Where 

dispute is 

pending 

Asst ,Commisioner 

Central Excise (Adjn), Mumbai 

Do 

Do 

Do 

Commissioner of Cenlral Excise 

Coimbalore 

- Do -

Commissioner (Appeal) Service 

T" 

CESTAT. West Bengal 

Suppdl. 

- Do 

Superinterldenl 

Asstt Commissioner 

AssLCommlsioner, Mumbai 

Addt. Commissioner (Service Tax), 

West Bengal 

Commissioner-Service Tax 

Audil Commisslonerate Kolkata 

Asstt Commissioner, Mumbai 

Superintendent. Mumbal 

Asslt Commissioner. Mumbai 

Show cause letter issued from 

Commissioner Office 

Appellate Tribunal 

1st Appellate Authority, Deihl 



Name of the 

Statute 

Statement of Disputed Dues as on 31st March, 2019 

(Not provided for in the accounts) 

Period to 

wh ich 

Nature of Amount (Rs.lLakhs) the amount 

the Dues 2018-19 2017-18 relates 

525.21 525.21 2013-1 4 

21 .58 2012-15 

5.04 4.79 July 12 to Mar 13 

310.85 310.85 2016-17 

4.38 4.15 Apr13toSep13 

1.364.63 1,364.63 01 -03-2017 

716.14 Apr.'08 to March'Og 

67.62 67.62 811012016 

30.80 29.25 Oct 07 to Mar 13 

5,653.38 6,397.37 I 

GRAND TOTAL 10,244.37 10,918.6711 

ANNEXURE - A (Contd •. ) 

Forum Where 

dispute is 

pending 

Central Excise Service Tax 

Appellate Tribunal ,Deihl 

Show cause letter issued frol11 

Commissioner Office 

Asslt Commissioner, Mumbai 

CESTAT. Coimbatore 

Assn Commissioner, Mumbai 

Commissioner order CHN 

dated 01.03.2017 

CE5TAT, MUMBAI 

CESTAT, HYDERABAD 

Commissioner, Mumbai 



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. 

Notes to the financial st,uements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

(All amounts ill ~ lakh, nnless otherwise stated) 

Note; 41 

Segment Revenue 

Total Segment 

Revenue 

Industrial P:lcklging 63,676 

LogiStics lniramucture 18,761 

Logistic Se.!Vices 33,246 

T rJve1 & VaC:lUons 15,977 

Greases &Lubricants 37,600 

Others 9,854 

Total Segm eIll Revenue 1,79,113 

Segment PWfit/ (Loss) before Interest & Income Tax 

Industrial Packaging 5,416 

Logistics Infr.J.Structure 4,373 

Logistic Services 7,971 

Travel & Vacations 6,025 

Greases & Lubricams 3,854 

Oilim 372 

Total Segment Profit 28,010 

31 March 2019 

Inter Segment Revenue from 

Revenue external 

customers 

1,083 62,593 

JJ 18,728 

62 33,184 

314 15,663 

95 37,505 

6 9,848 

1,593 1,77,520 

31 March 2019 

5,416 

4,373 

7,971 

6,025 

3,854 

372 

- 28,010 

31 March 2018 

Total Inter Segment Revenue from 

Segment Revenue external 

Revenue customers 

59,492 1.528 57,964 

19,244 187 19,057 

33,136 5' 33,077 

15,893 162 15731 

40,374 140 40,234 

9,939 81 9,858 

1,78,079 2,158 1,75,921 

31 March 2018 

5,842 5,842 

4,474 4,474 

8,483 8,483 

5,294 5,294 

3,096 3,006 

(1,079) (1,079) 

26,111 - 26,111 



s '" 11 nt Assets " .. ' , 
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

Segment assets Invcs.mem in Addirions to non S~gmcnr Segment as,",to InvtsrMcnt in Additions to Stgmem 
associates and Curren' aSSetS aSi ctS aSIiOC;a.cs and non-<:ur...,nt as...,t~ 

join. >'en"'Teo join. ven",,,,. a,,,,et. 

IndusrruJ P",bging 32,182 32.182 31765 31J 6S 

Logiscic:s lnf= 22,111 ??,Ill 21,653 21,653 

Logisric Ser<ices 12,202 11.202 7,756 7,756 

Tr:wel & Vacations 34,239 34,239 32,538 32,538 

G=ses & Lubricams 19,309 19,309 19,349 19..349 

om," 6,888 6,8gS 6,331 6,331 

Toul Segment Assets 1,26,931 - - 1,26,931 1,19,393 - - 1,19,393 

Unallocmed 

Dd'crred ux assetS - -
investments 13,841 166 14,007 8138 5.103 13,841 

Derivative fUl~nci:>.1 instruments - -

om" ""'" 
47,294 47,294 5\,951 51,951 

Tom! aSS<!t> as per the halanee sheet 1,88,066 '" - 1,88,232 1,80,082 5,103 - 1,85,185 

ImpnjOlJrn! of AS$£IE 

, ~ 

~. , "'J 

',0;0.89 

, 

= '.614 -'" 
, 

~ 
, 
, ,. 

m 

~ 

~ 
, , 59,599 



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. 

Notes to the financial statements for the y<:ar ended 31 March 2019 

(All amounts in f (lacs), unless otherwise Slated) 

42 Financial Risk Management 

i) Financial instruments by category 

For :1frlottised COSt irutruments, tarrying value represents the bcst Clitima f ~ of fair value. 

31 Match 2019 31 March 2018 

Particulats Fait value througb Amortised Cost'" Fair valu~ through Amortised Cosr* 

Profit or Loss Profit or Loss 

Financial Assets 

Equity instrumenn; ..... 149.50 - 14.46 -
Trade rctcivablcs - 27,619.22 - 27,127.33 

Other reccivables - 21,640.30 - 24,1 \9.72 

Loom - 1,725.55 - 2,895.66 

Actrued income - 2,226.70 - 2,240.70 

Security dcpo~i ! - 908.38 - 810.36 

Cash and t'J.sh equivalents - 4,614.05 - 5,059.07 

Other bank bal:mccs - 39,071.11 - 43,007.56 

Total- Financial Asse ts 149.S0 97,80S.31 14.46 I,OS,260.40 

Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables - 29,305.66 - 32,279.\0 

Security deposit - 2,468.01 - 2,457.74 

O th" .. financhllbbil iries - 9,098.00 - 9,303.22 

Derivative finnncialli:!.bili ti c~ - - - -
Total- Financial Liabilities - 4O,87l67 - 44,040.06 

-All financial auel>l/ liabiliries Stated aoove arc measured at amortised COSt and their respective Clrrying valUe!! arc not ron;;.idcrcd to be matcri:>.Ily d ifferent !'rom Iheir &ir values. 

''''1. Investment in equity instrument of 5ubsidbries, joinl ventures :md associates have been cnn:i~d al tOSI amounring to t 13857.30 lacs (31 M:u:ch 2018 t \3826.20 bcs) as per Ind AS 27 

~Separ:l.te Financial Statt-ment" and hente not presenK-d here. 

"'*2 This inv~tmenl includes investmenT in other unqUOTe<! ~ccuriric~ and the management estimates that its fair value would nOl be m:lr<.'fi:illy diffcrenT from its c:urying value, hence no fair valuc 

hicra.rchy disclosul"t.'S are given in respcCT to these insmunenrs. 



iJ) Risk Management 

"Ibe Comp:my', ac:rivitiC$ expose it to m:Ltket risk, liquidity risk and crediT ruk" This nott e"pbin~ the soun:es of ri,;k. which the entity is c:xpmcd 10 and how the C'ntiry m:ln.:J,go the risk and the 

rclat~ imp:aa in the fin:ancillJ nalemC'nts. 

Risk E""oswe arising from Measurement Manaec:ment 

Credit Risk Tade Receivables, C:ash :and c:I~h Ageing Arutlyti, Keeping $urplu~ c:lsh only in the fann ofb:J.nk depmiu, divcrsificl.!:ion 
cquiv:alenn, deriv2nve Iln:anoo of auet base; monitoring of credit limiu Uld getting rolbter:als, 
Uutrumcnr>l, fin:am:W :ancu rneasutro 11.1 wh~er fc:lsiblc:. Pt:riodic TCVICW/ moruronng of mde receivables. 
:amonUcd con. 

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other li:abilities Rolling ash flow fon:o.lu Periodic fC"VlCW of cuh flow foreasa 

M:arket Risk" Fordgn Exchange Recognised fin:mci:tl:asKtll and liabilities Cash flow forecu:ting and monitoring of Review of cuh Oow forec:u" and hedging through fonwrd C()I1tQCI$ 

not denomin:ated in Indi:tn Rupec: ( I: ) foreJ( r.l.1C"I on regubr b:alis 

The Company's risk m:mll8ement other than in respect of trade receivables is c:arricd out by a cenlraltre:!.Sury dl!Jlaml1cnt under polidC1l approved in-principle by Ihe Board ofDiccctors. "Ibe 

policie$ include principles fOf overall risk mamgt'mcnt, :u well as polide ~ c()v~"fing ~pccific aTeas, luch:u foreign exchange risk, interest fat\.: ri~k. credit ri,k and inve~fment of surp l ~ funds. 

Company'. riJk in respect of mde re<:e ivabJc~ is fTUlrul.gcd by the Chief O pcr:l.nng Offic er of the rc~ p ~'Ctive S(1":lIegie Businc~s Units. 

A) Credit ri,k 

Cm:lit ruk rcfctS ( 0 the tisk of defaull on in oblig2non by the countetparty n:sulting in a fin:r.nci:tllotl. The m:IJlimum o;~urc to cm;:iit risk iJ primarily from tr:ade reccivablC1l and other 

rl.'Ceivables amounting to I: 49259.52 bu:u at March 31, 2019 (I: 51,247.05 bcs ~ s at March 31, 2018). "flIe receivables are Typically u n ~cuTed ~nd:ltc deriv~ from revenue earned from CUStomers 

which is predomin:tndy OUBt:lnding from S:HC1I [() Government departments and public scaor entities whose risk of default has been very low in t~ p:ast. In o..e or Olher tr:lde receivables, mc 

credit risk has been m:lnaged bued nn eominuou$ monit~ of c;recIil worthincu of cwtomers, :tbility to rcp:iy and their PllSI tr:lck record. 

Provisions 

FO( rcrcivahlcs 

·£bert are nn uruvernl apcctcd loss percentages which can be derived for the Cnmp:any:u a whole. The Comp:any peraIly considers its TCi:c1v:abICll a, imp:ured when they lue out~l2.nding for over 

mitt years period. Considering the historical trends based on amounts aetu:lUy incunro as:a lou in thU reg=! over the pas! few years and market infomution, the COfnp:tny esrim:t tCS that the 

provision computed on its trade receivables will nol be materially different from the amount computed ~ing expected crcdit loss method pn:scribed undcr Ind AS " 109. Since the amount of 

provision is not m:atcri:IJ fOf Ihe Company as a whole, no di:sclosures h:ave been given in respecl of n:pccted credit lo:isc:s. 

for orhrr Fjnaocial a'~Cf:! 

Loans - arc given {O rcgu.lu employeC$ who are on the payroU of the company:u per the employment {emu and primarily secured in cue of howe building and vehicle loan •. FOf Other loans, the 

Accrued income _ includes Dividend income from hoth Indian and foreign JV',jam)ci:l.Tcs. I Ience no credit risk is rnvlslged. 

Deposits - represent omounts lying with customers fOlIinJy govcm<..mnt and public J~'Ctor undertakings on account of security dcpo$il!, ClI.mcst money deposin and retention money giVt"ll as per 
comracwal (emu. Bllsed on Pll!t records Ihc risk of default is minimal 

Cash & Cash equivalcnt~ . tcpresenT cash in hand and balances lying in current aCCOUnfli with variuus consortium bank~ who have high cr~-dit ranO(p. 

O ther Bank balanccs _ !Tl2inly rcpn:sent fixed deposits having maturities up to one ycat and includes accrued interest on such dCJlO$illl. lbcfc dcposiu h:ave been taken with various public and 

private SCi:tor banks having rhe high credi! racings. 



B) Liquidity rilk 

Liquidil), risk :lrises from borrowingll3nd olher lbblitic.. The comp2.ny ruu men a Joan on 15 Cron:s from Srand:ttd Ch:inercd Banle (m FY 2017-t8) 10:lv:ill of Gnnl in :lid from rhe Miniruy of 

flood Proceuing lndustri/:~ (Mol'l)l) :lnd C~CCI5 10 rcp~y the I:lme as per schedule. Thc flf':!l tr.lncnc: of R$. t.25 croft's W:1$ paid:l' :lnd when iT was due. 

Prudem liquidi!)' risk marutgcml"tll implies m:l inraining ~uffici(!Tlt cash :lnd Ill:Irlecl:lble securities :lOd Ihc :lvail:lbili!), of funding thmugh an :ldcqu3lc lImounr of commined credil facilities to met'l 

obligations .... hcn due. Due to the IllItUrc of Ihe husinC5s, (he Company mainoinl flexibility in funding by maimaining :lv:libbility under commincd f:tcilitiCl. 

M>l nagl-ment monitors mlling forcc:J.sts of the Comp:lny'l liquidity position :lnd cuh 1I.nd C2~h equivalcnll on thc hui>! of expl,(:lcd ouh flows. The Comp2.ny mke;! infO lIceoum the liquidity of the 

Ill:Irkc{ in which the entity operares. In addition, lhe Company's liquidity lll:In:lgemcm policy involves considering the level of liquid ancts ncceuary ro mCCI mese, moniloring balance shcel 

liquidity n.tiot agairut inlenui and extemal rcgul:l.lory requiremenrs L'Id tn2inClining shorr 1= debl fuuncing pbns. 

The company does nOI foresee :lny problc:ms in disch1rging their liabilities low:lrd" ['!lIde pa)'Ibles and OIher cUrTCrl.lli:tbilirics:l1 and .... hen mcy:lre fulling dUl:. 

C) Market Risk 

Market risk arises due to change in interesl I,Uel Ot foreign exchange nltes. 

1) Interest rate risk 

l be comp3ny is exposed to interest tale risle to Ihe extent of its investments in fixed deposits with bank •. The company h:1$ "Iso invested in preference .hare o.pit:L! of its joint ven1\lte: cOtnpany, 

MI. Tr.lns3fe Services Limited which hu been enrirdy provided for in me book, of the company on actount of total etO:Iion orNet Worth of Ihe JV lnd hence no further income is being :lccrued 

on this atcount. The company taJ not inveued in any other innrumcnu except ~'quit), invc,umenrs. The company h:us :a very insigmfiant borrowing on .... hich uuercn is p:ty:able :lnd il docs: nol 

fort'llec IIny risk in irs tcp:lyrm"nl. 

2) Foreign cUn"Cocy risk 

The Company is exposed w foreign cxdunge risk 3riJing from nCI fon,ign CUrTCrl.cy p3)':I.bICl, prinurily wilh respcet to the US Dolbr, GBP and cum. Forcign excrumge risk IIri$CS from recognised 

3'$C~ and liabilities dcnomin:r.led in I =cy ltal is nOI the Comp~ny'. functional currency. lltc Company as pet it:! over.ill Sfnlegy WCII fon>r:ard CODtt:l.ca w mirig:lIe ia mks ISsocU.ted with 

fluctuuions in forcign c:w:t=cy and inleresl r.lres on bocro,.,.jngs Ind such COOtt:l.CII an: not dcsign:ltcd III hedge. under Ind 1\5-109. 11u: Company docs: 001 usc forvnrd eomncu fex _pecubrivc 

putpo~Cll 

lbe Company is also exposed to foreign cl<ch:lnge rule :truing from net foreign currency te:ceiv::l.b1cs on aCCOunt of dividend :lnd other fees from its foreign 5ubJidi:u:ies :lnd a~$oci:tlcs, prim:uiJy 

with respect to the US Dollar and AED . 

·Ine Company.:u a maner of policy decided by the Board of Dire CION. do nOI enler inw dcriv:lrive conlt:lCIS. 

The Comp2.n)'I exposure to OI"CI~ CUlTt'tlCY {IS all e o , , · Ie hcndfhc «pO""'" ~""" , ID ID IVl cd· . d· 'dual currenOC$ an: :1$ o OWl; 

PaniculanJ 31 Match 2019 31 March 2018 

Net Payables 

USD 23,47,472 36,63,714 

Eum 16,42,92/) 17,81,941 

GHP 5,68.018 4,73,197 

Forward ContractS 

GBP . 80.000 

USD 2,15,000 . 

Reeeiv:.tbies 

AED 96,39,887 1.09,18.698 



I -

owpauy 5 I:l::pO$U!C to 

Particulars 

Net payables 

USD 

Euro 

GBP 

Receivables 

AED 

Sensitivity 

USD 

E ~o 

GBP 

AED 

orCtgn currency as :l.11 C cn , ' k h 

In,o<'''''' by 50 Basis pointS" 

USD 

E= 
GBP 

AED 

0 1 C rt:pomng fX~ d f h '00 cxp r c~se '" 
~' , ilrC a$ , II () OW5 ( " '" .:I.e. : 

31 March 2019 31 Match 2018 

1.635 2,403 

1,293 1,447 

520 '" 
1,770 1,887 

81.73 120.17 

64.63 72.37 

26.00 21.92 

88.49 94.34 



43 Capital Management 

The Company's capiraJ ma.nagtmcnt objectives a~c: 

. to ('n~urc the Companj~s ability to continue :l..1 a going concern 

- to provide an adequate return to shar<.::r.oJdc(s 

The Company monitoa capirnl on the basis of the c:mying amount of equity less ca~h and ca~h cquiv:L!enDl :IS presented on du: Sc~ ofbabnce sheet. 

Management assesses the Company's capital requiremcnts in ordcr to maint:l.in an cfficiem overall financing structure while avoiding excl'S~ivc leverage. lbis takes imo account the subordination 

levels of the Company's various classes of debL The Company m,magcs the capital ~truCNre and maJ.::t""S adju~tmcnrs to it in the light of dlllngC$ in ecooumic conditions and the risk characleri~tics 

of the underlying asscts. In o«kr to nm1nmln or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, rcrum capital to shareholders, issue n=· shares. 

or ,;ell a,sClS to reduce debt. 

The Company, being a CPSE il; governed by the guidelincs on Capital i<sued hum time to rime by the Govcmmem of India. 

~ in Lacs 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 Mareh 2018 

Tara.! Equity 1,30.020.44 1,25,586.14 

Toral A~~cts 1,88,231 .72 1,85,184.98 

Equity Ratio 69.07% 67.82% 

Dividends (~ill Lacs 

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

(i) Dividend recognised at the end of the reponing period 

Final dividend for the year ended 31 M!l.rch 2018 of ~ 10 (31 March 2017 "t T) pC! fully paid share (Net of Dividend D i ~lriburion Tax). 11,400.26 7,980.18 

(ii) D ividends not recognised at the cnd of the reporting period 

In addition to the above dividends, since year-end, the director> have recommCtlded The payment of f1Illl.l dividend of"t 11 (31 March 1018 "t 10) 12,540.29 11,400.26 

per fulIy paid equity share. 11ti.$ propo~ed dividCtld is subjeCT to fhe approval of shareholder> in the ensuing Annual Gencrul Meeting. 
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DUlTA 

SARKAR & COMPANY 
CHARTERED ACCOUN TANTS 

7 A, Kiron Sankar Roy Road 
2nd Floor 

Kolkata - 700001 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fmancial statements of Balmer Lawrie & 

Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries 

(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), its associates and 

jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 

2019, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, (the consolidated statement of changes 

in equity) and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid consolidated fmancial statements give the information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code 

of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report; 

SI.No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

l. 
Implementation of IND AS 115 

We assessed the Company's process to 
Accuracy of recognition, measurement, identify the impact of adoption ofthe new 

and disclosures of presentation revenue accounting standard. 
revenues and other related balances in 6~ ~ f.... ~. 

Telephone : + 91 33 2248 1760 / 2213 1333 5 "o ~ 2" o .!!! 

E-mail : infp@duttasarkar.com / dusac.2009@rediffmail. com 1< $ 
qa ~ ~~f::' 

Website : www.duttasarkar.com '/"Ie.red ~cc, 
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. CHARTEREDACCOU NTANTS 

SI.No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

2. 

VIew of adoption of IND AS 115 Our audit approach consisted of studying 

"Revenue from Contracts with the internal audit report regarding the 

Customers" (new revenue accounting implementation and also testing of the 

standard) design and operating effectiveness of the 

The application of the new revenue internal controls and substantive testing. 

accounting standard involves certain 

key judgements relating to 

identification of distinct performance 

obligations, determination of 

transaction pnce of the identified 

performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to 

measure revenue recognised over a 

period. Additionally, new revenue 

accounting standard contains 

disclosures which involves collation of 

information in respect of disaggregated 

revenue and periods over which the 

remaining performance obligations will 

be satisfied subsequent to the balance 

sheet date 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions 

The Company has tax matters under 

dispute which involves judgment to 

determine the possible outcome of 

these disputes 

We evaluated the design of internal 

controls relating to implementation of the 

new revenue accounting standard. 

We selected a sample of continuing and 

new contracts, and tested the operating 

effectiveness of the internal control, 

relating to identification of the distinct 

performance obligations and 

determination of transaction price. We 

carried out a combination of procedures 

involving enqUiry and observation. 

Samples III respect of recording and 

recognition of revenue were tested by 

checking the invoices and performance. 

Conclusion Our procedures did not 

identifY any material exceptions 

We obtained the details of assessment 

orders to the extent available regarding 

those assessments for which disputes are 

continuing and being disclosed as 

contingent liability from management. 

[Refer Note:40.2 (a) read with We involved our internal experts to 

annexure "A" estimate the possible outcome of the 

disputes . Our internal experts considered 

the assessment orders and other rulings in 

evaluating management's position on 

these uncertain tax positions to evaluate 

whether any change was required to 

management's position on these 

uncertainties. 

Conclusion 

We agree with management's evaluation 

Debtors Due for More than Three We have checked the debtor's ageing 

= - years and Credit Balance in Sundry schedule of the SBU's. The authority is 

'/",<-'i-.!::!!. '.::. ~ _ Debtors Accounts (unallocated regularly following up on the realisation 
,," ~ ~ 0. \ 
~{ ~ ' ~I I ~ ~ ~ __ ~r_e_c_e ~ ip~t _ S~) ________________________ L-0_f_th_e __ sa_m __ e_._A_s_i_s_e_v_id_e_n_t_fr_o_m __ t_h _e_a~g~e_ in ~g~ 
?\'t-0 ~ 
o s 
.c - r;.CJr:J 

i5artere6 ~ 
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SI.No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

The company has credit balance III schedule dues do exist for more than three 

some customer accounts across all years against which provision has been 

Strategic Business Unit (SBU's). The provided for in the accounts. 

credit balance III these customer We, during the course of our examination 

accounts are due to either of the have also checked the unadjusted 

following reasons: 

• Amount lying m the nature of 
advance in the customer account; 

• Amount credited to customer 
account but the same could not be 
trackedllinked w(th any sales 

advances from customers for more than 

three years and also the credit balances 

lying in customers' accounts on account 

of unmatched mVOlces (unallocated 

receipts) . Some of the advances lying 

unadjusted for more than three years have 

• 
mVOlce. 
Non-reconciliation of these been written back during the course of 

balances III the absence of audit. In some cases the management is in 

customer's confirmation resulting the process of reconciliation with the 

in the credit balances lying for long respective parties and hence the process 

periods of write back has been kept in abeyance. 

The debtors balance of Logistic services 

(LS) Kolkata, includes of receivables 

from Hindustan Paper Corporation 

Limited (Rs.59,91,087/-) and Stone India 

Limited (Rs.l 8,1 5,692/-) Both the 

companies have gone to NCLT and claim 

has been filed by the company under the 

insolvency and bankruptcy code and the 

same verified by us and also provided in 

the accounts by the management. 

As according to the books of accounts the 

total credit balances lying in customers' 

accounts is Rs.2588.46 lakhs/- and credit 

balance lying over three years IS 

Rs.470.73 Lakhs spread over various 

SBU's. 

Conclusion: 

The management is following up on the 

process of reconciliation with regard to 

unallocated receipts. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation 

of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 

2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 

performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly 

controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act The respective 

Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly 

controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 

companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are 

responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled 

entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates 

and jointly controlled entities is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of 

the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group 

and its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, ifsuch 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled 

entities to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of 

such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 

independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated fmancial 

statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated fmancial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

a. We did not audit the financial statements I financial information of two subsidiaries, 

whose financial statements I financial information reflect total assets of Rs.23729.5 

lakhs as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of Rs.34.82 Lakhs and net cash flows 

amounting to Rs.(1886.36 Lakhs) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 

consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include 

the Group's share of net profitlloss ofRs. Nil for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as 

considered in the consolidated fmancial statements, in respect of nil associates, whose 

financial statements I financial information have not been audited by us . These financial 

statements I financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports 

have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 

respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in 

terms of sub-sections (3) and (I I) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the 

reports of the other auditors. 

b. The holding company and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India have 

generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs 

Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 

authorities except Transafe Services Limited, which has not deposited undisputed dues 

in respect of Goods and Service Tax (GST) as on 31.03.2019 to the tune of 

Rs.67,12,0191- (Rupees Sixty Seven Lakhs Twelve Thousand and Nineteen only) 

details of which are given herein below: 
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Period to 

Name of 
Nature of Dues Amount(Rs) 

which the Due Date of 

Statute Amount Payment 

Relates 

rGST 31,32,9711- FY 2018-19 
Apri12018 

onwards 

Delhi GST 
CGST 4,23 ,538/- FY 2018-19 

April 2018 
Act, 201 7 onwards 

SGST 4,23,538/- FY 2018-19 
April 2018 
onwards 

rGST 4,7511- FY 2018-19 
April 18, 
onwards 

Maharashtra 
GST Act, CGST 13,02,643/- FY 2018-19 March ' 18 

201 7 onwards 

SGST 14,24,578/- FY 201 8-19 

c. Transafe Services Limited has defaulted in repayment of dues ofloans to certain banks 

as detailed below: 

Name of Bank 
Amount of 

Period of Default 
Default (in Rs) 

Axis Bank Ltd 23,57, 13,797/- From January 2017 

Karur Vysya Bank Ltd 14,87,90,205/- From March 201 7 

HDFC Bank Ltd 19,97,27,117/- From September 201 5 

Bank of India 1,57,48,219/- From March 2016 

Syndicate Bank 46,09,85,31 2/- From June 201 4 

Total 106,09,64,650 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 

respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 

financial statements I financial information certified by the Management. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As directed by order No. SO 1228 (E) of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, dated 29 

March 2016, " a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (II) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013, is not applicable for consolidated financial statements; 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 

of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors; 

c. The reports on the account of the jointly controlled entities audited under section 

143 (8) of the act by other auditors have been submitted to us and have been 

properly dealt with by us in submitting this report; 

d. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 

and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated fmancial statements; 

e. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the. directors of the 

Holding Company as on 31 st March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors 

of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary 

companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in 

India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and 

jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 st March, 

2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

g. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

report in Annexure A; 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule II of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in 

our opinion and to the best .of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

1. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending 

litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its 

associates and jointly controlled entities-Note 40.4 (a) to the 

consolidated financial statements; 
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Place: Kolkata 
Date: 28 May 2019 

11 . The Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have 

any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts; 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, 

and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly 

controlled companies incorporated in India; 

For Dutta Sarkar & Co_ 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No. 303114E) 

Mainak Chakrabarti 
Partner 

M_No_0630S2 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph I(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ' 

section of our report to the Members of Balmer Lawrie & Company Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Our reporting includes 7 (seven) jointly controlled entities in India to which the order is 

applicable, which has been audited by other auditors and our report in respect of these entities 

is based solely on the auditor's report, to the extent considered applicable for reporting under 

the order in the case of consolidated IND AS financial statements_ 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Balmer Lawrie & 

Company Limited ("the holding Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our 

audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and other 

auditors have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of jointly 

controlled entities incorporated in India as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with their audit 

of the financial statement of the respective jointly controlled entities for the year ended on that 

date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the holding company and jointly controlled entities is responsible 

for establishing and maintaining internal fmancial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the holding company and jointly controlled entities 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

fmancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the holding company and jointly controlled entities based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143( 1 0) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable bout whether adequate internal financial 
c,t- ~ 

(' 
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controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on holding company's and jointly controlled entities' internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statement 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the holding company and jointly controlled entities incorporated in India has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting. Though certain 

areas require further strengthening, it does not have any material effect on the internal financi al 

controls. The internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 28 May 2019 

For Dutta Sarkar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 303114E) 

tt -~~J ~· 
Mainak Chakrabarti 

Partner 

M.No.063052 



JALMER LAWRIE 8: CO. LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 st March 2019

Particulars Hote No
As at 31 March

2019

ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Investment Property

(d) GoodwiU

(e) Other Intangible assets

(f) Intangible assets under development

(g) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Loans

(iii) Others

(h) Deferred tax Assets (net)

(i) Other Non Current assets

Total Non Current Assets

(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Cash ft cash equivalents

(iii) Other Bank Balances

(iv) Loans

(v) Others

(c) Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

2

4

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

56,319.08

11,717.60

111.39

0.00

391.08

32,506.53

420.89

775.27

8,309.39

1,10,551.23

14,293.31

27,629.10

5,336.73

39,071.11

474.14

24,775.38

5,922.11

1,17,501.88

2,28,053.11 i

I
" ,-.- zs Il ••-r~\..I. :J

1AC.557.34 :

1,51,953.:9

5.4:2.6C

i3¥.:·1·

:.C58.58

(~in Lacs)

As at 31 March,

20,8

40,375.07

13,806.59

113.54

0.00

527.27

29,260.38

428.29

554.61

8,188.47

93,254.22

13,663.32

26,978.33

7,591.53

"3.C07.56

262.66

27.2~2.25

t • ,3,.0 j
1.25.83, .2,

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

OWNERS EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

MINORITY INTEREST

Equity attribuatble to Non Controlling Interest

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES

(1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

(d) Non Financial Liabilities - Others

19

'9

19

c.:

21

f [

17

18

18

..... .!.: :.:5

5 . ...:.::.:: :

.. :- ::

Total Non Current Liabilities

(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

-Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises

-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Non-Financial Liabilities -Others

(c) Provisions

(d) Current Tax liabilities (net)

2.2

21

23

I

1.::.

25

26

i

i

•... :.-: - ..,

Total Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial staterneats.

Chairman 8:

Managing Director

Kolkata, 28th May, 2019



[,ALMERLAWRIE & CO. LIMITED

S,atement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

For The Year Ended

31 March 2019

Note No.
Revenue

Revenue from operations

Other income
27

28

1,77,520.81

5,779.29

1,83,300.10
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed & Services rendered

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

29

30

31

1,10,530.18

329.45

343.82

Excise Duty on sales

Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

32

33

34

35

21,270.38

712.37

3,031.25

22,425.44

1,58,642.89
Profit before exceptional items and Tax

Exceptional Items

Profit before Tax

Tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit for the period from Continuing Operations

24,657.21

24,657.21

36

8,122.58

424.138

16,110.50

Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Tax expense of Discontinued Operations

Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations after Tax

Profit/(Loss) for the period -attributable to owners

Profit/(Loss) for the period -attributable to Noncontrolling Interest
16.333. 'A

Other Comprehensive Income

A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

37

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Profit /(Loss) and

Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

I
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic ('e)

(2) Diluted ('e)

38

-:4." ~

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):

(1) Basic ('e)

(2) Diluted ('e)

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations):

(1) Basic ('e)

(2) Diluted ('e)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

/t~~
As per our report attached ((g ...r...... . L,TA )~9~~.'" J;
For Dutta Sarkar & Co ~;.".: •... ~<:~r;
Chartered Accountants "'0,,:,::;3~
Firm Registration No. 303114E .,

M'cW.(~~
CAMainak Chakrabarti

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

Partner

Membership No. 063052

nL ,~
~ /.;;~ .. -. ' ..,.;

r, ~

Chairman & -/-. ~eJ

Managing Direc~ ~'~hi~f'~i~'~~'~ial

Officer

Kolkata, 28th May, 2019

(~in Lacs)

For The Year Ended

31 March 2018

1,75,653.80

5,063.76

1,80,717.56 :

1,05,749.72

712.43

1,199.19

3,303.94

19,820.49

422.73

2.689.55

22.989.54

1,56,887.59

--'

. ...:...!.:



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of Assets

Write off/Provision for doubtful trade receivables (Net)

Write off/Provision for Inventories (Net)

Other Write off/Provision (Net)

(Gain)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)

(Gain)/ Loss on fair valuation of Investments (net)

Interest income

Dividend Income

Finance costs

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) in trade receivables

(Increase)/Decrease in non current assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in other short term financial assets

(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase/ (Decrease) in long term provisions

Increase/ (Decrease) in short term provisions

Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash flow generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from operating activities A

Year ended

31 March 2019

~ in lacs

Year ended

31 March 2018

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase or construction of Property.plant and equipment

Purchase of Investments

Proceeds on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on sale of Investment

Bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months net

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from investing activities B

24,657 23,830

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Dividend paid (including tax on dividend)

Loans Taken

Loans given

Finance cost paid

Net cash used by financing activities c

3,031

19

(103)

46

301

(6)

(634)

(2,865)

(3)

712

2,690

1,071

(2,909)

(36)

2,814

11

Net cash increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A-i-B-i-Cj

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Movement in cash balance

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statemem

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the fol.lo,~,-lr:g

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

On current accounts

On deposits with original maturity upto 3 months

As per our report attached

For Dutta Sarkar fr Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 303114E

Partner Chairman fr

(3,559)

(3)

423

25,155 24,332

Membership No. 063052 Managing Director &: Chief Financial

(548)

2,896

(676)

1,915

1,081

:2,418

4,091

2,050

1,542

9.116,

Officer

Kolkata, 28th May, 2019
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27,844 20,52»

19,406
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d ear ended 31 March 2019
Balmer Lawrie & Co. Lt . f changes in equity for the y
Consolidated Statement 0

~ in tees

Bonus shares issued during the

year

74.n

1,109.62 1::C.1435,603.82

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Profit for the year

Bonus shares issued

Dividends paid

Dividend Tax paid

Transfers . adjustment

Retained earnings ,J during the year

Rerneasurement ga::~~';019 __', <;;'"

Balance as at 31 M -;;0;-': {n'gi;, ~$;;\:qf even date,

h es in Equi, r:e-re~l1l;! _ , _~"~/;.) \.<,~
- , h 5tatementofC an" ~. _-_"" 6! \\

This ts t e h d {I..~~/ \ C-()\~l
As per our report attac e I :.:::, I ,'r, I " ,'_ 'T' " ) 0 1

For nutta serxar a cc ilC; ",;<UL"',h, I;~/J
Chartered Accoun~n~03114E \\ c) \ / <:::> .I
Firm Regtstration 0, \\ ,;" >',,_ _/ \,1;'/,/

:-':~~(,/,~Z~;;~'

35,603.82 93,732.13 ,

15,508.30 I

(11,400.26!1

(2,413.43)1

i344.02)

':288,92 I
602.20 I

1, ~09.62

·:.S:!.:·:

",<.:.::

--!...:.--

3,626.77

83 . ..;i;

1,026.22 ::.33

5,603,B2 I J"rI"'"

/ %'

~~~

~\ iNJ ' ." f$/£

~~~v
/~ ~
"..- Director{Finance)

/ a Chief Financial

Officer

CA Mainak Chakrabarti

:a:::rshiP No. 063052

Kclkata, 28th May , 2019

Chairman &

Managing Director



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information to the Consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31March 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE \VITH IND AS

Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd. (the "Company") is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in

diversified business with presence in both manufacturing and service businesses. The group is

engaged in the business of Industrial Packaging, Greases & Lubricants, Leather Chemicals,

Logistic Services and Infrastructure, Refmery & Oil Field and Travel & Vacation Services in India.

The company is a Government company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the

provisions of Companies Act applicable in India, its shares are listed on recognized stock exchange

of India.

Basis of Preparation .

The consolidated fmancial statements relates to the Company along with its subsidiaries and its

interest in joint ventures and associates (collectively referred to as the 'Group') 8Li have beer,

prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as

amended issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other relevant provisions of the Compare es

Act, 2013. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the period preseced.

These are the Group's fmancial statements prepared in accordance with and comply in al. materia.

aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Unless otherwise stated, all a:::l:::".:':":S c.:e

stated in lacs of Rupees.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current 2.5per tr.e ;=-=-':':;5 ::.===a~

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule III to the Cor:::.p""";es _~::::,:=~:.3:.se=-
on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets 1'0r pr:::cess'-; ==- ::'e:"::

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the group has ascertained its operate; cyc.e as :: - :::::.::'s

for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The preparation of fmancial statements requires the use of accounting es::- a:es '.~::.;c:=:',:::

defmition, mayor may not equal the actual results. Management also needs t::' e~\:er2~5e_;-.:.::';e=e::.:

in applying the Group's accounting policies.

The consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended 31st :\12..Ic12..Iea-.:.::_:::r:se:'a=-=-a:;:;r:::-:e=-

for issue by the Board of Directors.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOlJNTIXG POLICIES

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the acc,:;-.:.::.::_;; = ~~2~esa=-=-

measurement basis summarized below.

1.1 Historical cost convention



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information to the Consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31March 2019

• Certain fmancial assets and liabilities, measured at fair value (refer accounting policy

regarding financial instruments),

• Defmed benefit plans, plan assets measured at fair value

1.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when

the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and

has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group.

They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group combines the fmancial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding

together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,

balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment

of the transferred asset.

Joint yentures

Under Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either

joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and

obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group

has only joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being

recognised at cost in the Group's balance sheet.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint

control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after

initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

In consolidated fmancial statements, the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to

recognize changes in the group's share of net assets of the joint venture/associate. Goodwill

relating to the joint venture/ associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is

not tested for impairment individually.



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd,

Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information to the Consolidated
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Items of Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost of acquisition inclusive of any other

cost attributable to bringing the same to their working condition. Property, plant and equipment

manufactured Iconstructed in house are valued at actual cost of raw materials, conversion cost

and other related costs.

Cost ofleasehold land having lease tenure over thirty (30) years is amortised over the period of

lease. Leases having tenure of thirty (30) years or less are treated as operating lease and disclosed

under prepaid expense.

Expenditure incurred during construction of capital projects including related pre-production

expenses is treated as Capital Work-in- Progress and in case of transfer of the project to another

body, the accounting is done on the basis of terms of transfer.

Machine Spares whose use is irregular is classified as Capital Spares. Such capital spares 2Ie

capitalised as per Plant, Property & equipment.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined 3.S :::'e

difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are re.:o:: ;zei

in profit or loss within' other income' or 'other expenses' respectively.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment other than continuous process plant is ;:::-=,':::::e:: ::::

pro-rata basis following straight line method considering estimated useful .ife 3.: :5 :.';;:'::-5,:-:'5e::

on technical review by a Chartered Engineer. Depreciation on continuous :;::-,::.:e5S:;~=::'5as :;e::-

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on certain Property, Plant & Equipment, which have been refc.:,::-C':'sie:'-..:.:;;:-:.::.e::.

and put to further use are being depreciated on a pro rata basis considering :ie:'::- ::-e.?55e55e::

residual useful life which is not more than the life specified L'1 Schedule II cft:-.e (,==:;0-:e5 .':'~::.

2013.

Depreciation on tangible assets other than Plant and .\lachiLery, is p::-c-.'::'e:: :::: ;:~=-:-:':2 :-:...s~s

following straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the esse: '::::-.=-,'e::-:he :':-:es .: :he

assets prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies ACL 2013, '.':'..:c::'ec:e::-:':::~:-.':e::-,:=:.:::e:'==-
internal review, the lower estimated useful lives of the following assets 2Ie =::''':':': ~-..:.s::'=:..:~e

compared to the lives mentioned in Schedule II of the Companies Act=-C' ~ 3:

Mobile Phones and Portable Personal Computers

Assets given to employees under furniture equipment scheme

Electrical items like air conditioners, fans, refrigerators etc,

Sofa, Photocopier, Fax machines, l\Iotor Cars & ':'Iachine S:::'l:e~

Asset category

The residual values of all assets are taken as ~lL
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1,4 Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not

occupied by the group, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured

initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable, borrowing costs.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of

the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when

incurred.

When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognised. Additionally, when a property given on rent is vacated and the managements

intention is to use the vacated portion for the purpose of its own business needs, Investment

Properties are reclassified as Buildings.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives which is consistent with the useful lives followed' for depreciating Property, Plant and

Equipment.

1.5 Financial Instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted

by transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which

are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of fmancial assets and fmancial

liabilities is described below.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the fmancial

asset expire, or when the fmancial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A

financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following

categories upon initial recognition:

Amortised cost

fmancial assets at FVTPL

All fmancial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment.

Amortised cost
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a) the fmancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets

in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category of

financial instruments,

A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised on fmancial assets carried at amortised

cost. Expected loss on individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when

they are past due and based on Group's historical counterparty default rates and forecast of macro-

economic factors, Receivables that are not considered to be individually significant are segmented

by reference to the industry and region of the counterparty and other shared credit risk

characteristics to evaluate the expected credit loss, The expected credit loss estimate is then based

on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified segment. The Group has a

diversified portfolio of trade receivables from its different segments, Every business segment of

the Group has calculated provision using a single loss rate for its receivables U5i:J.~ its C"·'.-=.

historical trends and the nature of its receivables. There are no universal expected 1055 percer.tages

for the Group as a whole, The Group generally considers its receivables as impaired '.<:e=- ::::'e:.-

are 3 years past due, Considering the historical trends and market information, the grcrp es::"" ",:es

that the provision computed on its trade receivables is not materially different frcz tl.e a=c..:=-:

computed using expected credit loss method prescribed under Ind AS 109, Since tze ::'=::''':=-:::f

provision is not material for the Group as a whole, no disclosures have been given i- respec: ::f

expected credit losses.

Derivative financial instruments are carried at FVTPL.

1.6 Inventories

a) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, For :._:s ::-..::-:::~e. ::::'e-::~~5

of ascertainment of cost of the different types of inventories is 2.S '..:=-=-e::--

b) Raw materials & trading goods, stores & spare parts and ma.eria.s f::!r:-.1.- :-~:: ,:::::.:e:::~

on the basis of weighted average cost.

c) Work-in-progress on the basis of weighted average cost of rav. =::.:e::-i2.~s::.=.=- :::=-':e::~~=r,

cost upto the relative stage of completion where it Ca::J. be reE",:~:.' ::;:::- ",:e=-_

d) Finished goods on the basis of weighted average cost of rav =-Ee::-i",~;:,c==-':e::3~::=-::::3:

and other related costs,

e) Loose Tools are written-off over the economic life except i:e=3 C::3::- ~ -..:p:::~ ~ : : : :

which are charged off in the year of issue,

1.7 Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

L' b'l" c. d lari , 1 --1' • - • . •ra ihties lor wages an sa anes me ucnng non-monetary ::e=-e:::~:3~~"': ;:::e e:,:;e::e: :: ::e

ttld hll 'thin 12 ths ft the end ~'h",~~,,;,\';:_""'·_:-'- __ '_-' __ ·--'-'-_'_C._se e 'vV 0 Y W1 man ::;a er t~;;;__no 01 tL.'- !-'dHC,,"- ~_ .', __ ~_ ._.:: ::-'--.: ::::~ .::--:::.

the related service are recognised at the amounts expected '.J be :;::=.:'':: ".'.-:-.2::-.:=-2 ~:.~=:.~:.:c",c;~C:'"

settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in balance sheet
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(ii) Post-employment obligations

Defined Contribution plans

Provident Fund: the group transfers provident fund contributions to the trust registered for

maintenance of the fund and has no further obligations on this account. These are recognised

as and when they are due.

Superannuation Fund : wherever applicable the group contributes a sum equivalent to fixed

percentage of eligible employees' salary to the fund administered by the trustees andmanaged

by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and has no further obligations on this account.

These are recognised as and when they are due.

Defined Benefit plans

Gratuity and Post Retirement Benefit plans - The defined benefit obligation is calculated

annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains and losses

arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in

the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in

retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity. Changes in present value of the

defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised

immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

(iii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for leave encashment and long service awards are not expected to be settled

wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related

service. They are measured annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-

measurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are

recognised in the period in which they occur in profit or loss.

1.8 Government grants

a) Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the group will comply with all attached

conditions.

b) Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss

over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate and presented within other income.

c) Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included

in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.
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1.9 Foreign currency translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group's entities are measured

using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates Cthe

functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee

(INR), which is Group's functional and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting

from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are genera ry
recognised in profit or loss.

c) Group companies

The results and fmancial position of foreign operations that have a fur.cticca. C;l-:.-eLC::

different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentetior. C1.:....1e=:.:;: 2.S

follows:

• Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate a: the e.a:e== ::'::.: -= .::~::::.:e

sheet

• Income and expenses are translated at average exchange ra.es, ::.=:.:'

• All resulting exchange differences are recognised in o::'e: .:,:-:;:e:'e=:.s:-.'e :-:: =.e

1.10 Segment reporting

O ti t rt d i -.'c. ~ ".:+1-, 1 '" :---~.' .----:- - --- •. : ~~.:peramg segmen s are repo e m a manner consistent .. lU tne ..:.l.~_ •• "' •• ~.:-_ .. ~= .:.. '. _
to the chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors assesses the financial performance ar::' p-:s:'::==- '... ~. __ -_. -"-_
makes strategic decisions and have identified business segment as :':5 :;~-::::: 5e:- e=:.:

1.11 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

a) Provision is recognisedwhen there is a present cbiigaticc as ::.res;.: :=.:: :;:::.s:e-:e=:.:

and it is probable that an outflow of resources will :e :e::,'..::':e'::' ::: se::~e::'e ='=~:'g.:.:~:=:.

in respect of which a reliable estimate car: be IT.a:'e. P:.::'::s:::=:. ':'=:·.:=:.:::.:e :':s::'..:::.:e:

to their present value where the impact of tiz;e ':,,:~·..:e :::: ===:.e- , e:::e::e:' --

material.

b) C
' l' b'l' . d' 1 ~. -... ....1 4 ~. • - , -ontmzent ia inties are lSC osed in resoect 0:: 'O<:'5s:.[;"e:=_:;::.:::::::::::..:::::.::-_~e =:=:.

'-" J..-.J.._

past events but their existence is confirmed by the O':;':;U=2L,:;2 oi o r..e 0:;' r-r.c r c. u.:::;.ce:i:C2C"=-.

future events not wholly within the control of the Group,
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c) Contingent liabilities pertaining to various government authorities are considered only

on conversion of show cause notices issued by them into demand.

1.12 Intangible assets

a) Expenditure incurred for acquiring intangible assets like software costing ~ 500,000 and

above and license to use software per item of < 25,000 and above, from which economic

benefits will flow over a period of time, is amortised over the estimated useful life of the

asset or five years, whichever is earlier, from the time the intangible asset starts providing

the economic benefit.

b) Brand value arising on acquisition are recognised as an asset and are amortised on a

straight line basis over 10 years.

c) Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested for impairment annually.

d) In other cases, the expenditure is charged to revenue in the year in which the expenditure

is incurred.

1.13 Accounting for Research & Development

a) Revenue Expenditure is shown under Primary Head of Accounts with the total of

such expenditure being disclosed in the Notes.

b) Capital expenditure relating to research & development is treated in the same way as

other fixed assets.

1.14 Treatment of Grant / Subsidy

a) Revenue grant/subsidy in respect of research & development expenditure is set off

against respective expenditure.

b) Capital grant/subsidy against specific fixed assets is set off against the cost of those

fixed assets.

c) When grant/ subsidy is received as compensation for extra cost associated with

the establishment of manufacturing units or cannot be related otherwise to any

particular fixed assets the grant/subsidy so received is credited to capital reserve.

On expiry of the stipulated period set out in the scheme of grant/subsidy thE same

is transferred from capital reserve to general reserve. ·1'<

d) Revenue grant in respect of organisation of certain events is shown under Sundry

Income and the related expenses there against under normal heads of expenditure.

1.15 Impairment of assets
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The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less

costs to sell and its value in use.

Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or

cash-generating unit using an appropriate discount factor.

1.16 Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax no:

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or loss in the financia

statements. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 0:

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences be~':ee-:.

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. However, deferred tax :5 -:.=-:
provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related tI2153.ct:,=-=-is a

business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax assets a=.i E3:::'~::es e.:e

calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to their res:;;ec:i-:e:;e::--:'::::'

of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the e:L.·:c=::::"ere~ =:::=.~
period.

Deferred tax asset ('DTA') is recognized for all deductible temporary ii.="'e:e-:.ce:::. ="-----=-:: ==~.':"-:=-

of unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable --:..at 2\.::.·:~e;:==: '.<~~
be available against which deductible temporary difference, and the carry f:::=---.'.-.::.:: z: ·":-:".:..5e: :.::.:.~

credits and unused tax losses can be utilized or to the extent of taxable te-:;,::::.~: :':""--=::"'e:e=-:e:::

except:

Where the DTA relating to the deductible temp orary difference a:::::es .:r== =e
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 2.b:':S;~e55 .::::=::-:::::::=: .::=-.=-.::.:

the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor t2.X2.:~e:;::::=::::: .css

in respect of deductible temporary differences arising fro:n ::1':es--e-:.::: :.:. s·..::s~=-:,,---:e~.

branches and associates, and interests in joint arrangements, To} the ex.en: ::::":::.:.:::.:.:'.=:..:.:::==e
t t th t it i b bl th t th t 'diff;-o~", .,·:11 ~~"",~-"';~ --:..~ ":---~,~~c'-'z: ..:.._,-=-.exen a,llspro a e a e emporary J.,",l...nee\'c..J.l",""''-_':''''_'~'''~ __'''__''::'__''' '_'

and taxable profit will be available against which the temoorarv ds:;::;-:.:e .:= -:e '..::~~=e=-
- " .
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Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or

expense in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also

recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount

and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint

arrangements where the

group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

1.17 Leases

Finance leases

Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset. Key

factors considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the economic life of the asset,

the present value of the minimum lease payments in relation to the asset's fair value, and whether

the Group obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term. Where the Group is a lessee

in this type of arrangement, the related asset is recognized at the inception of the lease at the fair

value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the lease payments plus incidental

payments, if any. A corresponding amount is recognized as a finance lease liability.

The assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or lease

term, whichever is lower. The corresponding fmance lease liability is reduced by lease payments

net of fmance charges. The interest element of lease payments represents a constant proportion

of the outstanding capital balance and is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period

of the lease.

Operating leases

All other leases aretreated as operating leases. Lease rentals for operating leases is recognised in

Profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the rentals are structured to

increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost

increases.

1.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured as the fair value of consideration received or receivable, excluding Goods

and Services tax.

L
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Sale of goods

When the control over goods is transferred to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists

regarding the amount of consideration that is derived from the sale of goods.

Services rendered:

a) When control over the service rendered in full or part is recognized by the buyer and no

significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that is derived from

rendering the services.

b) In case of project activities: As per the percentage of completion method after progress of

work to a reasonable extent for which control can be transferred to the buyer.

c) In cases where the Group collects consideration on account of another party, it reco 5:"1ses

revenue as the net amount retained on its own account.

Other income:

a) Interest on a time proportion basis using the effective Interest rate method

b) Dividend from investments in shares on establishment of the Group's righ;«: ::-e2e~,.-e.

c) Royalties are recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the subs.ence ::f:::'e :e~::-:=:

agreement

d) Export incentives are recognised as income only at the time when there is =-0 s:.~:-~:=:

uncertainty as to its measurability and ultimate realisation.

For determining the transaction price, the Group measures me rever.;e :c :e~:=e::

performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling p::'.:e.

The group accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives :0 a 'c.:ye: as a re d-.:::: =:::. .:

revenue based on the ratable allocation of the discountsincentives to e2.CC::::::~e --=-=-e:~:.:-;

performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by the buyer ty.~.:::.:=-,e~-:-; :te

discount/ incentive.

Term of returns, refunds etc. are agreed with the buyers on a case :0' C2.5e:2.:::'5-.::===- --':':':2.:':':--

accepted terms and conditions. The impact of returns and refunds is Leg:':;:'-::, .e ;:=- :::'e :-=--=- =-.e~

of the group.

As a practical expedient, as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has r..,=·:d:s:~=sed :::e ::-e=::.=;

performance obligation related disclosures for contracts v:l:e:e tl.e :;;-:;;:::.-.:;;:e;::.:-:=e:' ===

the satisfaction of the performance obligation corresponds di2-c~:::y ·.~-::t:~;;--:2.~-.:e := ::-;;-
customer of the entity's performance completed to date cS:c::::<'- :.=- ::-e_~:~=:::. . _ .:.__ :-:

contracts where invoicing/~d material basis.

;(~--7/-----<=:~~\

(~~\:J>O~)~""))
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\\(7._ ,<~_/ Je· /.

'.~~.?/



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information to the Consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31March 2019

Significant payment terms:

Payment is zenerallv received either in cash or based on credit terms. Credit terms are

agreed to with the buyers and is generally in line with the respective industry standards.

1.19 Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction

or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to

complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other

Borrowing Costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred

1.20 Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement, as per Ind AS -7, is prepared using the indirect method, whereby profit

for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or

accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses

associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and

financing activities of the group are segregated.

1.21 Prior period Items

Material prior period items which arise in the current period as a result of error or omission in

the preparation of prior period's fmancial statement are corrected retrospectively in the first set of

fmancial statements approved for issue after their discovery by:

a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error

occurred; or

b) ifthe error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances

of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented.

c) Any items exceeding rupees twenty five lacs (~ 25 Lacs) shall be considered as material prior

period item.

d) Retrospective restatement shall be done except to the extent that it is impracticable to

determine either the period specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. When it is

impracticable to determine the period specific effects of an error on comparative information

for one or more prior periods presented, the group shall restate the opening balances of assets,

liabilities and equity for the earliest prior for which retrospective restatement is practicable

(which may be the current period) .
....-:::=:::,...
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1.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding other

comprehensive income) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share splits or

consolidation that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a change in

corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the

net profit or loss (excluding other comprehensive income) for the year attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are

adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares.

CA. Mainak Chakrabarti

Partner

Membership No. 063052

Kolkata, 28th May, 2019
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Note No 2. Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment

Particulars Land - Land - Building ft Plant ft Spares for Electircal Furniture ft Typewriter Tubewell, Lab Railway Vehicles Total

Freehold Leasehold Sidings Machinery Plant ft Installation ft Fittings Accounting Tanks and Equipment Sidings

Machinery Equipment Machine and Miscellaneou

Office s Equipment

Equipment

Gross block

Balance as at 1 April 2018 2,419.41 3,203.81 16,121.66 17,157.99 29.06 2,874.72 812.66 1,843.42 1,824.33 621.68 238.33 376.47 47,523.53

Additions 13,279.05 2,435.20 4.71 1,415.07 335.73 232.67 267.16 90.60 777.78 26.51 18,864.48

Inter Asset Adjustment - -

Disposal of assets 0.17 50.57 12.55 60.62 34.96 15.85 1.55 0.16 40.11 216.54

Balance as at Mar 31 2019 2,419.41 3,203.81 29,400.54 19,542.61 21.22 4,229.17 1,113.43 2,060.24 2,089.94 712.12 1,016.11 362.87 66,171.47

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2018 189.47 1,230.10 2,509.96 20.05 949.30 230.53 944.67 466.92 222.64 62.82 322.00 7,148.46

Depreciation charge for the year 63.56 770.54 847.28 2.82 376.68 103.49 364.62 203.02 84.01 29.77 28.16 2,873.94

Impairment 5.82 13.54 19.36

Inter Asset Adjustment (0.34) 0.34 -

Disposal of ass<:ts_________ 0.13 40.88 12.55 57.17 28.05 14.77 1.16 0.16 (0.13) 34.64 189.38

Balance as at Mar 31 20 19 - 253.03 2,006.33 3,329.90 10.32 1,268.47 305.97 1,294.86 668.78 306.49 92.72 315.52 9,852.38
--_._------

.-~.~-~-~-----.--.------.---. < ...~..-----
Net block as at Mal' 31 2019 2,419.41 2,950.78 27,394.21 16,212.71 10.90 2,960.70 807.46 765.38 1,421.16 405.63 923.39 47.36 56,319.08

--------_._-- ------ ..... -

Net block as at: Mar 31 1.018 2,419.41 3,014.34 14,891.56 14,648.03 9.01 1,925.42 582.13 898.75 1,357.41 399.04 175.51 54.48 40,375.07
-. -_._ ..._-------- .---- _._----- - -- -.._----- - ....

((" ..~'''.'.:;~...

\., .', _ ,):')1
i/



Balmer Lawrie 8: Co. Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note No 3. Investment properties ~ in Lacs

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2017

Additions

Disposals/adjustments

66.14

52.27

Balance as at 31 March 2018 118.41

Net Investment Property' Reclassified

Balance as at 31 March 2019 118.41

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2017

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals/adjustments for the year

4.26

1.45

(0.84)

Balance as at 31 March 2018 4.87

Depreciation charge for the year

Investment Property - reclassified

2.16

Ba lance as at 31 March 201 9 7.02

Net book value as at 31 March 2019 111.39

Net book value as at 31 March 2018 113.54

Investment property is recognised and valued using cost model.Depreciation is calculated using straigr t Li'.e "9:~:: :- :-9:::5'5 :"

useful life of assets

(i) Contractual obligations

There is no contractual commitment for the acquisition of Investment Property.

(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost

No borrowing costs were capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2019 or previous encec 31 Varc~ 2:' ~.

(Hi) Restrictions

There are no restrictions on remittance of income receipts or receipt of proceeds from cis::sac5.

(iv) Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment properties

31 March 2019

Rental income

Direct operating expenses that generated rental income

Direct operating expenses that did not generated rental income

Profit from leasing of investment properties

2LL."'::

2'-- c_

~23.75

(60.38)

(v) Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term cperating teases 1t,'~':.~:2:-,~3..5:~:=:_~ -:-:-.:' ----- --- -

cancellable leases.

(vi) Fair value

Particulars 31March20~9 31'.'2.-:C:::-S

Fair value

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties a; '.9::5:a~~.~:::.;.-c9 :9,: 9.-:9-:9 :" "::-

current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such inrormat:::;:': ~s rc; 2.\::'.a:.9. :-9 ::-:::-:

information from a variety of sources including:

a) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature 0, r,,::e~t v~::e:c;" s'-'.~- :-::9-:'=, ,- =0:=::-,=-=-.=:~
adjusted to reflect those differences.

b) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of fu:~:e :0.5":.: ....s.

c) restrictions on remittance of income receipts or receipt of proceeds f-:~ :'5::5::.:.

d) capitalised income projections based upon a property's estirr ated ,·et rr::-':9: '-.co-e. ::-::: ::::':::':=:.:- -=:= ==-.== '~:::::=:
analysis of market evidence. ~ .. ~c_

I => ~,r-
e) The fair values of investment properties have been determined by external valuer. The main inputs used are -ert,k~:~\-:

rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yield and discount rates based on industry data. i -:. c~,_ -' ....-:.. ~ ,

'.,------
-~~~;?/



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Note!' to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

~ in Lacs

Note No 4. Other Intangibles Assets Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill Softwares Brand Value Total

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2017 689.32 646.24 332.63 978.88

Additions · 98.94 · 98.94

Disposals/adjustments 0.01 0.01

Balance as at 31 March 2018 689.32 745.19 332.63 1,077.83

Additions · 18.96 · 18.96

Disposals/adjustments . · .

Balance as at 31 March 2019 689.32 764.15 332.63 1,096.79

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2017 273.28 76.00 349.28

Amortisation charge for the year 163.28 38.00 201.28

Impairment 689.32

Disposals/adjustments for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2018 689.32 436.56 114.00 550.56 i

Amortisation charge for the year · 117.15 38.CC ..:5.1:: ..

Disposals/adjustments for the year

Impairment

Balance as at 31 March 2019 689.32 553.71 152.00 705.71

Net book value as at 31 March 2019 - 210.44 180.63 391.08

Net book value as at 31 March 2018 - 308.63 218.63 527.27

<>'f:".. _ _

_ $Y--.'
./



Note No.5

Non Current Investment

Unquoted, unless otherwise stated

Name of the Body Corporate

'{ in Lacs

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

No of Shares
Amount

No of Shares
Amount

Trade Investments

Investment in Equity Instruments

(Fully paid stated at Cost)

In Joint Venture Companies

Balmer Lawrie -Van Leer Ltd.

Ordinary Equity shares of,{ 10 each

86,01,277 7,113.20 86,01,277 6,817.52

Transafe Services Ltd.

Ordinary equity shares of '{ 10 each 1,13,61,999 1,165.12 1,13,61,999 1,165.12

Less Provision for diminution in value

(Carried in books at a value of,{ 1 only)
(1,165.12) (1,165.12)

PT Balmer lawrie Investments Ltd 20,00,000

In Subsidiary Company

Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd. 100 17,97.032
Ordinary Shares of GBP 1 each

Vishakapatnam Port Logistics Park Ltd 8,10,38,978 8,10.33,978
Ordinary Shares of each'{ 10 each

In Associate Company

Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LLC 9,800 23,651.76 ----~--
" .'-'_ ... .�... -.~- ---

Shares of AED 1,000 each

AVI-OIL India (P) Ltd. 45,00,000 1,592.07
..,:::: ..'" -, ,.... -,-

Equity shares of '{ 10 each

Investments in Preference Shares

(Fully paid stated at Cost)

Transafe Services Ltd.

Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of ,{1a each 1,33,00,000 1,330.00 - -'_. -- . ,

Less Provision for diminution in value (1,330.00)

Total 32,357.03 - - - ,= -,....
-- - - "-

Other Investments

Equity shares of'{ 10 each

Bridge Ii Roof Co. (India) Ltd. *' 3,57,591 14.01

Biecco Lawrie Ltd ., 1,95,900 . '- . --
(Carried in books at a value of '{ 1 only)

Woodlands Multispeciality Hospitals Ltd. 8,850 0.45

Equity shares of '{ 5 each

Kanpur Flowercycling Pvt Ltd 626 60.05
Equity shares of '{ 10 each

5,555 74.99

149.50

32,5J6.53 --- ---

32.5D6.53
31.,500.53 Z9,Z5CUc

**These investments are carried as fair value through Profit and loss and their carrying value approximates treie Tc'r '!2:~e



Note No.6

~ in Lacs
Loans As at 31 March As at 31 March 2018

2019
Financial Assets ( Non - Current)

Loans

Secured considered good

Security Deposits

Loans to Related Parties

Key Managerial Persons (KMP)

Other Loans 240.89 24S.29

Unsecured considered good

Security Deposits

Loans to Related Parties

Transafe Services Ltd IS0.00 IS0.00

Other Loans

Credit Impaired 16.67

Security Deposits

Loans to Related Parties

Balmer Lawrie Van Leer Ltd

Others to Related Parties

Others S.2S 8.25

Provision for Credit Impaired Loans (16.67)

Security Deposits

Loans to Related Parties

Others to Related Parties

Others (S.2S) 18.25 I

420.89 428.29

Note No.7

Other Financial Assets ( Non- Current)

Accrued Income

Security Deposits

Other Receivables

Dues from Related Parties -Doubtful

Transafe Services Ltd

Less: Provision

690.46

84.S1

80.S7

(80.871

775.27 554.6~

\,,"
-'~-

':~~-:



Bahner Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note No 8. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability arising on account of:

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:

Adjustment for VRS expenditure

Provision for loans, debts, deposits & advances

Defined benefit plans

Provision for Inventory

Provision for dimunition in investment

Net Liability due to profit transfer of group companies

Impairment of assets

Others

Movement in deferred tax liabilities

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment

Adjustment for v'RS expenditure

Provision for loans, debts, deposits & advances

Defined benefit plans

Provision for Inventory

Provision for dimunition in investment

Net Liabilitydue to profit transfer of group companies

Impairment of assets

Others

As at 31st

March 2018

(5,089.96)

299.05

2,135.48

718.82

122.81

863.1-

(5,496.19~

132.06

Recognised in

profit and loss

18i}56,

-49.-4

As at

31 March 2019

(6,157.70)

118.49

2,885.22

1,221.38

139.88

8-1.89

'6,444.-9

6.--

(7,364.03)

Recognised in

Other

Comprehensive

Income

(6,314.76) (42..U3) 1'62.3.1'+,1

~in Lacs

As at

31March 2018

(5,089.96)

299.05

2,135.48

-18.82

122.S:

(6,314.761

As at 31March

2019



As at 31 March

2019

~ in Lacs

As at 31 March

2018
Note No.9

Non Financial Assets ( Non - Current)

Capital Advances

Balances with Government Authorities

Prepaid Expenses

Others

177.40 152.81

267.14 263.13

7,781.56 7,670.65

83.29 101.88

8,309.39 8,188.47

Note No.10

Inventories

Raw Materials and components

Goods-in-transit

Slow Moving & Non moving

Less: Adjustment for Slow & Non moving

Total - Raw Materials and components

Work in Progress

Slow Moving & Non moving

Less; Adjustment for Slow & Non moving

Total - Work in Progress

9,352.96 8,556.08

1.00

168.45 '75.09

(121.06) 1:31.i21

9,400.35 8!6C1.C:

966.40 A '-. -, ~~-l � ..;.,i",.I .����

1.35
- 7::

966.40 ...�.. ;:........ ;

2,882.55 - ,.. -- - '"

L.":~':'. ~

120.74 -.1-';;"

199.05
..� ::- ::~

(118.09)
-. - .
.-

3,084.25 ~ .-- .-- . .. --

770.82 - -
232.64

(161.15) -
842.31 -- .

Finished goods

Goods-in transit

Slow Moving & Non moving

Less: Adjustment for Slow & Non moving

Total - Finished Goods

Stores and spares

Slow Moving & Non moving

Less: Adjustment for Slow & Non moving

Total - Stores & Spares

Total 14,293.31 ~::.::::.:::

[Refer to Point No.1.6 of "Significant Accounting Policies" for method of valuation of inventories]



Note No.11

Total

~ in Lacs

As at 31 March As at 31March

2019 2018

27,629.10 26,978.33

1,279.07 809.62

(1,279.07) (809.62)

27,629.10 26,978.33

Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables

Considered Good· Unsecured

Credit Impaired

Less: Provision for Credit Impaired receivables

Note No.12

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Cheques in hand

Balances with Banks - Current Account

3.75 3.94

5,332.98 7,587.59

5,336.73 7,591.53Total

There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and bank balances available with the Company.

Note No.13

Other Bank Balances

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts

Bank Term Deposits

Margin Money deposit with Banks

363.19

38,630.13

77.79

Total 39,071.11 43,CC7.56



Note No.14

Financial Assets ( Current)

Loans

Secured considered good

Security Deposits

Loans to Related Parties

Other Loans (Employees)

Unsecured considered good

Security Deposits

Other Loans and advances(Employees)

Other Loans and advances

As at 31 March

2019

53.45

30.70

389.99

474.14

* Advances to related parties are in the course of regular business transactions

Note No.15

Other Financial Assets ( Current)

Unsecured

Accrued Income

Security Deposits

Other Receivables -considered good

Other Receivables - Credit Impaired

Less - Provision for Credit impaired receivables

Note No.16

Non Financial Assets ( Current)

Balances with Government Authorities

Prepaid Expenses

Advances to Contractors & Suppliers -Good

Advances to Contractors & Suppliers -Doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances

Other Advances to related parties

Others

2,226.70

908.38

21,640.30

2,758.79

(2,758.79)

24,775.38

1,612.19

848.11

2,011.60

716.06

17~6.C61

5,922.11

~ in Lacs

As at 31 March

2018

85.01

19.61

158.04

262.66

2.24.J.7=

84'.46

24 .: 2:. - 2

2.2'9.34

2.2-9.34

27,202.28

--:. t...!.

- - ~~--



Balmer Lawrie ft Co. Ltd.

NotesJo the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note No 17

Equity Share Capital

Authorised capital

300,000,000 (previous year 120,000,000) equity shares of ~ 10 each

As at 31 March

2019

~ in Lacs

As at 31 March

2018

30,000.00 12,000.00

30,000.00 12,000.00

Issued and Subscribed Capital

114,002,564 (previous year 114,002,564) equity shares of ~ 10 each 11,400.25 11,400.25

Paid-up Capital

114,002,564 (previous year 114,002,564) equity shares of ~ 10 each 11,400.25 11,400.25

11,400.25 11,400.25

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

31 March 2019 31 ,Varch zois
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Equity shares at the beginning of the year 11,40,02,564 11,400.25 11.40,C2,56L .....4':': .2.5

Bonus shares issued during the year

Equity shares at the end of the year 11,40,02,564 11,400.25 11,40,02,564 11.4(0.25

b) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10 per share. Each Shareholder is el;s':~e "c- :-2.::2 :e- :-,,-e

held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders h ~~ee-s:...'-~ ;..-- _". ~e-e-".

Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the rernaintr g a':':2:5 c-= :-e C:-:,,-: ::":e-

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As on 31 March 2019

No of shares % holding -: -,..,-~-5

Equity shares of ~ 10 each fully paid up

Balmer Lawrie Investment Ltd. 7,04,52,900
--.....::=-:.--

i) There are no other individual shareholders holding 5% or more in the issued share cao;a. :" ~-e ::::-:::-: .

.~~-:-

~ ..

-'-------- -'
~. -:."

..~.::c-



Balmer Lawrie 8:Co. ltd.

Notesto the ConsolidatedFinancialStatementsfor the year ended 31March2019

Note No 18

Other Equity f in Lacs

Asat 31March Asat 31March2018

2019

Share Premium Reserve

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve

Total reserve

3,626.77

35,603.82

99,973.84

1,026.22

(21.83)

3,626.77

35,603.82

93,732.13

1,109.62

100.14

1,40,208.82 1,34,172.48

For the year

31 March 2019

For the year

31 March 2018

Share Premium Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Shares issued during the year

Sub total (A)

3,626.77 3,626.77

3,626.77 3,626.1 !

General Reserve

Opening balance

Less: BonusSharesissued

Amount transferred from retained earnings

Sub total (B)

35.603.82

35,603.82

Retained Earnings

Opening balance 93,732.13

Add: Net profit for the year

Less: Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve

Equity dividend

Tax on equity dividend

Re-measurement Gain/Loss

Other adjustment

Net surplus in Retained Earnings (C)

(11.4:C.25

12.4'3.-'3 ..::~-

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Opening balance

Movement

Sub total (0)

--...,:. ::=

1,02:5.22

Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) reserve

Opening balance

Movement

Sub total (E)

Total (A+B+C+O+E)

....:.= .; =

z: .83

Total reserves - 2019

Total reserves - 2018

~ �..- - ,. --

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities Premium

Securities Premium represents premium received on issueof shares,This sra',; :e ·;t'.:Se: j~ =:::~:=--:e.·.-:~ :-e :-: .-:-:-: :0 :-e

Other Comprehensive Income Reserve

(i) The Company haselected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in ecuitv securities inc,le, C:T::'e~_e~:'.e
(ii) The Companv has recocnised remeasurement benefits on defined benefits plans through Other Ccr:lp~erers'.e ----=



Note No.19

Non Current Liabilities As at 31 March

2019

~in Lacs

As at 31 March

2018

Financial Liabilities (Non· Current)

Borrowings

Trade Payable

Other Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Other Liabilities

7,608.24 1,115.99

7.70 49.82

7,615.94 1,165.81

The Company has availed Term Loan of ~ 15 Crores for its integrated cold chain facilities at Rai and Patalganga from Standard Chartered 3an{ tc

obtain Grant - in- aid from Ministry of food Processing Industries (MoFPI). The Term Loan has an interest rate as 6 months MCLRa:Jp,'c2::'eat t"e

time of disbursement of Term Loan. The Loan is secured against the fixed and movable assets of Temperature Controlled 'Nare",cuses at :;ai 2~:

Patalganga respectively. The Loan is repayable in 12 equal instalments starting from 18 months from the date of 1stdrawal.

VPLPLa subsidiary of the company has availed Rs65.47 Crsas loan out of sanctioned loan of Rs125 Crsat a [ate of :C csss ::;J'~t2:::"~t- -aa

months MCLRrate. This loan is secured by first charge on the entire fixed assets (present and future) ofVPLPL a~d eC:ci-a::e ~::-:g2ge:~ ~-e

leasehold right of project land.

Note No.20

Provisions ( Non - Current)

Actuarial Provision

Long term Provisions

2,249.76

1,912.67

4,162.43 3.7T7 ..!3

Note No.21

Non Financial Liabilities ( Non - Current)

Advances from Customers

Others

3.55

256.'16

260.51

.,~-:':::::

,~'-



Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities ( Current)

Note No.22

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2019

( ~ in lakhs)

As at 31 March

2018

306.39 374.35

Trade Payable

Payable to MSME

Other Trade Payable

324.16

28974.92

199.31

31638.25

29299.08 31837.56

Borrowings refer details given in Note 19

Note No.23

Other Financial Liabilities

Unclaimed Dividend *

Security Deposits

Payable to Related Parties

Other Liabilities

363.19 234.67

3527.11 3192.94

0.00

9098.44 :2174.25

12988.74 15601.86

* There is no amount due and outstanding as at balance sheet date to be credited to Investor Ed..:::",;:1::;-

and Protection Fund

Note No.24

Non Financial Liabilities ( Current)

Advance from Customers

Statutory Dues

SDCCredit Balance

Deferred Gain/Income

Other Liabilities

1141.58

508.53

O.CO

..:...~.. -:

168.43

3416.64
-.--- --
--"-_._-

5235.18

Note No.25

Current Provisions

Actuarial Provision

Short term Provisions

432.19

1206.37 "::. :...:.

1638.56

Note No.26

Current Tax Liabilities

Provision for Taxation (Net of advance)

2170.58
- ..- .~..:..--.:. :



Note No.27

Revenue From Operations

Sale of Products

Sale of Services

Sale of Trading Goods

Other Operating Income

Total

Note No.28

Other Income

Interest Income

Bank Deposits

Others

Dividend Income

Other Non-operating Income

Profit on Disposal of Fixed assets

Profit on Disposal of Investments

Unclaimed balances and excess provision written back

Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions (net)

Miscellaneous Income

Other Non-operating Income

Total

Note No.29

Cost of Materials Consumed 8: Services Rendered

Cost of Materials Consumed

Cost of Services Rendered

Total

Note No.30

Purchase of Trading Goods

Trading Goods

Total

For The Year Ended

31 March 2019

1,05,997.18

64,966.57

329.45

6,227.61

1,77,520.81

2,785.93

232.75

3,018.68

3.15

22.28

634.49

1,068.77

366.57

665.35

2,757.46

5,779.29

74,752.68

35,777.50

1,10,530.18

329.45

329.45

/~

/ ::;//---'< ~~

-'~.-'. , -_.

"';' ~

~ in Lacs

For The Year Ended

31 March 2018

1,03,434.78

65,973.00

714.68

5,531.34

1,75,653.80

2,808.74

103.71

2,912.45

14.04

1.38;.::6

265.8:

~79.22

- ,- ~ = =

.~:.-

.;



Note No.31

Changes in inventories of Trading

Goods, Work-in-Progress and Finished

Goods

Change in Work In Progress

Change in Finished Goods

Note No.32

Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and Incentives

Contributions to Providend 8: Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

Note No.33

Finance Costs

Interest Cost

Bank Charges'

Total

Opening

Closing

Change

Opening

Closing

Change

For The Year

Ended 31 March

2019

1,287.07

966.40

320.67

3,107.40

3,084.25

23.15

343.82

17,463.57

2,187.10

1,619.71

21,270.38

558.10

154.27

712.37

~ in Lacs

For The Year Ended

31 March 2018

1,104.66

1,287.07

(182.41)

4,489.00

3,107.40

1,381.60

1,199.19

16,07L.76

2.266.9E

1,478.77

19.3::'C.L~

.-- - ...�
-..:..L. .,j

* Bank Charges include charges for opening of LlC, bank guarantee charges and ether charqes "6::::6: :: :=-.< :-,,-3,,:: :-5

-/~
~:"":>~'. -':



Note No.34

Depreciation It Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation

Property Plant It Equipment

Investment Properties

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Total

Note No.35

Other Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Repairs It Maintenance· Buildings

Repairs It Maintenance· Plant It Machinery

Repairs 8:Maintenance· Others

Power It Fuel

Electricity ft Gas

Rent

Insurance

Packing, Despatching, Freight and Shipping Charges

Rates 8: Taxes

Auditors Remuneration and Expenses

Impairment of assets

Write Off of Debts ,Deposits, Loan ft Advances

Provision for Doubtful Debts ft Advances

Fixed Assets Written Off

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Selling Commission

Cash Discount

Travelling Expenses

Printing and Stationary

Motor Car Expenses

Communication Charges

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Provision for Debts, Deposits, Loans ft

Advances and Inventories considered

doubtful, written back

Total

For The Year Ended 31

March 2019

2,873.94

2.16

155.15

3,031.25

1,679.77

889.24

276.50

414.73

561.95

2,563.00

407.47

1,372.32

270.21

4,257.08

161.28

27.46

19.36

481.97

1,561.07

12.40

406.04

409.89

340.22

988.33

297.03

153.71

286.73

516.24

4,847.30

23,201.30

(775.86)

22,425.44

~ in Lacs

For The Year Ended 31

March 2018

2,486.82

1.45

201.28

2,689.55

1,493.78

896.69

611.37

367.cL

2.342.15

4:6.82

-. ---. --_. - -' .......�...

-= -..:.- .:.=
- ....>--.~-



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 {in Lacs

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

36. Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Prior period

8,865.80

424.13

(743.22)

-,089.59

1,538.00

,~1)-9.00,

8,546.71 7,348.59

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at 34.944% (34.608" CO and the

reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Accounting profit before income tax

}'it country's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 March 2018:

34.608%)

Tax Expense

Current Income tax of Foreign Subsidiary

Impact of P&L of subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current income tax

Exempt Dividend Income

Foreign Dividend Income, taxed at a different rate

N on-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Provisions (net)

CSR Expenses

Gratuity Liability of previous year paid in current year

VRS Expenses

Depreciation Difference

Impairment of asset

Additional Deduction for R&D expenses in I Tax

Adjustments in respect of Previous years income tax

24657.21

I~

37. Other Comprehensive Income schedule

Other Comprehensive Income

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Re-rneasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect

(ii) Net ~oss)/gain on Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive

Income

Income tax effect

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

38. Earnings per equity share

The Company's Earning; Per Share (EPS') is determined based on the net prone after ':LX J.::-.ci:Cc::"=:" ~,: r .->: .��� � =~:.:.:-:=:.:-_~ .'
numerator. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted a,cerage nur::-c:er c,f 3'-"~:=3 ="':':'~~::'=~~''::-~~.z:cc: :-eC": "' :.~." .:.=:.: :.:.:.:-:.::: -:::_.:c.:. :..c:C_'_,.

per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and cil:'::::-;'e ::':1'=.C2 eC'':'C-:-':':,,:': ,.-.C":e' .'':'::::':'=.: -~. :.c.C -,,:.c c::.:.. __ .. -'"

options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. The Face value of the ''-,Ee3 :, 'Z ";:.

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Profit after tax

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent adjusted for the effect of dilution

Nominal value of equity share ('Z)

Weighted~average number of equity shares for basic EPS

Basic/Diluted earnings per share ({)

/:--;~;;'~---~..~
/,/'/ '

/,-

I(~/~',~~~~-=-~-.'.
~~~."



Balmer Lawrie & Co, Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note No. 39

Accounting for Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plam

The disclosures are made consequent to adoption of Ind I\S 19 on Employee Benefits, issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India, by the group. Defined Benefit/s Plans / Long Term Employee benefits in respect of Gratuity, Leave

Encashment, Post-retirement medical benefits and Long Service Awards are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss on the

basis of Actuarial valuation done at the year end. Actuarial gain floss on post-employment benefit plans that is graruity and post-

retirement medical benefit plans are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualif:,:.o.g exp:o::'ees

towards Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme which are defined contribution plans. The g:roup D.lS :l:'

obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profi: =:. ~JSS lS
they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund for the vear aggreglCe::::'co ~ 1 :':'2.2..'.

lacs (~ 1,141.58 lacs); Superannuation fund ~ 629.07 lacs (~ 602.96 lacs) and contribution to Ernplovee 5T1Te Ins':.rl:::.Ct .:::"::.t::::.e

for the year aggregated to ~ 16.39 lacs (~ 22.261acs).

Defined Benefit Plans

Post Employment Benefit Plans

A. Gratuity

The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast five years of continuous service. :::; Iece:-:-e :::.:':,:e:-. :'..:.:-' s~.:.:::-::=::

each year of completed service at the time of superannuation/exit. _wy shorrfall ir; ot::1;:o:'::o,"' is =e: =: -::':'eg:=.::::: 'J: --:-:-3.: .

transfer of requisite amount to the fund.

The reconciliation of the group's defined benefit obligations (DBO) and pla:l clSSt:S i::. :=s:==:::: g:.:.-::-.:.:.=: :=~, ::

presented in the statement of financial position is presented below:

(~in Lacs I

Parriculars As at'

31-03-2019 '

_-\.3 at

31-03-':::US

Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net defined benefit obligation

- .' 0 - i-'~--' -' -.. ~.

--.. '_ ..�. ~

6S3.2S

(i) The movement of the group's defined benefit obligations in ::tspec 0: g:l-::-':':'=-:' :=:2:::'S=::= '::=;.:--=:.:.=.g::: e:::.:'.

is as follows:

i~ in Lacs-

Parriculars

Opening value of defined benefit obligation

Add: Current service cost

Add: Current interest cost

Plan amendment: Vested portion at end of period (past service:

Add: Actuarial (gain)/loss due to -

- changes in demographic assumptions

- changes in experience adjustment

- changes in financial assumptions

Less: Benefits paid

Closing value of defined benefit obligation thereof-

Unfunded

A.s at:

31-03-2019

_-\.3 at

5,331.35;
- - ....� - --
~~~,)': ..:' .

5.931.59

683.281

5_331.3:5

. 22 ..J



1Funded 5,248.3°1 5,508.911

(ii) The defined benefit obligation in respect of gratuity plans was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

({ in Lacs)

Assumptions As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Discount rate (per annum) 7.60% 7.98%

Rate of increase in compensation levels/Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 11 12

(ill) The reconciliation of the plan assets held for thegroup's defined benefit plan from beginning to end of reporting period is

presented below:

({ in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Opening balance of fair value of plan assets 5,508.91 4,023·-1-31

Add: Contribution by employer 460.64 1 RQ- ')') I
'~~,'~=.Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income (240.90) -". I

Add: Interest income 418.68
~~.--I
j~l'_' 1

Less: Benefits paid (899.02) '-Cll.cJ.~ !

Closing balance of fair value of plan assets 5,248.30 5,508.91

(iv) Expense related to the groupy's defined benefit plans in respect of gratuir:- pl::L.'1:S 3.5 :0[0-.:.-5:

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

({ in Lacs)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-changes in demographic

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-Experience _'\djustment

Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income

Total expense/ (income) recognized in the statement of Other

Comprehensive Income

For the year!
- I

endedi

31-03-2019:
I

For the year

ended

31-03-2')13

:

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

ended

Current service cost

Past service cost (vested)

Net Interest cost (Interest Cost-Expected return)

Total expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss

For the year;

ended!

31-03-2,)19 31-CI3-'::·::'~

--_ .. -

++3.13

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet _-\.5 a I

31-03-2')19

Defined benefit obligation

Classified as:

Non-Current

Current ..L,'J-,,_,.'Y-r-



I As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Expected returns on plan assets are based on a weighted average of 177.78 299.90

expected returns of the various assets in the plan, and include an

analysis of historical returns and predictions about future returns. The

return on plan assets was

~ in Lacs)

(v) Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group's own financial instruments or any assets used by Group companies. Plan assets

can be broken down into the following major categories of investments:

Particulars As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Government of India securities/ State Government securities 46.61% 46.30°0

Corporate bonds 47.24% r.S9' °
Others 6.15% 6.11" J

Total plan assets 100.00% 100.000;0,

(~in Lacs)

Interest costs have been included under 'finance costs' and service cost has been recorded under 'employee bea::::" e:l::;:,,:::'5::' :::

statement of comprehensive income.

(vi) Sensitivity Analysis

The significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined benefit obligation in respecr of g::2.:-.i:--:;:~::..-:,:, ::_::~,~~.=:
rate. The calculation of the net defined benefit obligation is sensitive to this assumption. The foIlow..1lg ub~e ,'=2.:::,,::, =e
effects of changes in this actuarial assumption on the defined benefit obligation:

~ in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2019
.

Increase Decrease

Changes in discount rate in% - - - -'_:.JU
" ,

Defined benefit obligation after change
- --,,- ~- - -
~ D ----

Original defined benefit obligation ::. C) -::;-: - - - -- , -

(~~~)i
- -- --

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 1"D-t

Changes in salary growth rate in %

Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 102!

Changes in Attrition rate in %
1

:.:: i -
. '

Defined benefit obligation after change I
~:::',( = - . '

- ..,--

Original defined benefit obligation 2~:,':...:,1 =- _. --

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 4- i4-

Changes in Mortality rate in % ,-,:;-i :
--.- - 1 - '- -

Defined benefit obligation after change 3.';'C=.1 : -',

. . , .

Original defined benefit obligation S.S~21
:

I
. .-

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 301
,

.Jl

Particulars I 31 March 20E

Increase De c-c a se

Changes in discount rate in %

Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

= :::" ,

i (1->9) i

Changes in salary growth rate in % 0.50



j
Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

ilncrease/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

5,625 5,441

5,531 5,531

93 (90)

Changes in Attrition rate in % 0.50 0.50

Defined benefit obligation after change 5,535 5,528

Original defined benefit obligation 5,531 5,531

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 4 (4)

Changes in Mortality rate in % 10.00 10.00

Defined benefit obligation after change 5,561 5,501

Original defined benefit obligation 5,531 5,531

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 30 (30)

B. Post Retirement Medical Benefits Scheme (Non-funded)

The post retirement medical benefit is on contributory basis and voluntary. It is applicable for III eLlF~O:eeS 7.!.:=1

superannuate/ resign after satisfactory long service and includes dependent spouse, parents and children as pe: 3.?pEcal::le =-c:.:.~".

Particulars

Opening value of defined benefit obligation

Add: Current service cost

Add: Current interest cost

Add: Actuarial (gain)/loss due to -

- changes in demographic assumptions

- changes in experience adjustment

- changes in financial assumptions

Less: Benefits paid

Closing value of defined benefit obligation

Thereof-

Unfunded

Funded

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-Experience .-idjustment

Total expense/ (income) recognized in the statement of Other

Comprehensive Income 111.96: 1:6.-5

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-change in demographic

assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations-change in financial assumptions

('{ in L3.:~

Current service cost

Net Interest cost/Interest Cost-Expected return)

Total expense recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss

For the year

ended

31-1)3-2019

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

e:::dec

('{ in Lacs)



Assumptions As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Discount rate (per annum) 7.60'}" 7.98%

Superannuation age 60 60

Early retirement & disablement 1.00% 1.00%

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Defined benefit obligation 406.13 376.60

Classified as:

Non-Current 341.36 316.78

Current 64.77 59.82

~ in Lacs)

Sensitivity Analysis ~ in Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2019

Increase Decrease

Changes in Discount rate in % 0.50 C.50

Defined benefit obligation after change 394 -+18

Original defined benefit obligation 406 -E'6

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation (12) 12

Changes in Mortality rate in %

Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

0.50

-+06

(9)

Particulars

,

3651

31 March 2018

Increase] Decrease

Changes in Discount rate in %

Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation 11

Changes in Mortality rate in %

Defined benefit obligation after change

Original defined benefit obligation

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (8)

C. Other Long Term Benefit Plans

Leave Encashment (Non-funded), Long Service Award (Non-funded) and Half Pay Leave C\-0_'1-_~.:::!ec·,

The group provides for the encashment of accumulated leave subject to a ma..~= DI- 3:: ::':_:-5 -=--.::.:: ::c.:::':':':-.: ~=: ""C::'=::' I c.'- ;
th b fd f tilised l hbl h d th bas: - ..' "on e num er 0 ays 0 unu se eave at eac a ance s eet ate on rne . aSE OI= :':::'::=",,=:::':'=::-_~ c.:-:-~ -:-.:.....:..:.:.:-- _-~_c.:::.::.::..:.::.-

of ~ 832.10 lacs (~ 603.51 lacs) has been recognised in the Statement of Profi: a:J..:i:::"css.

Leave Encashment (Non-funded) ..-\.5 at

31-03-2019

_-\S 3.:

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

Current

Non Current



Long Service Award is given to the employees to recognise long and meritorious service rendered to the 'group. The minimum

eligibility for the same starts on completion of 10 years of service and thereafter every 5 years of completed service. _"--<1 amount of

~ (-) 20.19 lacs [~ (-) 37.60 lacs] has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

({ in Lacs)

Long Service Award (Non-funded) As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

Current 60.73 41.26

Non Current 346.57 351.83

The leave on half pay is 20 days for each completed year of service on medical certificate or on personal grounds. _w amount of {

358.90 lacs (~ 50.96 lacs) has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

({ in Lacs)

Half Pay Leave (Non-funded) As at As at

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

i\.mount recognized in Balance Sheet:

Current 105.33 +9.52

Non Current ~12.52 513.58

/~~>.

:' Q



Note-40 Additional Disclosures

40.1 Disclosure of Interests in Subsidiary and Joint Venture Companies

Name of Subsidiary / Joint Venture Company Nature of Proportion of Countrv of IncorJ::1oratioIi

Relationship Shareholding

Balmer Lawrie (UK) Ltd. Subsidiary 100% United Kingdom

Visakhaptanam Port Logistics Park Ltd Subsidiary 60% India

Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LIe. Joint Venture 49% United Arab Emirates

Balmer Lawrie - Van Leer Ltd. Joint Venture 48% India

Transafe Services Ltd. Joint Venture 50% India

Avi - Oil India Private Ltd. Associate 25% India

P T Balmer Lawrie Indonesia Joint Venture 50~b Indonesia

Note: The accounting year of all the aforesaid companies is the financial year except for Balmer Lawrie rL'Af L.�

which follows calendar year as the accounting year.

40.2 7,04,52,900 (7,04,52,900) Equity Shares are held by Balmer Lawrie Investments ltd. IHo:cl:EsCo:r.::a::.y,.

40.3 (a) Fixed Deposit with bank amounting to {. 0.90 Lakhs ({.0.85 Lakhs ) are lcdgec '.'.i:'", .:e:-:a:r. a.:.:::':::-:::"o__

security.

(b) Conveyance deeds of certain land costing {. 2,484.37 Lakhs I"{. 2.5-ll.~5 =-'a;:::5 c- - :':::::::'::0.

written down value of {. 3,211,46 Lakhs ({. 3,040.20 Lakhs) are pending regis:ra::c:-: ::-. .::a:::::-:.

(c) Certain buildings & sidings with written down value of { 6.603.58 Lakl.s !{ 5.552.S": ::"~::-.o ar" ,::-.:.a:,,:: .

leasehold/rented land.

40.4 Contingent Liabilities as at 31 st March, 2019 not provided for in the ac.:o:.:r.:' :ore:

(a) Disputed demand for Excise Duty, Customs Duty, Income Tax, Service T:o:,::or.: S::", -:-"-. ::::-.:_r::r.:: .:

14,345.86 Lakhs ({. 14,495.05 Lakhs) against which the Compar.y Las !cds": :::=;,,::~-::,,:::::-. :::'re ::::::::::-::.:"

authorities.

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts amount to 'Z. :.C-6.63 ::"::=::-.0 7 _-'_, _
respect of which the Company has lodged appeals petitions ce:'"or", a::=r::-:::-::::e ::':::-.:r.::'" ~... __. _.

employees/ex-employees related disputes financial effect is ascertair.abe :'::. "e:::~err.er.:: r.: ''':::~''Ir:-.: _.

reached during the year.

40.5 (a) Counter guarantees given to various banks m respect of g-.:ara::.:eeS.:ar." _ ._ ..

8,794.18 Lakhs ({. 9,312.85 Lakhs)

(b) Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on Ca;::~:a".~~~=.:.r.:.':::-~:-~: :::-: .. _"_ .. :-::Ir.: _:--~...

1,562.87 Lakhs ({. 3,589.20 Lakhs).



40.6 Segment Reporting

Information about business segment for the year ended 31st March, 2019 in respect of reportable segments as

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the IND AS- 108 in respect of "Operating Segments e- is

attached as Annexure - A.

40.7 Continuous losses incurred by a joint venture, Transafe Services Ltd. over the last few years have resulted in

negative net worth off. 11871.45 lakhs as on 3151March 2019. Based on negative net worth on. 732.54 lakhs as

on 31'1 March 2013 a reference application was made to BIFR under Sec. 15 of the Sick Industrial Companes

Act 1985 on zz= July 2013 which was registered by BIFR under case no. 83/2013 and confirmed by their letter

dated 25th November 2013. The same was pending with BIFR. The Ministry of Finance vide its notification nos

S.0,3568 (E) and 3699 (E) has repealed SICA, 1985 and dissolved the BIFR. Consequently all pending

references/appeals before BIFR stands abated.

The management of TSL in order to revive the Company has been working on various restructuring proposals

including bringing in a strategic partner.

With such restructuring and participation of the strategic partner, TSL is expected to revive through reduction of

finance charges and easing out funds through working capital for its day to day business operation, All the

business segments of TSL are separate cash generating units and based on their future projections. tr.ey a-e

expected to continue to remain so.

In context of the above, a business enterprise valuation was carried out by a reputed valuer. wr.ere the f~:-.=-e

discounted cash flows exceeded the carrying value of the assets of the Company. HenCe, La provision '5 ,e~:.:::-;;':

to be made for impairment ofloss as per Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-36)

40.8 Mis Transafe Services Limited, a Joint Venture Company, where Company holes 5'!]:, y:"::.e ;;:c:'::. S~':':-::'5 =:" ::-.;;

company has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks amounting to ~ 10.609. 6~ Lacs ..:.-~~:~.. ,::~=-:- :.-..:.~~~ =- =- ::. ~

Balance Sheet date.

40.9 During the year the company has started the process of closing down the wholly owr.ec S:'::5:"::c:.=-:._, __ .. -

Kingdom, Balmer Lawrie (UK) and as a part of such initiative BL(CK) brought ta~k ::5 s:-.::r;;'O::: c:.rc:.:::,:"~'.,,": :::

as per permitted legal regulations of United Kingdom. This has resulted in c..?:,c::: c·:-~:.~~~=3:'~ =-= ~:-_::.:-~~ -.: 7

634.49 Lakhs during the year. The company now holds only 100 shares in ~::::',~'::~e:~~'O'.:."::::"::c:.:-:..

40.10 As a part o~the restructuring initiative for Balmer Lawrie (CK) L:d. 51~:c share ::-_? ~ 3_c:.:---:-~;;~:"::-~~ ~:::.::.:r~,,:,~

(PTBLI) hitherto held by BLUK were transferred to Balmer Lawrie d::':--...c-.g::-,;; :.,,;:=-, ? . 3_~ :-_c:.~~:,,-,::::'.:.:=-= =-~:::
~ 64.37 lakhs during the current financial year and ~ 490.03 lakhs during t::;: ::re'.::'~." ::::-_c:.r,::::::.;;c:.:

40.11 Trade receivables, loans and advances and deposits of which confirmatio-is are ::'c'::: r;;.::":',,,":=== ::';; :::r:~,,'O::~~
subject to reconciliation and consequential adjustments on determination f;:ce:::.::: s'':'::' :: =--::~~-=-~::::=::'



40.12 Ca) The financial statements have been prepared as per the requirement of Division II to the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013.

Cb) Previous year's figures have been re-grouped or re-arranged 0Jre- lassified wherever so required to
make them comparable with current year figures. - /

(c) Figures in brackets relate to previous year. ('\t:{"V-
(d) All amounts in ' Lakhs unless otherwise stated. \';:: /

7~
As per our report attached ()~,\... '

For Dutta Sarkar & Co. ;Y'<:-~/:;.-- ~~ ,~~ ~ ~
C J \.~ .i;' '( \ Ul~\

hartered Accountants /i 0' I ,~."\.c:\'t ~
Firm Registration No. 303.~<t4E ~~,,, ) -2' n n n vr JA/

',\':-",0' )' ::Oi! oIGJ-' /'

lv1.~~:~~~"~:~,~) /lJJ.,P'

CAMainak Chakrabarti n~ l;;.~., t~! ~\,?!Y
Partner 1" - ~. '. ~ J
Membership No. 063052 - . ~ \ j~
Kolkata, 28th May, 2019 Chairman & Managing~irector (Finance) --'''-',;~----

Director .' Chief Financial .,.7'

Officer

k~
Secretary



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

amounts in ~ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note: 41

Segment Revenue

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Total Segment Inter Segment Revenue from Total Inter Segment Revenue

Revenue Revenue external Segment Revenue from

customers Revenue external

customers

Industrial PclC1<:aging 63,676 1,083 62,593 59,492 1,528 57,964

Logistics Infrastructure 18,761 33 18,728 19,244 187 19,057

I.ogistic Services 33,246 62 33,184 33,136 59 33,077

Travel & Vacations 15,977 314 15,663 15,893 162 15,731

(; reases & Lubricants 37,600 95 37,505 40,264 140 40,124 i

( )thers 9,854 6 9,848 9,782 81 9,701 J
Total Segment Revenue 1,79,113 1,593 1,77,520 _.L.

1,77,812 2,158
--~~~_. -_. --

Segment Prorit/(I .oss) before fntcrcst &

lnc01UC Tax

:)1 March 2019 31 March 2018
�...._-_ ..._.-._ ......_--- ______ ' __ w

-_.---- . '...~
:~,-II () 3,116 5,842 5,842

,-_._-_.- .. ---'-'--"' ..,.. " . ---'-"
11(' /1,:17\ '1,373 4,474 4,474

---~--.~--.--------,,-.-. ., ...-- -----_ ...._-- :.- .. _.__ ._----,---"-"-_._'----_. .._", ....._-",-_.

/ 1)/1 1,971 8,483 8,483
.-._----" " '..._-

b,Il}') (),02S 5,294 5,294
- - .~, ."-

1,1')/1 -V')/I 3,096 3,096
--,--- - .~~.

'-(SX I)" (3,360) (3,360)(C,S I)

Ijl ~~'I,h.'17 - 211,(,.'17 23,IBO - 23,830

J 1)( II isrrial P:Kkl)',ill)',

]( )gistics 111ILI':1 n Wi
~ ---_ .... -

], »)"iSlic Serv i,·( '::

'i'r,lvc] & V:1C:1IiOI1':

(:I(';lSCS &1.lIl"i, .111

( )ill<' IS
---

'1'"/al Segmt'UI Pro

.1-" ".:., .. ,

(('rl ').'51~.)
\\ I .... . ,!

1" 'I \1 .:



Segment Assets

Additions to

non-current

assets

( ),her A,sels

'~'.�:tal assets as per rhc buluncc sheet _,~, )V'" ~~~ _)_V)~""""" I

54,865 54,865 31,765 31,765

22,111 22,111 21,653 21,653

12,202 12,202 7,756 7,756

34,239 34,239 32,538 32,538

20,610 20,610 19,349 19,349

10,136 10,136 6,331 6,331

1,54,163 - - 1,54,163 1,19,393 - - 1,19,393

13,841 11,(, 14,007 8,738 5,103 13,841

59,883 59,883 85,858 85,858

') ')'7 QQ'7 IM~ - ') ')Q f)J::"l.. 2,13,989 5,103 - 2,19,092

31 March 2019

_-~_I
I'!JI,

31 March 2019

non-current

assets

assets

31 March 2018

Segment assets Investment in

associates and

joint ventures

Segment I Segment assets I Investmcnt I Additions to

in

associates

and joint

ventures

Segment

assets

Industrial Packaging

Logistics Infrastructure

Logistic Se rviccs

Travel & Vacations

Crea.<;es & Lubricants

Others

Total Segment Assets

Unallocated

Deferred tax assets

!nvestrnenrs

1)erivative financial instruments

JllIn,airmen! of Ass~~,I~.

I')"H. 1,1I711.X'J

ludustrial Packa~inl',

j'.: 11',islics InJ"rastnKl't'ln'

·l,I 1)',,~~;1ic Services

;1'I.l;(-~I· Lv, Vacations

;;:~-~Il'i
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Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in {' (lacs), unless otherwise stated)

42 Financial risk management

i) Financial instruments by category

For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value,

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars FVTPL Amortised cost* FVTPL Amortised cost*

Financial assets

Equity instruments** 150 - 150 -

Trade receivables - 27,629 - 26,978

Other receivables 21,640 24,120

Loans - 895 - 691

Accrued income 2,227 2,241

Security deposit - 908 - 841

Cash and et]uivalcnls - 5,337 - 7,592

()II1<"r hank I,.,dances 39,071 43,008

Tolal 150 97,707 150 1,05,471

I'inandalli.lhililies

'J'r:l! I" l'ay:1 hit- - 2'),29') - 31,838

~:('(lIrtly <i('l'o,;il - 3S)', - 3,243 I

I III (('I 1111:111<i:1i li:d ,ililll'" - I),I)I)H - [2,174

[ 11'1iV:IIIVl' 111I:lIlCi:1I[ia[ ,i[lli(';; - - - I
-~~--------- "-_..-

Tola[ " 111,932 - 47,255 I
- �...---~---------- '-

',\[1 IIILIII( 1:11a,;,:<'I,;/lIallllllll"; ,;Iall'd :IIHlvl' a1'('IIll'a,:I11t'tI al :lll1orll,,,,d (osl allti 111l'11'j'['sl"Tliv(' 1"<III'yill)', values an: not considered 10 he materially different from their fair values.

II I [111,<,:,1111<'1111111'(11111)'111:,1I 1111It'll I (01 ,0111",It! 1:111(':;, I'HIII 1"'111111,'":11It! :<>";c,, i:III'" h.tvr: 11('1'11(:IIII('d al cosl will! sulls(''1l1clIl increases 111 value due to consolidation under Ind,A.S 110

11:,111,1',1'(["II\, 111('111(,,[1"1 1,,1111\,1'1111111'":11It [ a,;,;"( Lilt'",

,I , 1'1,1',1111,,",1111<'111III( 111.1""1111"",111«'1111",,11«,11111<1",,1,'.1 ',," 111111('":l11t1111t'1I1.11I:lj'!'IItt'1I1 1':;11111:111":11,,11lis 1:111valu« Wtliliti nol hl' Illalrrially different fro In its carrying value, hence

1101.111 v.ilu, 1111'1.11111\' d".l I():,'IIC·~, ;11(' ,',1\'1'1111111"'111'1 I I() !lw~,(' 1I1~;11111111'llj~;

ii) HI', I, 1\I.; 11,;/'," j 11('111
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The group's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. TIlls note explains the sources of risk which the group is exposed to and how the group manages the risk

and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management I

Credit risk Trade Receivables, Cash and cash Ageing analysis Keeping surplus cash only in the form of bank deposits,

equivalents, derivative financial diversification of asset base, monitoring of credit limits and getting

instruments, financial assets measured at collaterals, whereevr feasible. Periodic review/monitoring of trade

amortised cost receivables

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Periodic review of cash flow forecasts

Market risk foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and liabilities Cash flow forecasting and Review of cash flow forecasts and hedging through forward

not denominated in Indian mpee (INR) monitoring of forex rates on regular contracts

basis
--- ----- -_ .. ---- -----

The group's risk management other than in respect of trade receivables is carried out by a corporate department under policies approved in-principle by the board of directors. The

policies include principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of SU11)lus

funds, Croup's fisk in respect of trade receivables is managed by the Chief Operating Officer of the respective Strategic Business Units.

A) Credit. risk

Cn·dil risk rekrs 10 rlu: risk or dcErul1 Oil its oillig:llioll by the countcrpa rty resulting ill a financial loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk is primarily from trade receivables and

ollwl" r("("civ:d,Ies . "I'll<'pan'lll compnay receivahks arc Iypically 1I1lSeCIIITdalld arc derived from revenue earned from customers which is predominantly outstanding from sales to

(;"V<"l1l1l1l"1I1d"I':lrlll)('llls :l1)(11'"l>lic seclo!" ("lIlili('s whose risk of dcLiUli h:ls 1>('("11very low in rhc pasl. In case of other trade receivables, the credit risk has been managed based on

COllliIIlIOIl:;IIIOlllllorilll', 01 credil worrhiucs« of IIISlolJIC1"s,:lbilily 10 repay :ll1d rhcrr pasl rrnck record.

Silllil:lriy :dl 1',1""1" "llIll:llIil':; dosely iuouuor Ih�.11'11":1.1"1I·.Cl'iv;ll>kswhich illcilldes lracking the ccdil worthiness ofthe customers, ability to pay, default rates, past history ete.

,"I' ""lilll',ly "XllI" 1,·.1'Tdil I,,:;s has also 1)('("11'''II'llllll'd :111.1;IC(Ollillcd f(.r hy Ih�.lII.

1'r ()vi~;.( �� IS

Iill I II" "I\,;d ,]":.

'1'111"1";11""" III1IV,·I:.,ti "'llI" I,·,] I,,:;:; I,,·II'·III:I!'.'·:, 1,,1 1111"i'.I""I':I:;:I wh"I,', TIll" 1':1"'111'''"Il':lII)' )',I'III"I·allyCOllslllcrs its receivahles as impaired when they are 3 years past due.

I :"I".ld'·IIII)'.111I"11I:.I"II(;till"I)(I:; ;1I)(111I:lIk("1IIII"IIILIII'"I, 1111"I :"IIIl':lIIV (':;11111:11,·:;IILII IllI" I'I'"visioll I·OIl'lllllcd Oil il:; lrad(' receivables is nor materially different from the amount

'''IIII"II,'d II',III!'.'·'III" I,'d, 11·.111I,,:;:; 1I11'lh,,,II"":" llill"d 111111"111111.\:: III') ::1111(. 1111":11111111111of 1'!""VI:;lOIlIS 1101I11:1I<"Ii:lllor Ill(' Company as a whole, no disclosures have been given

1111":'1"'(I "I "\III"( I",] , 1,'']111,,·.:;,''.

11'1 II 4 d I,.", 1/111,1111 I,d ,1',',1-1',

\ �� Jill IIIIII IIII11 tilt 11111." I ~1\'1111'11111114 jllill 1111111 II1III1 111111.111.1111111111-1",11 1\'1" .1~,',I)1 1,111",.11.'111 r ' 1111 t '-('.111 11~~kI:~ ('11\'1:;:1,1',(·(1.

1,,,.111', .11' ",11'1"11III I(T.,d.1I "1111,]11\,''1':.",Ii" .11""" II" 1,.1\'1,,11"I i111'''''''1,.111\' .1'.111'1i111""11'1,1"1'1111"1111"1111:;:l11l11'lllll:llily :;1'1111"('<1ill Clse 01

"i1I'1 1".111',1111.11111"1111'.. 11" "".11 \\,11111111111"111'1dill". III 1111""11'1,111\""1"''''.u« l 111"111,., I"dll 11:;1\I:; 1:11"'11:1:;1111.



Deposits - represent amounts lying with customers mainly governemnt and public sector undertakings on account of security deposits, earnest money deposits and retention money

given as per contractual terms. Based on past records the risk of default is minimal.

Cash & Cash equivalents - represent cash in hand and balances lying in current accounts with various consortium banks who have high credit ratings

Other Bank balances - mainly represent fixed deposits having maturities up to one year and includes accrued interest on such deposits. These deposits have been taken with Va11.0US

public and private sector banks having the high credit rating.

B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from borrowings and other Iiablities. The company has taken a loan of Rs 15 Crores from Standard Chartered Bank to avail of Grant i11aid from the Ministry of

Food Processing Industries (MoFPI) and expects to repay the same as per schedule. The first tranche of Rs 1.25 Crs was paid as and when due.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit

facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

Individual management monitors rolling forecasts of the group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The group takes into account

the liquidity of the market in which the entities operate. In addition, the group's liquidity management policy involves considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these,

monitoring balance sheet Iiquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Th« group does nor foresee any problems in dischargillng their liahilincs towards trade payahlcs and other current liabilities as and when they fall due. One group company has

liquidity problcms which is ill rh« process of being h;llldkd hy means of restructuring of loans with one time settlement with bankers.

C) Markd I{isk

Markel risk aris('s du �. 10 change in f~lrdgll exchange fates or interest fates.

1) lnu-rrst r.ur- fisk

TIll" 1',10111'I:; ,·xpo,;("d jo IIIIl'I"("sl1"11,.risl\.jo 1111'(·xj(,lIj oj ijs illveslllH"llls ill fixed deposils with hanks. The parent company including one of the JV's has invested in preference share

(:11'11:1101 :llIolhl"l i011l1vc-utu«- "Olllp:lllY , 'l'r:llls,de ,;nvi,(·s limin-d whichIias 1)("('11cillirely provided for in rhc books of rhe parent company on account of total erosion of net

\\101111011111"IV :11\(1111"11,'"1101111'11\("1'IIIC()IlH"1:;I)["illl',:11(1'I1I"dOil dll,; :1«011111.TIll' pan·111cOlllpallY has 1101invested in any other instruments except equity investments, The other

'01111':111\'h:I'; 1)(lrrowllIl',:; Oil which 11I1,·n·,;1Is p:l)':lIII,' \V11I,-1ti,; ,:11';(1"1'111>1"10 ch,IIII'," ill r:lil"s.

2) FOf('igll '·lIf1",·rJ("V fi"k

TIll" 1'.11'·111"'lIlj>:lll\, I:: '·'1"""·.1 '" 1,,".11'.11'·XI11;111.1','·11::1\:111::111)',11"111111"11'>1'·1)',11IIIIT!'III Y I':lY:lI,lc:;, 1'11111;11"11)'with I"('s\ll'("1 10 lh« liS Dollar, G131' and Euro. Foreign exchange risk

:111:,,·:.11'"1'II·, "1'.111:,,·,1:1:;::'·':;:1I11111:II,illIlI':;.1.·11.1111111:\1.·.1111:1'11111·111V rh.u I:: 11111t lu: (:'"111':111),':;1IIIII'ji"n:l1 cllrrcllcy. 'I'h(' (:olllpany as per its overall strategy uses forward contracts

1"11,111)'.:11,·II'. 11:.1".:1:::.'" 1:11,·,1\\111111111,111:111"11'.1111""·1)'.11'"1"·1"\' :IIIIIIIII'·I,"';j lal<"::OIII".II()\Villl',:; .uu l ,;1I1h cOlllracts arc noj desigllated as hedges under Inc! J\S 109. The

1»11'1t ,111\. .!II'··. 111>1u:«: 11I11V.lld'"1111:1'1:.101 '.,,1"' 111:1111"·1,,111.11-,'.,. The Company is also exposed to foreign

"\' 11.111)·.'11·.1·.. 111'.111)'.11'"11111'1I, '1'·1)'.", III"·,1' v "., ,·,,·,,1.1,·:."" .1' , '"1111,>I I It I' 1.1,·1111:11111,11111"11,·,·" 111'111II:; 1.,1<·11',11SillISI,Ii:IfI"Sand :lssocia II'S, primarily with respect to the US l)ollar

:111.1\ I,'I I



Some group companies Weei\.vi-oil significantly import raw materials and is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with USD & Euro which is not hedged. Similarly BLVL has

business transactions involving several currencies exposing it to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency receivables and payables which it manages by entering into

forward contracts.

43 Capital management

The Group's capital management objectives are

- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. TIllS takes into account the

subordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic

conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The parent company has an insignificant amount of'{ 13.75 Crores of debt outstanding on the current Balance sheet date and a subsidiary Vizag Port Trust Logistics Pvt Ltd has a

debt of Rs 55.82 crores outstanding as on balance sheet date. However, one joint venture, Transafe Services limited is highly leveraged and is having problems in repayment of term

loans including interest dues on the same. Efforts are at an advanced stage to address this issue by way of one time settlement and restructuring.

The parent company, being a CPSE is governed by the guidelines on capital issued from time to time by the Government of India.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Tolal cquiry 1,57,012 1,50,975

Total asscrs 2,28,053 2,19,092

Equity ratio 691yo 69%~---------~~

Diviclc-ucls

31 March 2019 31 March 2018Particulars
I-

(i) !':quity silar("s

l"illOiI dil'id"IHllol 1111"1'("011"lld,'d :',1 I\Llllil :.'.III}·: 01 ~ III

(.'11 1\1:IIIiI :'.111'/ ~ 'I) 11l" Iidly paid sil:II"l'

(I'·kl (II I livlti"lHI ,!I:,lllillllloll 1:1,)

11,400,26

(ii) ! )ivi.l('II<1" /101 ('(','ol'.lIi5('<I al liI(" ("IHI of III!' r("porlillg I','rio.l

III ,111,1111'1111" IIII' .il « 11'1' <lIVI, 11'11<1::,:;IIH" v"al"llIllllI' ,1111" 1"1:, ":1\'<' 1"")(IIIII1"IHI,'<I 1111"1'011'11\('111ola 1111011dlvl,lelld ol{ II (:11 March

:'.III:~: ,I III) 111'1111111'1':lld "'1"111' :''':11'', '{'hu: I 11111'(I;,,'d till'l<I"I\(II;: ;;111'1'" I III I Ill' :l1'I'lllv:d III :;it:II"itllldl'l"s III (Iu- I'IISIIIIlI', annual gClleral

11H'('jlll,I'.

12,540.29 11,400.26

7,980.18



Balmer Lawrie & Co. Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in t, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 43. Interest in Other entiries

a) Subsidiaries

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equine shares that are held

directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the group. The countrv of incorporation or registration

is also their principal place of business.

Place of

business/

country of

incorporation

Ownership interest held by the

group

31 March 2019

100%

60%

Ownership held by non-controlling

interests

Name of entity

31 March 2018

..,
..

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Balmer Lawrie UK Ltd. United Kingdom 100% ::-':IL

Vishakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Ltd. India

(b) Interest in associates and joint ventures

Name of entity

Place of

business/

country of

incorporation

% of Ownership

Interest
Relationship Accounting method

Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LLC
United "-\rab

Emirates
49.00So T oint \,~enrure

Balmer Lawrie Van Leer Ltd. India

!Dill! ""';,-enrure

47.91So

Avi Oil India (P) Ltd. India

Transafe Service Ltd. India

PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia Indonesia

Total equity accounted investments

50.00°.0

25.00° ..0

50.00'"

Avi Oil India (P) Ltd. is classified as an associate on the basis of the shareholding patterr:. wiid·. ~e2.c,,:J ,iz-''':::::-., ._' . c_'" . -c: C:.c :: =:: ::.-- '-- ".

Company. Further, in Balmer Lawrie (UAE) LLC, Balmer Lawrie "Van Leer Ltd., PT Balmer L:,,':::= ":-.:l:ees:"" s..:::'::-:-::'::..0::= "c::-C::"' :":: ': :.c.::'::c ~ :..::--=.=:'

have equal nominee representatives in the Board. Hence, these entities are classified as 100." 'cec::-.c-e, r.c ::-.= .::::::-:: :::.: .....�. __ "_
through equity method.

(i) Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of associates and joint ventures

(~ in lacs)

Summarised balance sheet
31 :\farch 201S

Capital Commitments

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debts

Counter Guarantees

Disputed demands

Toal commitments and contingenet liabilities

(c) Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures

( c ) (i)- Associates

31 March 2019

·t1:'1.--';

6,922.43 6,2:-6.96

Sumrnarised Balance Sheet
31 March ].')1~

Current assets

31 March 2019

Avi Oil India Pvt. Ltd.

2,O:;=-.0~

571.74

1,484.19

6,368.29

Current liabilities

Net current assets
/;~.

.--.~'-

Non-current liabilities ·F1.08

Non-current assets f(

Net non-current assets 1,603.88

Net assets



( c ) (i)- Joint Ventures

Balmer Lawrie Van Leer Ltd. T ransafe Services Ltd.

Summarised balance sheet 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash & Cash Equivalents 425.00 349.86 63.49 25.08

Current assets excluding Cash & cash equivalents 17,036.00 16,674.82 3,030.28 3,035.09

Current Financial liabilities ( excluding Trade payables) 12,595.00 11,508.03 1/,247.89 13,126.88

Other Current liabilities 4,445.00 5,905.81 2,080.34 2,205.06

Net current assets 421.00 (389.15) (16,234.46) (12,271.78)

Non-current assets 17,860.00 16,149.71 9,415.68 9,933.21

Non-current Financial liabilities ( excluding Trade payables) 2,337.00 231.52 4,988.28 ',rT'.62

Other N on-current liabilities 1,097.00 1,299.18 64.38 6:.98

Net non-current assets 14,426.00 14,619.00 4,363.02 2,787.61

Net assets 14,847.00 14,229.85 (11,871.45) (9,484.17)

('{ in lacs)

Summarised balance sheet
31 Dee 2018 31Dec 2017

PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Balmer Lawrie (1..'AE) LLC

2)8;.52Cash & Cash Equivalents 50.92 212.45

Current Financial liabilities ( excluding T rade payables)

Current assets excluding Cash & cash equivalents 2,034.20 2,1 4.85

791.18 933.0

~ :.---

Other Current liabilities

Net current assets

1,016.62 1,206.3:

277.33 247.29 -13,061.~6

Non-current assets 1,263.90 1261.98

Other Non-current liabilities

Non-current Financial liabilities (excluding Trade payables)

Net non-current assets

Net assets

1,84'7.06

(583.16)

(305.83)

1:8 8. i_

(616.72)

(369.-13)

( c ) (ii)- Associate

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Avi Oil India P ��"t. Ltd.

31 March 2019 31 March 201S

Revenue

Interest income including other income

Cost of Sales

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest expense

Other expenses

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income ( net of tax)

Total comprehensive income

Dividend received

6)18.5

.-~.- - .' - -

( c ) (ii)- Joint Ventures

1,«S~.11

126.23

826.10

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Revenue

Other Income

Interest income

Cost of sales

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest expense

other expenses

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividend received

Balmer Lawrie Yan Leer Ltd.

31 March 2019 31 March 2,:<13

2,349.00



PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia Balmer Lawrie (CAE) LLC

Summarised statement of profit and loss

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 Dec 2018 31 Dee 2017

Revenue 3,969.00 6,376.78 71,392.94 64,968.46

Profit for the year 64.37 490.03 6,524.05 6,871.-"1

Other comprehensive income 8.46 (1.44)

Total comprehensive income 72.82 488.59 6,524.05 6,871.71

Dividend received - - 1,651.46 1,687.48

PT Balmer lawrie Indonesia and Transafe Services Ltd's a JV whose networth have turned negative on all the applicable balance sheet dates, have nor been

consolidated further as per Ind AS requirements.



Consolidated"

Total Profit

Total Compreh

0(1

1,57,011.67

16,110,50

15,508,30

(60UO)

Additional Information to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 03 2019 Rs / Lakhs

I
I

Net Assets i.e. total assets Share in Other Share in total
I

minus total liabilities Share in profit or Loss Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income

Name of the Entity in the Group As a % of

As a % of consolidated As a % of

consolidated Amount As a % of Amount Other Amount total Amount

net Assets consolidated comprehensive comprehensi

profit or loss Income ve Income

1 2 3 4 5

Parent 82,81% 1,30,020042 105,87% 17056,79 100,00% -602,20 100,000;: 15,:C8,3C
I

I
Subsidiaries

Indian

I
Visakhapatnam Port Logistics Park Limited -0,20% (321,63) -2,07% (333,96) I

Foreign I
Balmer Lawrie UKLtd 1,15% 1,806,69 ·2.42~; (389.69) !

Non Controlling Interest in All subsidiaries 3,22% 5,058,58 '1,38% "no,,!

Associates (Investment as per Equity Method)

I
Indian

I
I

Avi-Oillndia Private Limited 0046% 721.45

Joint Ventures ( Investment as per Equity Method)

Indian

1, Balmer Lawrie Van leer Limited 1.38% 2,169,38

2, Transafe Services Ltd.

Foreign

1, Balmer Lawrie (UAE)LLC 11.84% 18,584.10

2, PT Balmer Lawrie Indonesia -0,65% (1,027.32)

Net worth of PTBLI& Transafe Services Ltd are negative,

Hence no consolidation has been done

Total 100,00% 1,57,011.67
., I ~ - ;::- -- -- -, .- -- -- - -~~..- - .._- -- -- , - .-.-. -- -- - - -. --

I

I

check

diff

57,01',67

""""~

~;


